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Financial Summary
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2008 2007
—EBN\F —ETAF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBEET BEBEET
Segment revenue ZEKE
Construction and engineering BEEDHTE 3,845 3,003
Insurance and investment RigRIKE 105 129
Property L7ES 367 305
Food and beverages B 299 250
Computer and information communication B R EMBHR
technology and others R H A 953 978
Total segment revenue BorEWRE 5,569 4,665
Segment performance* DERBR~
Construction and engineering HERER IR 20 191
Insurance and investment R R E (71) 150
Property LS 518 130
Food and beverages B8R 17 16
Computer and information communication B R A BB
technology and others R EAth 53 41
Total segment performance BAYERE 537 528

* Included segment results and share of results of associates and jointly controlled entities
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The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, share capital and

results of the Group as of and for the five years ended 31st March 2008.

TIAEAEEARRBE-_TSENF=A=+—8I1
BEAFACREE BAEE BAREEHRR-

Financials (HK$ Million) MKER (BBEER) 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Total assets BAE 6,003 6,453 6,936 7,291 8,579
Total liabilities wa Rk 3,206 3,622 3,948 3,976 4,812
Minority interests DHRR R 323 291 267 322 445
Total equity 4 2 2,474 2,540 2,721 2,993 3,322
Share capital N

—in number (Million) —#%AB8 (BER) 279 279 279 279 279

—in value (HK$1.25 per share) —8E (BRE%1.257T) 348 348 348 348 348
Revenue W 25 3,092 3,866 4,335 4,665 5,569
Profit attributable to equity holders RRRIRERE AEN

of the Company bl 186 295 331 318 231
Per Share Basis (HK$) SRIE (B%R)
Earnings - Basic B —ER 0.69 1.06 1.19 1.14 0.83
Dividends % 8 0.30 0.45 0.68 0.50 0.45
Net asset value (at book value) BEFE(GREEE) 8.87 9.10 9.75 10.73 11.91

Revenue Yz
(HK$ Million ¥ B EJT)

04 3,092 04

05 3,866 05 295
06 06 331
07 07 318
08 [ 5,569 08 [, 231

Earnings and dividends ZFI & & 2 Total equity #

(Per Share Basis HK$ &A% 5T &4 1) (HKS$ Million 7% & &7T)
04— .59 04 2,474
05— 1 05 05 2,540
06 | 1.1 06 2721
07— 1.1} o7 2,993
03— .53 o8 I 3322

Dividends % &
[l Earnings &7

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
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Business Chart
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

(0]

The past fiscal year posed a number of difficulties. In the face of a faltering US
economy, rising commodity prices and financial market instability, the Group
took appropriate and decisive actions to mitigate these effects and ensure that
it is well-placed for future growth and consistent dividend yield — namely by
streamlining, reducing risks and further developing niche business areas.

During the year ended 31st March 2008, the Group was able to increase
revenue by 19.4% to HK$5,569 million. Profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company was HK$231 million, down 27.4% compared to last year.
Healthy contributions from the lifts and escalators, electrical and mechanical
(E&M) engineering and aluminium window projects in Hong Kong, Macau and
Australia, together with the cold storage operations and property revaluation
gains on certain investment properties, helped offset more difficult areas.

In particular, the construction and engineering as well as securities investment
segments faced challenges. For example, the rise of materials prices adversely
affected our building construction and environmental engineering projects.
Meanwhile, inflationary pressure on the global economy imposed stock market
volatility and raised the risk of stagflation in the US. This led to a revaluation
loss provision against our securities holdings. However, the Group responded
by taking prudent steps to trim its bank loans and reduce its equity exposure
substantially, thus protecting its cash flow position and demonstrating its
emphasis on fiscal prudence and shareholder value.
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The Group also made decisions to continue lowering overhead and operating
expenses; streamline and offload under-performing business in order to realise
profit from original investments; and improve overall return on capital — all of which
have offered additional relief. After the year-end, the Group announced its disposal
of 75% of a pipe technology business to sharpen focus on developing the niche
Hong Kong pipe rehabilitation market and Plastream advanced pipe technology
from Australia. To further improve its competitiveness in the value chain and create
long-term benefits, the Group is also keen to explore cooperation opportunities
with vendors and suppliers to form strategic alliances or joint ventures.

Although austerity measures have been implemented to cool down the
overheated property markets in Mainland China, the Group strongly believes
that property prices there will regain momentum due to strong local market
demand, improved affordability and robust economic growth, and it is
confident that its projects will yield satisfactory return in the coming years.

The Group is also optimistic about the prospects of its high-end food and
beverages (F&B) business. Being one of the major F&B operators in Hong Kong,
operating 78 Pacific Coffee outlets and 29 Igor’s bars and restaurants globally and
equipped locally with a sizable central kitchen run by Igor’s, the Group is in a
competitive position to achieve economies of scale, further enhance food quality
and variety, and take positive steps in sales-building and cost-reduction initiatives.

It was another year for recognition of excellence among Chevalier Group
companies. Chevalier Property Management Limited received the “Progressive
Award (Residential Building)” in the Caring Environment Recognition Scheme 2007
for its work toward installing disabled-friendly features at residential properties.
Also, Chevalier Insurance Company Limited was named an Appointed Services
Provider of the Employees’ Compensation Insurance Residual Scheme.

As a socially responsible entity, the Group once again was very active in
communities around the world, contributing significant resources to causes
benefiting children, the environment, the arts and more. Of particular note is
the fundraising work done by Igor’s Group for ROSE charities in support of the
Children’s Surgical Centre in Phnom Penh, Cambodia. Nearly HK$1.4 million
was raised in 2007, bringing the total since 2005 to HK$2.5 million.

In April 2008, Mr Kan Ka Hon and Mr Li Kwok Heem, John resigned from their
roles on the Board as Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive
Director respectively. | would like to take this opportunity to express our
gratitude for their service to the Board over the years. We also welcome the
appointment of our new directors, Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles and Mr Ho
Sai Hou, both of whom bring significant experience to the Board.

As our shareholders know, the name “Chevalier” is a French word for “knight”,
signifying our spirit and commitment to succeed no matter what the
circumstances. With a strong financial position and ample liquidity position,
coupled with prudent, disciplined financial management proven over the past 30-
plus years, the Board strongly believes that the Group can live up to its namesake,
weather the current challenges and continue on its path to future success. On
behalf of the Board, | thank the management and staff for their hard work and
professionalism and look forward to another successful year together.

Chow Yei Ching
Chairman and Managing Director
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DM

The Group operates the following core businesses: construction and
engineering, insurance and investment, property, food and beverages (“F&B"),
computer and information communication technology (“IT") and others.

CONSTRUCTION AND ENGINEERING

During the year under review, the Group was able to capitalise on increased
demand for the construction, installation and maintenance of lifts and
escalators, E&M engineering projects, aluminium windows and pipe
technology services, resulting in a 28.0% increase in revenue for this segment
from HK$3,003 million to HK$3,845 million. The total value of the major
contracts on hand for this segment remains at HK$3.2 billion.

Despite higher revenue from the building construction division, gross margin
suffered from significant price increases in raw materials, especially metals. In
response, the division imposed more stringent cost controls and project
management to mitigate the effects. In addition, the Group has finalised
placing orders for raw materials for current projects, which should also help
minimise price volatility. Looking ahead, the division will aim at incorporating
pricing adjustment mechanisms into future coming contracts so as to reduce
our exposure in these areas.

Major projects on hand for the building construction division include:
Construction of “The Praia” in Macau

ii. Hong Kong Community College Development at The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University

iii. Redevelopment of Shatin Pass Estate
iv. Two primary schools in Area 13, Yuen Long, New Territories

Despite very competitive market conditions, especially for the new sales and
installation business, the lifts and escalators division maintained its profit
contribution in the year under review. After installing more than 15,000 lifts
and escalators over the past 30 years, the division is well positioned to serve the
repair and maintenance needs of its customers and derive stable recurring
income. The division also secured a large project from Singapore Housing
Development Board to provide over 850 lifts and escalators. Other major
projects on hand include the supply and installation of lifts and escalators for
the residential development at Celestial Heights, The Palazzo and Tai Wai East
Rail Station in Hong Kong, and Galaxy Mega Resort & Casino in Macau.
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1. My Villa in Beijing, PR.C. 3. Chevalier's property management

1t = ER AP services
2. Chevalier's cold storage and logistics HIYEEERS
services 4. Chevalier Hotel - Jiujiang
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Most of the resources and efforts of the E&M division were focused on Macau
in the year under review, which provided additional revenue and steady profit
contribution as compared to last year. Projects on hand for this division in
Macau include E&M works for the Galaxy Resort and Casino, the expansion
phase of Wynn Resorts and City of Dreams.

The performance of the environmental engineering division was affected by a
project involving the supply and installation of E&M equipment for Tai Po
Sewage Treatment Works Stage V, which encountered delays and rising costs
for building materials and labour. The division has undergone internal
restructuring to fine-tune its bidding budget process and ongoing project
monitoring with a view to restoring profitability.

The aluminium windows and curtain wall division, which provides a full range
of services including the design, renovation, engineering management and
installation of curtain walls, recorded another year of satisfactory performance.
Being one of the few major players in Hong Kong, the division has in recent
years further developed footholds in diverse overseas markets including
Australia, Japan and Macau. Major projects on hands for this division include
designing, supplying and installing glass curtain walls for I-Square, a 32-storey
entertainment complex at the former site of the Hyatt Regency Hotel, St Paul
Hospital in Causeway Bay, and the 15-storey headquarters of Sydney Water, a
Class A office building in Sydney.

During the year under review, the Group was able to narrow loss and increase
revenue for the pipe technologies business by streamlining its operations.
Pursuant to Sales and Purchase Agreement, the Group will dispose 75% of its
interests in a pipe technology business to Sekisui Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Sekisui”),
a company listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange and Osaka Securities Exchange
that provides a natural fit due to its sizeable presence in the construction
materials industry. The Group is confident that this will fuel further growth by
improving competitiveness and marketability. The transaction should also
enable the Group to realise an estimated profit of over HK$100 million, which
will be recognised in 2008/09 upon closing of the disposal.

Following this, the Group will focus on developing niche businesses for the
Hong Kong pipe rehabilitation market and its new Australian technology,
Plastream, under the Rib Loc brand. With the Drainage Services Department
and Water Supplies Department’s launch of comprehensive water mains
improvement schemes, which are respectively aimed at renovating Hong
Kong's sewage infrastructure and aged freshwater and saltwater mains in the
coming years, the Group is optimistic about the prospects of this division.
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INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT

During the year under review, revenue from this segment decreased from
HK$129 million to HK$105 million as compared to last year. However, profit
declined substantially from HK$150 million to a loss of HK$71.1 million, which
was mainly due to the revaluation of the Group'’s investment portfolio at year-
end following significant adjustments in the global equity markets.

The global market is now battling two major threats. In developed countries,
the biggest threat is financial turbulence. From the emerging world’s
perspective, inflation is the biggest problem. Financial concerns in the Western
world have given rise to a substantial drop in the equity markets, and together
with the Mainland government’s continuous tightening of monetary controls,
the PRC and Hong Kong stock markets sank to new lows in 2008. The Group
has already taken prudent steps and reduced substantially its equity exposure.
Meanwhile, the insurance underwriting business for employee compensation
in Hong Kong, which constitutes the main portfolio of our insurance subsidiary,
continued to face intense market competition during fiscal 2007/08, and return
from securities investment also decreased.

PROPERTY

Revenue and profit for this segment increased substantially to HK$367 million
and HK$501 million respectively. The increase in profit was mainly due to the
cold storage business and the revaluation of the Group’s investment properties
in the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group made good progress in Mainland China property development
during the financial year and also achieved satisfactory growth in property
sales. Phase | of the villa section at “My Villa” in Beijing was completed and
delivered to buyers during the year. Also, pre-sales of the residential section of
Chevalier Tower, a residential and commercial project in Chengdu, enjoyed an
enthusiastic response with more than 90% of the apartments being quickly
swept up by buyers. Thankfully, the Group’s PRC businesses and property
development projects were not affected by the recent earthquakes in Sichuan.
The latest addition to the Group’s property development projects in Beijing,
Chengdu, Hefei and Shenzhen is a project in Changchun of over 700,000 sq.m.
Profit contribution from the projects will be recognised in the coming years
when the properties are completed and delivered to buyers. To fund growth in
the property segment, the Group also secured a HK$1 billion 5-year club loan
from six banks in November 2007.

To sustain long-term growth in the Mainland China property development
business, we continued to look for opportunities in 2nd tier cities and acquired
a premium land bank during the year. As of 31st March 2008, the total GFA of
our land bank amounted to over 1,500,000 sq.m., which should be sufficient
to support our development plans in the coming 5 years.

The logistics and cold storage business continued to produce outstanding
results, capitalising on booming local demand to achieve a highly satisfactory
occupancy rate of over 90% and increased profit contribution. The Group
expects to have steady rental cash flow from this division in the coming year.

The property management division provides management services for
commercial and industrial buildings, residential units, shopping arcades, car
parks and other amenities in buildings with a total floor area of over 2 million
sg.m. in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Making use of our experience in
Hong Kong, the division is well positioned to leverage opportunities arising in
Mainland China.

A fair value gain of HK$387 million was recorded on revaluation of those
investment properties located in the Mainland China and Hong Kong.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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F&B, IT AND OTHERS

Revenue and profit from these businesses increased to HK$1,251 million and
HK$61.9 million respectively.

During the year, Pacific Coffee in Hong Kong achieved steady revenue and
encouraging operating profit. The total number of Pacific Coffee stores in Hong
Kong stood at 63 as of 31st March 2008 as compared to 51 in March last year.
Benefiting from a robust economic environment and the Group's continued
investment in branding, product quality and services, same-store sales in Hong
Kong grew an impressive 8.3% during the year and total revenue climbed
19.5% to HK$266 million. Our 49%-owned Igor’s Group of restaurants and
bars recorded exceptionally remarkable performance — a two-third increase in
revenue with a net profit contribution more than double the last calendar year.
With the synergies gained from the central kitchen, the Group is optimistic
about the future of the F&B business in Hong Kong.

However, in addition to the closure of two unprofitable Pacific Coffee outlets in
Shanghai and Beijing as mentioned in our interim report, the results of F&B
were also affected by the closure of a few other Pacific Coffee outlets in
Mainland China and the termination of its bakery operations in Beijing. Despite
such setbacks, Pacific Coffee is still optimistic about the long-term market
potential of coffee culture in the Mainland China and will cautiously continue
its efforts to expand its outlet network in prime locations of major cities.

As of 31st March 2008, Pacific Coffee had 78 shops and Igor’s had 29 outlets
worldwide.

During the year, the revenue as well as profit of the IT business decreased
slightly. As we are still in a competitive market position, effective cost controls
with continuous operational restructuring have been imposed in Hong Kong
and Thailand to defend our profit margin.

Elsewhere, the Nissan and Toyota car dealership businesses in Chengdu
recorded improvements in both revenue and gross margin. To further capture
the PRC market, we established a Nissan car dealership in Panzhihua and
entered into an agreement to become the sales agent for Honggi during the
year. These moves were in line with our strategy of providing automobiles to
PRC customers of different segments. The performances of our car dealership
businesses in Canada and food trading businesses in the USA were also
satisfactory, with both registering increases in both revenue and profit
contribution.

K<,

11. Watermark — a new waterfront
restaurant under Igor's Group in Central
Igor's% &k & B 1 T 2 B H BR T B Rk 1)
58 % 2 Watermark

9. Pacific Coffee — coffee wholesale and retail
Pacific Coffee — INBEHEEE R T &

10. Cafe Duvet — an alfresco bar under Igor’s
Group in Discovery Bay
Igor's& R 5 B JE T~ iz KA fa) = & 1) BR R R
Cafe Duvet

ER ok

B8 BB REAM
REEBOWERBRH B LA EEE 12518 TR
7B H6,1908 Jr e

£ FHE K Pacific Coffee RSB EW S &%
BARERSABE - HE_TTN\F-A=+—8"
Pacific Coffee R BB R IE45 B H A63M MEF= A
A5 -ZEREDNLEERE M EAEEFER

WERRIEARE EREENRE SFEMER
FANREHERES3%MA B R BANFEF
19.5%Z B EE2.66E T AN RNEB B I9%E R
HlgorsBE R EREEMNEEMEMEKTERE 1
FH — Wz tA=o2= @HEBEE—EFB
B—EF-ARFPREESRIpAS G REEHES
E’J‘%A%i&ﬁu SIEBLE-

?fiﬁﬁ'ﬁ}ﬁﬁﬂl‘%‘?qﬂ/ﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ'K%%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁFﬂ
7 RIRL R £ &b = & FI 88 71 R fE #) Pacific Coffee
JEE SN B RS A O A B R R i E A 2R
Pacific Coffee/5 i LA R R It R EIE R M E M
SRR E R E It - Pacific Coffeefd ¥ /b Bl /A 31 10
BESEMREMISENRBLE WiEFEMES
BRERIEWTESHBENEHERK-

RZZEZTN\F = A =+—H " Pacific Coffeel® & Bk #
B 78[5 J& - Igor'sBI A 29 & Bz -

FRAMBRERORE R BFGER T B ER
AEEDEATSET EERFEEBCRNE

BERAEGEE R EEAEERENEFET
=

LESN R B ER S R ITERIEEBH R E RE
MEBBEMRE - RE-FEBEPEMG REER
BRIERIBAEAERE URFRETHE KB
AEMEERE U EBBRAEE RS TRER
MPEEPEMTENER B -ARENMEX

MERBEBREXBENRIBEZIEBARETR
s MABNER T EYEABRIEE

& E R

HIBREEARARF
2T N\FFH




Management Profile
BEE/-BN

Dr CHOW Yei Ching

BT EEL

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang

BEBELXE EEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr CHOW Yei Ching, Chairman and Managing Director, aged 72, is the
founder of Chevalier Group since 1970. He is the Chairman of Chevalier
Pacific Holdings Limited (“CPHL"), a public listed company on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is also a
director of certain companies of the Group. He is also an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited, Shaw
Brothers (Hong Kong) Limited and Towngas China Company Limited and
a Non-Executive Director of Television Broadcasts Limited. In 1995, Dr
Chow was awarded with an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Business
Administration by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and an Honorary
University Fellow by The University of Hong Kong. In 1996 and 1997, he
was appointed as an Honorary Member of the Board of Directors by
Nanjing University and was conferred an Honorary Degree of Doctor of
Laws by The University of Hong Kong respectively. Dr Chow also serves
actively in a number of educational advisory committees and gives
substantial support to the aforementioned two Universities in Hong Kong
and The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology in areas of
researches and developments. He is also a Consultative Professor of
Zhejiang University and a Lecture Professor of Sichuan Union University in
the PRC. Dr Chow’s enthusiasm in public services is evidenced in his
appointment in 2001 as the Vice Patron of The Community Chest in
Hong Kong. He was also appointed as the Honorary Consul of The
Kingdom of Bahrain in Hong Kong in 2001. He also actively participates
in various professional bodies and associations on fraternal and Chinese
affairs. To name a few, he is a President of The Japan Society of Hong
Kong and the Chairman of the National Taiwan University-HK Alumni
Association, etc. In recognition of his contributions to local and overseas
societies alike, Dr Chow was awarded honorable decorations from Britain,
Belgium, France and Japan. Furthermore, Dr Chow was also awarded the
Gold Bauhinia Star from the Government of the HKSAR (“"HKSAR
Government”) in 2004. He is the father of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar,
an Executive Director of the Company.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Mr TAM Kwok Wing Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar
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Mr HO Sai Hou
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Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang, Vice Chairman and Managing Director, aged 58,
joined Chevalier Group in 1972 and is an Executive Director of CPHL, a
public company listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a director of
certain companies of the Group. He is the President of The Lift and
Escalator Contractors Association in Hong Kong, the Vice-Chairman of
the Hong Kong — China Branch of The International Association of Elevator
Engineers, Vice President of the Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and
Mechanical Contractors Limited and a Registered Lift and Escalator
Engineer in Hong Kong. He is a member of the Guangzhou Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC"). Mr
Kuok has extensive experience in business development and is responsible
for the strategic planning and management of the operations of lifts and
escalators, building construction, building materials and supplies,
aluminium works, electrical and mechanical services, civil engineering,
property development as well as investment projects of the Chevalier
Group.

Mr TAM Kwok Wing, Deputy Managing Director, aged 47, joined
Chevalier Group in 1986. He is also a director of certain companies of
the Group. Apart from managing the operation of insurance underwriting
together with property development, property management, cold storage
logistics and travel agency businesses, he is also responsible for legal
affairs, human resources management and corporate communications of
Chevalier Group. Mr Tam holds a Bachelor Degree in Laws from Beijing
University of the PRC, a Master of Arts Degree from City University of
Hong Kong and a Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate Administration
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is also a Fellow Member
of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in the U.K. and the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. Mr Tam is appointed as a member of the CPPCC,
Changchun. Presently, he also serves as an Honorary Secretary of the
Insurance Claims Complaints Bureau, the Chairman of Publication
Committee and a Council Member of The Hong Kong Association of
Property Management Companies as well as a Committee Member in the
Education Committee of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Mr SUN Kai Dah, George

Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles
BEREE
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar, Director, aged 34, joined Chevalier Group
in 2000 and is the Managing Director of CPHL, a public company listed
on the Stock Exchange. He is also a director of certain companies of the
Group. Mr Chow holds a degree in Master of Engineering from the
University of Oxford, U.K. He is currently a General Committee Member
and Chairman of the Environment Committee of the Hong Kong General
Chamber of Commerce, a General Committee Member of the Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and The Chamber of Hong
Kong Listed Companies. He is also a Council Member of the Hong Kong
Productivity Council and a General Committee Member of the
Infrastructure Development Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council. Mr Chow is a member of the Committee Member
of the CPPCC, Shanghai. He is the son of Dr Chow Yei Ching, the
Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.

Mr HO Chung Leung, Director, aged 58, joined Chevalier Group in
1985. He is also a director of certain companies of the Group. He is
responsible for management of Chevalier Group's accounting and treasury
activities. Mr Ho is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the U.K. and a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr HO Sai Hou, aged 42, was appointed as an Executive Director and
Company Secretary on 1st April 2008 and is also an Executive Director
and Company Secretary of CPHL, a public company listed on the Stock
Exchange. He is also a director of certain companies of the Group. He
joined Chevalier Group in 2005. He is responsible for management of
Chevalier Group’s accounting and treasury, corporate finance and company
secretarial activities. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr Ho holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences
Degree in Accounting from The University of Hong Kong and completed
his EMBA with The China Europe International Business School in 2007.
Previously, Mr Ho was the Chief Financial Officer and an executive director
of Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph O.B.E., J.P., aged 66, was appointed as
an Independent Non-Executive Director in 2002 and a member of the
Audit Committee and chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. He is the Chairman of Joseph Chow & Partners Ltd., an
independent non-executive director & chairman of PYI Corporation Limited,
an independent non-executive director of Build King Holdings Limited
and Road King Infrastructure Limited as well as a non-executive director
of Wheelock Properties Limited. He has over 40 years of experience in
the planning, design and construction of many major engineering projects
in the U.K., Middle East, the PRC and Hong Kong. He is currently the
Chairman of the Construction Workers Registration Authority and Hon.
Senior Superintendent of the Hong Kong Auxiliary Police Force. He was
previously the President of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,
Chairman of Hong Kong Engineers’ Registration Board, Hong Kong
Examinations and Assessment Authority and Pamela Youde Nethersole
Eastern Hospital Governing Committee as well as a Member of the Hong
Kong Housing Authority and Hospital Authority.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)

Mr SUN Kai Dah, George, aged 68, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company on 31st March 2006. He has
extensive experience in business management. He was the founder of
Zindart Limited, a company incorporated in 1978 and listed on the United
States NASDAQ. He has retired from the position of Chief Executive Officer
of Zindart Limited since 1998.

Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles J.P, aged 49, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director, chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company on 1st
April 2008. He is a qualified accountant and company secretary of Changan
Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd. which is listed on the Stock Exchange.
Previously, he was the Chief Financial Officer and Director of Hong Kong
Asia Television Limited. Mr Yang is a partner of S. Y. Yang & Company,
Practising firm of Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr Yang obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration from The City University London in 1983. Mr Yang was
appointed as Justice of the Peace by the HKSAR Government in 2004.
He was selected as “Outstanding Accountant Ambassador” by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 2004. He is currently a
member of Hubei CPPCC. Mr Yang is the Chairman of Admissions, Budget
and Allocations Committee and a Director of The Community Chest. He
is also a member of the HKSAR Chinese Medicine Council and Partnership
Fund For The Disadvantaged.

BYFEHITESE ()

BRESE BERT A\ R_ZEEXRF=A=+
—BREERARRZBUNTERS U RER
ZEERFHNEEGZKE - REFLERNEER
BE MR HR—NENFRL W EE B E
"HEHTH ETERF - Zindart Limited 2 B A
BR—NNANERKZRBITHRAE — B

BEREE P REOTAR R-EEN\FOA
—REZERARRZBIUNTERS U RER
ZEETRLRTMEZBERE RABRBIA L
THEERZREMABNERARZAEREF
iR NFENE REREELMNEBRBRABE 2
BEZREE BELERAGHBEGHMITZAR
ANIERERBREBAEASANAGRELES
AEMAEEERE-HBEEN - NANZFERBERETK
BRAEIREEBELEM-HEERN _TTHUFH
EREFRBFZEAA AL AF REERE
BEIMAE [HRE SRR - RRABIEER
BEE- BEER RS 2ESF IR G HER
SREEEEFE - WARFRBRNTEEERES
EhETFHRSESE S8

HEIBEREEAERAA




Major Events

A= O

APRIL 2007 - MARCH 2008
—EFLEMAZR-EENFZS

April 2007 —ZEZ+ F M A

CPC Construction Hong Kong Limited
won a water works contract from Hong
Kong International Airport.
HT-EREEEBRAFESEBRE
HIG KB ITIRA K-

May 2007 —EE 55 A

“Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited” renamed as “Chevalier
Pacific Holdings Limited”, marking an important milestone
in the development of lifestyle food & beverages business
of the Group.

[HERRERERAR I EXSRRITHELZHERE
RAF - RAETEEERANKRENEZEEZE-
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July 2007 —=ZZtF+A
Announcement of 2007 annual results

N007FE 2 FHEE

The Group acquired Changchun New Star Universe
Construction Development Company Limited to jointly
undertake the redevelopment project of certain shanty
areas at Fan Jia Dian, Lu Yuan District of Changchun, P.R.C.
SEWEREFETERBREELQR AEERUR
PRERETHERSREMPERIER -

Chevalier Property Management Limited won a Merit
Award in the ‘Best Property Management Companies in
Occupational Safety and Health’ competition.
HIEEMXERERAFAEIRERTENEEED
AL EBREE-

—— Lam Woo & Company Limited won a contract from Water

Supplies Department, HKSAR for the replacement and
rehabilitation of water mains in Shatin and Shap Sze
Heung.
BaEEERAFETERNKBEAREIEELN 8
BEERREEDSHR T OB KE-

Chevalier Insurance Company Limited was appointed

as the Appointed Services Provider of the Employees’
Compensation Insurance Residual Scheme by the
Employees’ Compensation Insurance Residual Scheme
Bureau Limited.
HtREERAFANEREHEMRAZNEEREZER
[MEEWER RSN ERERERBEE] -



Major Events

R=O R

August 2007 —ZEZ+tF N\ A

Chevalier (Construction) Company Limited was
awarded the redevelopment project of Shatin
Pass Estate in Tse Wan Shan by the Hong Kong
Housing Authority.

Ht (BE)BERAFEEEFEZES®A
W 2ENERZILSEYBERTE-

November 2007 —ZZ+tF+—A
Chevalier International Holdings Limited signed a
HK$1,000 million term and revolving credit facility
agreement.

HELBRSEEEE T REPRRBRER

Chevalier sponsored Chevalier Cup Race Day for the
12th year.
ET_FEYPIELHRESFAH]-

Chevalier Property Management Limited was awarded a
contract to provide security service for Century Centre in
Kwun Tong.
HIEZEMEERERAFAEGEHLEIFPIORE
BHY .

October 2007 —ZEZE+ &+ A

Chevalier Property Management Limited was awarded a
contract to provide property management service for
Wan Tin Building in To Kwa Wan.
HItERM¥EBRARAABUNLTIENERK
ENEREEH-

— Chevalier solely sponsored a series of TVB Chinese
programmes, namely ‘Chevalier Presents: Wonderful Life’
and 'Chevalier Presents: Enjoyable Life’, featuring
Chevalier’s diversified businesses and their contributions
to the people of Hong Kong from all walks of life.
BRERERGRETEFIRE-—RINEE 2R
[EFEFAEEFIRIEZEFEREEF] - BRREL
EESTEREBEELERADBE —ERHEM
REBARAEEEER

HLEEEEARAT 4{9
—TTNEER
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APRIL 2007 - MARCH 2008
—EFLEMAZR-EENFZS

December 2007 —_ZEZE+tF+ = A

The Lifts and Escalators Division won the “New
Works Category — Outstanding Contractors Award
(Building Services Installation — Lift)”,
“Qutstanding Supervisor — Maintenance Services
Projects category”, “Outstanding Worker —
Maintenance Services Projects category” and
“Qutstanding Worker — New Works Category” of
“Quality Public Housing Construction &
Maintenance Awards 2007".
BEHRMEME20070FBEAHEEREERRE
REI R [T TREEEE — R FAEm %
(BFEME-ARHK) ] - [RELEELE &
HET] [REFEHEE —HEE IR R
TiEg&EmeE —RE IR

Announcement of 2007/08 interim results

152007,/ 084F & h BR % 45
Chevalier (Aluminium Engineering) Limited was

awarded the I-Square project.

H+ (8T %) BR A REI-Squared #J°
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January 2008 —ZEZ N\F— A

Pacific Coffee Company launched a customer loyalty
program “Perfect Cup Card”.

Pacific Coffee Company # H& B a1 &1 [ =Xk
g8FK]-



Major Events

R=O R

— Action Honda won the 2008 Quality Dealer Award
for the 7th year.
Action Honda2 + S #2008 F A HEE R B 58

Chevalier (Aluminium Engineering) Limited was
awarded the St Paul’s Hospital redevelopment project
in Hong Kong.

Ht (3aT1R) ERAFRERBERK B EE:T
EITRE4-

March 2008 —ZZ N\F=A

Chevalier Network Solutions Thai Limited was awarded a significant
contract by TRUE Corporate Public Company Limited, a leading
telecommunications company in Thailand, for which Chevalier will supply
and install intelligence solutions for its Convergence Call Center.
HEWERFERAR DA SO EEREE 28 AR - TRUE
Corporate Public Company Limited# & KB & 4 RE B FREH O
RERLZESRFES-

Chevalier Network Solutions Thai Limited won the Arthit project from PTT
Exploration and Production Public Company Limited, a national petroleum
exploration and production company, for the installation services of the
communication system - IP Telephony.
HEMEMRREAR QB KIS B A &R 2 7 PTT
Exploration and Production Public Company Limited& 4 &% A 81 89
Arthit TIZ 52t R 3R R e

Chevalier Hotel-Xinyang, P.R.C., has received two awards, the “Safety
Production Advanced Unit” and the “Grand A in Paying Tax Credibility
Grading of Corporations”, from the District Government of Shihe.

H4 (515) KB E S 15 50 2 7T 28 28 F 8 508 518 - 5 5
RIZ2EEFEBEN]BERARNTEASRLOE] L£BEK.

February 2008 —ZZN\F - A

Chevalier organised a work commencement ceremony for Hua Qiao
Plaza, a commercial and residential development project in Hefei,
Anhui Province, PR.C.
HErphBELZHEERETRENBEMERRD [ERHES] &
TRIMAE.

Chevalier (Aluminium Engineering) Limited was awarded the
Sydney Water Corporate Headquarters project in Australia.

HE-(8IR) BERARERMNERKEBELSHN-

A EREEARAT 751
—TENFEY




Projects Review
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In the past 38 years, Chevalier has been taking part in numerous of significant
infrastructure, construction and engineering projects. Its global business
networks and project management experiences strengthen the Group's

competitive advantage in the industry.

BE=ZTNF ELEE-—E2HEBHURAR AR
BERTIREBEB -Z2RCOHBERGRIEREEL
BZ2ETEECRERIBANHEFED-

1. The Praia
HEXR

2. I-Square (Former address of
Hyatt Regency Hotel)
I-Square (A & 7% sl 43 B J& )

3. MGM Grand Macau
EdSL kA
BRERE KRB R

4. Hong Kong Jockey Club
Enterprise Centre,
Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology
EERBAZEEESS
BIFT R AL
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. Sands Casino

S IRES

. (jrancLLisboa Hotel

8BS

. International Finance Centre

— Tower |

B2 O — B

. No 129 Repulse Bay

R E 12955

9. Shangri-La Hotel, Chengdu

REE M BRABEE
10. Macau Tower Convention
and Entertainment Centre

RPIRBIE G RRES O

11. Cyberport Development
Office
BB EMDRE

12. Wynn Resorts
K AR R

13. New TVB City, Tseung Kwan O
1% R T E AR I

14. Nina Tower
Wt %

15. Four Seasons Hotel
ki

16. Hong Kong Wetland Park
BB RN



Project Name

CEE

Central Reclamation Phase Ill -
E&M Facilities and Pumping Stations
B 5 = HAE S T8 B #E R e & ok i

Air-conditioning Aluminium
Systems and  Windows
E&M and Curtain Lifts &
Engineering Walls Building Escalators
RERBERHER BEHER Construcion  ARHEK
KEIR #E BE BHE

Networks
Solutions

BRNE

Pipe
Technologies
EERM

Environmental  Building

Engineering

BRI

Products

BHRE

Macau Tower Convention and Entertainment Centre

BWPRBEERRED O

Wynn Resorts
K AEBRA

Sands Casino
S IRES

Grand Lisboa Hotel
HEREE

Headquarters of Sydney Water (Australia)
e KGRI CRM)

The Cullinan
RE

No 129 Repulse Bay
B KB 12955

Cyberport Development Office
SIS B D KAE

I-Square (Former address of Hyatt Regency Hotel)
I-Square (A1 & & 8158 15 )

MGM Grand Macau
EeBEREREEE RBEE

International Finance Centre — Tower |

B &G0 — 8

Hong Kong Wetland Park
BEEBERM AR

Hong Kong Jockey Club Enterprise Centre,
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology

ERNEAREEEETEAHREFO

Hong Kong Community College Hung Hom Bay Campus,
Hong Kong Polytechnic University
EREIXRE FRSLERAWERS

The Praia
BEX

Shangri-La Hotel, Chengdu
SN

Galaxy Mega Resort
SR IR GE0K BB IR

Nina Tower

mi B

Four Seasons Hotel

W= H S

New TVB City, Tseung Kwan O
B E R ER A

Hong Kong International Airport
Water Works Project
EREBRBBSABIEGY

The Center
B

Castle Peak Power Station
BLBES

Tai Po Sewage Treatment Works

KI5 KRB R

Tai Po Treatment Works & Pumping Station
KIH B KB

Harbour Area Treatment Scheme

FEFEETE

New Town Plaza, Shatin
2 B 5 E T E S

Central Plaza
IR EiS

Landmark North, Sheung Shui
EokES

Tuen Mun Hospital
HP 8T

Venetian

ZAEEIPN

The Palazzo
HBE L

® China

B Hong Kong &%

A Macau BP9
Australia 38 M

BEEERAT
R N\FFH




China Property Development Portfolio

TEMmERRES

@ Changchun Urban Renewal Project —
Fanjiadian, Luyuan District,
Changchun, Jilin.
EMERETHERBREMER

\

© My Villa - East Fengxiang Street, o Heilongjiang
Yangsong Town, HuaiRou District, Beijing. REEL
JEREES - SERIER SR E BN R
Jilin
\ S |
Xinjiang Liaoning
#iiE L e
Inner Mongolia eﬂng
AxRE Tianjin
Mialbe @ Huagiao Plaza -
Ak N Changjiang Road Central,
Gz it Luyang District, Hefei
Qinghai BE I Shandong yh 9 s Tk el
= N Anhui Provmce;
= Gansu EEFES - ZREEET
Tibet H Shaanxi e JiangSL\ Ef5E T
[ 2= I A Chevalier Place —
Anhui \l 18 Jiefang
Hubei R Shanghai Xuhui District,
Sichuan A4k : angr :
. 5T Shanghai.
= o)l Chongging Theii -
Y 25T eiang 7E - L8
< o e RER N\
Hunan Jiangxi
b AN}
Guizhou 151 ! Fujian
M Er
Yunnan Taiwan
Lt
e =H Guangxi Guaég%ong RS
i)
v - %
@ Chevalier Tower — Binjiang Road, > I % ‘ang Kong
Jinjiang District, Chengdu. 1 BE
HARITHNEPT - AR LR BT
Hainan
@ Lushan Road Project — Donglin Village, pistea)

Wanan Town, Shuangliu County, Chengdu.
BIIKBIAE - BN R HE LSRR

@ Luye Village Project — Luye Village,
Huayang Town, Shuangliu County, Chengdu.
REAIER - BV IR SR E S AR TN
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© Lower Xiling Project — Luosha Road,
Lower Xiling, Luohu District, Shenzhen.
IR THIEE - RYITERE
D RN EFEFRIR T

Developed properties

¥R MERR

Properties under development

R 2 ERR

Land bank yet to develop
FRRRE 2 T

Land under demolition

Tt 3 E



Financial Review
B 7% FF 4t

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue

Revenue increased by 19.4% or HK$904 million from HK$4,665 million to
HK$5,569 million. Such increase was mainly attributable to the construction
and engineering segment with increase of revenue of HK$842 million arising
from building construction, E&M, lifts and escalators as well as pipe
technologies divisions.

Gross profit

Gross profit however dropped by 9.4% to HK$683 million as a result of decline
in profitability of building construction and environmental engineering projects
caused by significant rises in prices of raw materials such as metals.

Other (expense)/income, net

Other income/(expense), net mainly included losses on investments at fair value
through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments amounting to
HK$112 million (whereas last year gain of HK$112 million), of which HK$108
million represented unrealised loss (2007: HK$71.3 million unrealised gain)
from revaluation of securities investment portfolios and derivative financial
instruments at year end.

Other gain, net

The increase of other gain, net of HK$322 million mainly arose from revaluation
gains of fair value of the Group’s investment properties of HK$387 million. The
Group was confident on the long term potential of real estate market in
Mainland China and hence decided to transfer its unsold development
properties located at Shanghai from properties for sale to investment
properties, resulting in an increase in fair value amounting to HK$276 million.

Share of results of associates

The Group recorded its share of full year profit contribution from the Igor’s
Group of HK$9.6 million as compared to the 2-month profit of HK$1.0 million
last year. The Igor's Group expanded rapidly with substantial improvement in
profit contribution. The share of results of associates was also increased by
share of fair value gain on investment properties from an associate amounting
to HK$14.2 million.

Share of results of jointly controlled entities
The improvement mainly represented the share of profit for Phase | property
development of the villa section at “My Villa” in Beijing.

Finance costs, net

Finance costs, net remained stable. Interest on convertible bonds increased due
to the full year impact on issuance of convertible bonds in July 2006. Net
interest on bank borrowings decreased due to reduction in interest rates offset
by higher level of borrowings to finance new and continuing investments. A
5-year HK$1 billion syndication loan was arranged during the year to refinance
the previous HK$600 million loan.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses included current tax of about HK$40.1 million (2007:
HK$54 million) and deferred tax of about HK$72.7 million (2007: HK$12.8
million). The increase in deferred tax was mainly caused by the increase in
pre-tax profits from property revaluations.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

The decrease in profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was mainly
due to reduced contributions from construction and engineering plus securities
investment offset by the increased fair value gains on investment properties.

Minority interests
The increase principally represented the minority interest's share of profit for
valuation gains for the property located in Shanghai.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Investment properties

The increase mainly included the transfer of certain properties located at
Shanghai from properties for sale to investment properties of HK$168 million
and the associated revaluation gains of HK$276 million. As stated above, these
properties were developed by the Group for sales purpose initially and in view of
the long term potential of rise in property value, the Group has reclassified such
properties to investment properties held for rental from properties held for sale.
The revaluation gains from the Group’s other properties amounted to HK$111
million.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

A significant investment portfolio was disposed of during the year since the
Group intended to reduce its equity portfolio exposure in order to avoid stock
market risks. The decrease of such investments at fair value through profit or
loss under the non-current assets referred mainly to the unwinding of structural
deposits held of HK$260 million whereas the decrease of such under the
current assets referred to the decline in market value of these investments from
both revaluation and actual disposals.

Other non-current assets

The increase of HK$379 million arose mainly from the Group’s property
development projects in Mainland China, including deposits paid and costs
incurred of HK$252 million for relocation of existing residents for the
Changchun project, as well as advance of HK$125 million to its joint venture
partner for the Hefei project.

Properties for sale
The decrease represented mainly transfer of certain properties located at
Shanghai from properties held for sale to investment properties.

Debtors, deposits and prepayments

The increase was mainly attributable to the transfer from work-in-progress for
two major jobs completed by the civil engineering division in the amount of
HK$123 million, as well as our increased E&M and construction works for
casino, hotel and residential developments in Macau of HK$99 million.

Bank balances and cash

The increase was attributable by the scaling down of securities investment
portfolio, share placement by its listed subsidiary, Chevalier Pacific Holdings
Limited (“CPHL"), and additional borrowing from the new syndication bank
loans. As of year end, about 59.8% of the balance of cash was denominated in
Hong Kong dollars or US dollars, while 22.0% of which was denominated in
Renminbi.

Bank borrowings

Bank borrowings under both current and non-current liabilities totaling
HK$2,235 million (2007: HK$1,671 million) of which about 73.7% (2007:
84.5%) were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, 11.1% (2007: Nil) in
Renminbi and 9.4% (2007: 8.2%) in Euro dollars. The increase in total bank
borrowings of HK$564 million was used mainly to finance various property
development projects in Mainland China, the Group’s recurring operating
activities and potential investment and expansion activities.

With the refinancing of previous syndication bank loans, maturity of the
Group's borrowings in respect of the portion due within one year reduced to
32.4% (2007: 48.8%) of the overall borrowings. Major portion of the Group’s
borrowings was now due for repayment on a longer term maturity.

Minority interests

The increase principally represented the issuance of new shares by its listed
subsidiary, CPHL and the contributions from minority interests in Shanghai for
property valuation.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008

REEEBEEBR

REME

BN ETERRBEETURELEZMERGTEY
¥EABEKIe8EI v REE UREEBZEM
W R B2 76BN E Xt R EWER T B
REBABEHERS HERYEABREAE
BN ASEEBZENERSTENESTOER
BEHHEREME - AEBM 2 EMYE T Shka
BEEIAIET-

REZREREAALEBEEENRE
ARAEBEFRDERABEE HEBRTEAR N&E
B FRARERFEEREREG - ERDEEETRIE
HIRBRAAERECZZERENRD T EEBR
BAEZEE26ETHEBERR MREBHEEE N2
BARPAEZERE TEREGMRERHEM
N

HttkRBEE

BEITIB T ZENERREAEENTEAMZ
MEERER BEAEERFRERBEERME
XNz EBEEREEEZRAEBE252ET ARGRE
BEERAEBHE XN ZBFEE 1258

FEME
BHERSEERBURN LB ETHERGTEDE

FEWRR - FHEERAMNRIER
FHENEIEANRERIRTEBEHEIATIZEAT
REREE1.23EIT 2 MEARIER  ARFOEPIER
L BERETHRABRERZETRAMEY
Mz & sAEKI,008 T

BRTEERES
BREENIARBAFREEEARBTHA HEEWH
BRRELTZEARAR ([ELZE]) #TKRG
BE AR IRERITHE RS EIMER -RF &
B #598% v HeE T UABLHETLAEM
22.0%BIAARB BER -

MITER

MRBDBERIETDABHETMRITERE LBE
23BEL(ZFEZLF EE1671ET) EF L
73.7% (Z BT+ F:845%) ABTAEMN 11.1%
(ZETEF EB)UARBEEEMNNIA% (ZEF
+F:82%) BT BEAL-R1T 8 AR TEIL B W
SeMETL I EERERNTRAMZ @AY EZEREIE
B AEELCEUEREY BERERERER-

BEAARBRTEINEERE A£EH-FNR
FHEREBRRBERZLIRDENA4% (ZTE2L
F:48.8%) AEEABOERRERBERFHNSTA
TEE-

DERRES

BRHEMESEE FHIHEARELZBEITHRK
7 AR R ET LNz DB -



Deferred tax liabilities
The increase was principally attributable to the additional deferred tax on
revaluation gains on investment properties.

Convertible bonds

In July 2006, the Group issued 2.125% convertible bonds with face value of
HK$450 million which would be due on 28 July 2011. The Group subsequently
repurchased HK$50 million of the convertible bonds in the year ended 31st
March 2007. The proceeds from the issuance of the convertible bonds have to
be split into liability and derivative components. Movements in the convertible
bonds — liability component represented interest expenses offsetting by the
interest payment during the financial year. Change in the convertible bonds —
derivative component represented the fair value gain calculated based on an
option price model.

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND FINANCIAL RATIOS

As at 31st March 2008, the Group's net assets attributable to equity holders of
the Company amounted to HK$3,322 million (2007: HK$2,993 million), an
increase of HK$329 million or 11.0% when compared with 2007. Such
increase was mainly attributable to the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of HK$231 million and exchange gain on
translation of HK$181 million, offsetting by payments of final dividends for last
year totaling HK$128 million.

Total debt to equity ratio was 69.5% (2007: 61.2%) and net debt to equity
ratio was 34.5% (2007: 27.7%), which are expressed as a percentage of bank
and other borrowings and liability component of convertible bonds, and net
borrowings respectively, over the total equity of HK$3,767 million (2007:
HK$3,316 million). Total debt to total assets ratio was 30.5% (2007: 27.8%),
which are expressed as percentage of bank and other borrowings and liability
component of convertible bonds over the total assets of HK$8,579 million
(2007: HK$7,291 million).

BORROWINGS

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s bank and other borrowings amounted
to HK$2,618 million (2007: HK$2,027 million). Cash and deposits at bank,
including fixed and structured deposits, amounted to HK$1,318 million (2007:
HK$1,111 million) and net borrowings amounted to HK$1,300 million (2007:
HK$916 million). Most of the borrowings are carrying floating interest rates
based on Hong Kong Interbank offering Rates, with small portions based on
Prime Rate. Included in the borrowings are 2.125% convertible bonds of
HK$450 million issued in July 2006, which helped the Company to enjoy a
lower interest coupon cash outlay before maturity or redemption.

Finance cost for the year amounted to HK$126 million (2007: HK$122 million),
an increase of HK$4 million as compared with 2007.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial
management. To achieve better risk control and minimise cost of funds, the
Group's treasury activities are centralised. Cash is generally placed in short-term
deposits mostly denominated in Hong Kong or US dollars. The Group’s liquidity
and financing requirements are frequently reviewed. In anticipating new
investments or maturity of bank loans, the Group will consider new financing
while maintaining an appropriate level of gearing.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES
AND INTEREST RATES

The group has arranged foreign currency swap contracts amounting to HK$195
million to manage the exchange rate exposure between various foreign
currencies to other cross currencies. As at 31st March 2008, the Group had
outstanding interest rate swap contracts which amounted to HK$1,027 million
in total, enabling the Group to hedge its interest rate exposure.
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CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31st March 2008, bank loans of HK$351 million (2007: HK$372 million)
and other unutilised banking facilities are secured by charges on investment
properties of HK$420 million (2007: HK$279 million), property, plant and
equipment of HK$194 million (2007: HK$252 million), prepaid lease payments
of HK$149 million (2007: HK$311 million), properties for sales of HK$92
million (2007: HK$109 million), bank balances and cash of HK$6 million (2007:
HK$24 million), trade debtors of HK$53 million (2007: HK$37 million),
inventories of HK$107 million (2007: HK$95 million), other intangible assets of
HK$11 million (2007: HK$8 million). As at 31st March 2007, investments at fair
value through profit or loss of HK$2 million were also pledged.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities are set out in note 43 to the financial
statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT
Capital commitment of the Group as at 31 March 2008 amounted to HK$1,999
million (2007: HK$543 million). These commitments are to be financed by
internal funds and borrowings. Details of the capital commitment are set out in
note 44 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO AFFILIATED COMPANIES
AND THEIR PROFORMA COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

The Company and/or its subsidiaries have provided financial assistance to, and
guarantees given for banking facilities granted to, affiliated companies as at
31st March 2008, which together in aggregate amounted to HK$253.5 million
as loans and HK$619.4 million as guarantees issued for bank loans granted.
These amounts represented a percentage ratio of approximately 10.98% as at
31st March 2008 and exceeded the relevant percentage ratios of 8% under the
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Listing Rules. In accordance with the Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, an BTV BENEES ﬂﬂﬁ%ig%?ﬁ%L\@?ﬁﬁ
unaudited proforma combined balance sheet of those affiliated companies g\ﬁﬁ&z}x‘% ERELsE A Aa N EhEERNAT:
with financial assistance from the Group and the Group’s attributable interest
in those affiliated companies as at 31st March 2008 are presented below:
31st March 2008
—EENF=HA=+—H
Proforma The Group's
combined attributable
balance sheet interest
BEESH rE
EESEX Bl m
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEEER BEBER
Non-current assets ERBEE 579 267
Current assets B E E 1,370 634
Current liabilities mEBBE (535) (251)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (356) (165)
Shareholders’ advances EREEA (273) (257)
Total equity B 785 228

As at 31st March 2008, the Banking facilities utilised by the affiliated
companies, against which the Group has provided guarantees, amounted to
HK$369 million (2007: HK$139 million).
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Schedule of the Major Properties

FBEYERKXR

Particulars of major properties held by the Group are as follows: AEBEZzXTEMEFINOAT:

(A) HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/ (B)FHERE BRWE
PROPERTIES FOR OWN USE

Approximate
gross Group's
floor area interest
Location Usage K## Lease term EE AR
ity 2§ A% mE RYOFEH &
sq.ft. %
FHR BOX

Hong Kong
b

Units 1011 to 1019 on 10th Floor, Office premises and 174,600 Medium 100
19th to 23rd Floor car parking space *HA
one-third interest in 201 carparks HWAZERIFHEIE
of Chevalier Commercial Centre,

8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay

NBEEBRFE /K

HifmzEdho+2&
—ZE——E2-ZF-NE
ThEZ+=8BR
=9 —HBm 2 EHEM

—AZE—@

Ground Floor of Block A, Industrial 16,000 Medium 100
East Sun Industrial Centre, T 7 A
16 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon
NEBEXEET %
BETEPOAREMT

Chevalier Warehouse Building, Industrial 118,300 Medium 100
1 On Fuk Street, On Lok Tsuen, T mh 5B
Fanling, New Territories

FRAMBELTERLRE R
HtB8EeKE

Chevalier Engineering Service Centre, Industrial 177,500 Medium 100
21 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay T ¥ H HA
BEEBUHE -+
HEtTRERBEH DL
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(A) HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/
PROPERTIES FOR OWN USE (continued)

Approximate

(R) HEREBRYWE®w

gross Group's
floor area interest
Location Usage K## Lease term EE AR
it B A% [ RYUFEH &
sq.ft. %
FHR ERa:s
Hong Kong
BE
The Whole of the 2nd, 3rd, 4th and  Industrial 163,000 Medium 49
5th Floors, Factory Units Nos. I A
2205 and 2207 on 22nd Floor,
and 8 carparks of
Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre,
Nos. 220-248 Texaco Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
MAZERTEE-_A=T%
=t AN
$8 T 0
= EREERE
Sy - S )3
T EEREFEEMLNE
124-130 Kwok Shui Road Cold storage warehouse 427,500 Medium 75
Kwai Chung, New Territories REBEE B
AR E N
—BEZTHE—E=T%
9 Henderson Road, Jardine’s Lookout Residential 9,500 Medium 100
B L SR A E LR F=E H HA
No. 20, Shek O Road Residential 5,300 Long 100
FIRE — 15 F= RH
Singapore
3R
Chevalier House, 23 Genting Road, Industrial 80,000 Freehold 100
Singapore 349481 I KA FEHE
The Blue Building, 10 Genting Road, Industrial 17,000 Freehold 100
Singapore 349473 I KA K RE

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Schedule of the Major Properties
FTEWEX

(A) HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/

PROPERTIES FOR OWN USE (continued)

(R) HEREBRYWE®w

Approximate

gross Group's
floor area interest
Location Usage K## Lease term EE AR
it B A% [ RYUFEH &
sq.ft. %
FHR BOX
Canada
g x
4334-4340 Kingston Road, Office, workshop and 20,200 Freehold 100
Ontario, MIF 2M8 car parking space for KA R
automobile dealership
REERERHEZMAE:
IHRIFES
14535-14583, Yonge Street, Office, workshop and 25,000 Freehold 100
Aurora, Ontario car parking space for KA R
automobile dealership
REERERHEZHAE:
IS RIFES
888 Hamilton Street, Hotel 66,000 Freehold 86
Vancouver, B.C. B & KA EE R
United States of America
xH
430 East Grand Avenue, Industrial/Warehouse 38,000 Freehold 100
South San Francisco, CA I% /88 KA
Mainland China
oA i
355 Minquan Road, Hotel 129,000 Medium 70
Xinyang City, Henan Province B IE B
AEEEETRER=ZARR
Sha Long Road, Sha Tong Village, Hotel 123,500 Long 100
Houjie Town, Dongguan City i K E
R EHEDENDE K
Units 4, 5, 6 and 7 of 18th Floor, Office premise 7,200 Medium 100
Dongshan Plaza, Guangzhou, WAE A
Guangdong Province
BREBEMTRILES TN\
[ TVA S &
Chevalier Place, Lot No. 48, Residential, shop and 130,000 Long 80

18 Jiefang, Xuhui District,

Shanghai
EEmRER T N\EH

P9\ SR 3% 78 B

car parking space RH
T A RIFEL
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(A) HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/
PROPERTIES FOR OWN USE (continued)

Approximate

(R) HEREBRYWE®w

gross Group's
floor area interest
Location Usage K## Lease term EE AR
it B A% [ RYUFEH &
sq.ft. %
FHR BOX
Thailand
ZE
No. 540 Bamrungmuang Road, Office premise and 21,300 Freehold 100
Debsirin Sub-district, showroom KA W
Pomprab District, MAERRINE
Bangkok Metropolis
(IR EATZEERE)
Germany
=
Julius Strasse 12 Production 245,000 Freehold 94.77
32816 Schieder-Schwalenberg (impregnation plant) KA R
Germany T
Julius Strasse 6/10 Office and repair shop 227,000 Freehold 100
32816 Schieder-Schwalenberg MAEREBIS KA FERE
Germany
An der Brehnaer Str | Office and repair shop 218,000 Freehold 100
06794 Glebizsch MRAER#EEIS KAKERE

Germany

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Schedule of the Major Properties

FEYER
(B) PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (C) BRPIZE
Estimated
floor area
Expected date Approximate after Group's
Stage of of completion site area completion interest
Location completion BERRK Major usage R BREXH EBfh
1t B TRZBE Z B TEAR i 8 R BEERE &
sq.ft. sq.ft. %
FAER FHR BoX
The Mainland China
TERM
Beijing Huairou District  In progress 2010 Villa, residential 1,910,000 1,320,400 44
Phase Il TiRETH and commercial
EtrREREZH ME FTEREE
Chengdu Jinjiang District
B8R &
- Phase | In progress 2010 Residential and 49,900 250,000 49
——H TiRETH commercial
FTEkEE
- Phase 2 In progress 2008 Residential and 88,000 502,000 49
——H TiRETH commercial
FTERBE
Shenzhen Lo Wu District  In progress 2009 Residential and 159,100 1,321,300 46
Xi Ling Village TiRHETH commercial
RIS BN FTERBE
Changchun Luyuan In progress 2012 Residential and 5,497,100 7,607,900 96
District TiRETH commercial
Hefei Luyang District In progress 2010 Hotel residential 244,000 1,493,700 51#
ERERRE TiRRETH and commercial
BE-FEREE
# Pursant to the joint development project agreement dated 27th June # BRZETNFANAZ+ERATUZEBH
2006, the Group will share 51% of the economic interests in the EW# AEEE EZBEE 2R+ —
project. 2B
(C) PROPERTIES FOR SALE (R) FEM =

Approximate

Location gross floor area Lease term Group’s Interest
b B RHNBEHEE BHER EEfLER
sq.ft. %
F IR BaX
Hong Kong
Charming Garden 4 shop units and 91 carparks, 3,128* Medium 100
8-16 Hoi Ting Road, Mongkok West, Kowloon AR
NEEATEEBNET R ERIEEHLAMERFEELIE
Beverly Garden 13 shop units and 251 carparks, 15,812* Medium 100
1 Tong Ming Street, Tseung Kwan O, New Territories AR
MAKERERET RS RCERMALI3ERFERC2511E
Glorious Garden 7 shop units and 201 carparks, 5,765* Medium 100
45 Lung Mun Road, Tuen Mun, New Territories A HA

MALMREMED tAREREE ML 7E R IFEL2011E

* Excluding carparking spaces

TeEFEEN
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they are
essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of stakeholders and comply the increasing stringent regulatory
requirements, and to fulfil its commitment to excellence in corporate
governance.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”) came into effect on 1st January 2005. The CG Code sets out two
levels of corporate governance practices namely, mandatory code
provisions that a listed company must comply with or explain its non-
compliance, and recommended best practices that a listed company is
encouraged to comply with but need not disclose in the case of non-
compliance. The Company is in compliance with the mandatory code
provisions of the CG Code except for certain areas of non-compliance
discussed later in this report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible leadership
for the Company. The directors, individually and collectively, must act in
good faith in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. The
Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies, monitors and
evaluates its operating and financial performance and reviews the
corporate governance standard of the Company. It also decides on matters
such as annual and interim results, major transactions, director
appointments or re-appointment, and dividend and accounting policies.
Management profile of the Company as at the date of this report are set
out on pages 14 to 17.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board comprises 6 Executive Directors and 3 Independent Non-
Executive Directors. The full Board met four times during the year under
review. The attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings and the Board
Committees Meetings is set out in the table below:

EEE (@)

EEEh AN TEER A BN EEA

Jﬁi$%$ﬁ%$ﬁ7@wﬂi%é$ﬁé$%
SNEEZE S RNEEENT:

Meetings Attended/Held

EHUEEBITRE

Audit Remuneration
Directors Board Committee Committee
=) BEExR ERERS FHWEES
Executive Directors
HITEF
Dr Chow Yei Ching (Chairman and Managing Director) 3/4
FETREE L (FEREFRILE)
Mr Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and Managing Director) 4/4 171
BBELE (BIFEHFREFLLIE)
l\/Ir Tam Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director) 3/4

REE (BIEFHELIE)

l\/Ir Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar 3/4 11
JB 4 1IE 5
Mr Ho Chung Leung 3/4
A RREE
Mr Ho Sai Hou (appointed on 1st April 2008) Not Applicable
tEZEEE (RZFENFINH - HEZE) i@ A
Mr Fung Pak Kwan (reygned on 1st October 2007) 0/3
Hiak s s (RZFEELF+A—HEE)
Mr Kan Ka Hon (resigned on 31st March 2008) 4/4
BHEHLE (RZFZENF=ZA=+—HEFE)
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUINTEF
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph 3/4 2/2 171
ISEE:
Mr Sun Kai Dah, George 3/4 2/2 11
Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles (appointed on 1st April 2008) Not Applicable
BESEE (RZFEENFOA—HEZE) 5@ A
Mr Li Kwok Heem, John (resigned on 31st March 2008) 3/4 2/2 11

FEMEE (R-FENF=ZA=+—HFET)

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
relationships with each other save for the father-son relationship between
Dr Chow Yei Ching and Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar. Each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors has confirmed in writing his
independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

BRETHETEEARELEERXFIN BEFEK
BRMEYE (7% SEREMBER SBIIE
HITEEERBLTARUE BGRATCHAEBT
A S R
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Since the Board is involved in the appointment of new Directors, the
Company has not established a Nomination Committee. The Board will
take into consideration criteria such as expertise, experience, integrity
and commitment when considering new director appointments. All
candidates must also meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and
3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director should also meet the independence
criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company, all Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of
the Company. New Directors appointed by the Board during the year are
required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at the annual
general meeting or general meeting immediately following their
appointments. Further, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors, or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third are required to retire from office by
rotation and no later than the third annual general meeting since the last
re-election or appointment of such Director. Currently, all Independent
Non-Executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term.

Appointment and resignation of Executive Directors and Independent Non-
Executive Directors were considered and confirmed at an Executive
Committee meeting of the Company on 24th September 2007 with the
attendance of Mr Kuok Hoi Sang and Mr Kan Ka Hon and by full Board
on 1st April 2008.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The CG Code provision stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same person. The Chairman and Managing Director of the Company is Dr
Chow Yei Ching and the Group Managing Director is Mr Kuok Hoi Sang.
The role of the Chairman is separate from that of the Group Managing
Director. The Chairman is responsible for overseeing the functioning of
the Board while the Group Managing Director is responsible for managing
the Group’s businesses.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 1998 with written terms of
reference. Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles, Independent Non-Executive
Director, was appointed Chairman of the committee on 1st April 2008 to
succeed Mr Li Kwok Heem, John after his resignation as Independent
Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the committee on 31st March
2008. They are qualified accountants with extensive experience in financial
reporting and controls. Other members include all other Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely, Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph and Mr
Sun Kai Dah, George. The Audit Committee is responsible for the
appointment of external auditors, review of the Group’s financial
information and oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system,
internal control procedures and risk management frameworks. It is also
responsible for reviewing the interim and final results of the Group prior
to recommending them to the Board for approval. Its terms of reference
are accessible on the Company’s website, http://www.chevalier.com.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31st
March 2008. At the meetings, it reviewed the connected transactions (if
any), the interim results for the six months ended 30th September 2007
and last year’s final results for the year ended 31st March 2007, and has
reviewed with Management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed the auditing, internal controls,
financial reporting matters and risk management systems of the Group.
The final results for the year ended 31st March 2008 were reviewed by
the Audit Committee in its meeting held on 14th July 2008.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 10th March 2005 with
written terms of reference. Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph is the Chairman
of the committee. Other members of the committee include Messrs Yang
Chuen Liang, Charles (appointed on 1st April 2008), Li Kwok Heem, John
(resigned on 31st March 2008), Sun Kai Dah, George, Kuok Hoi Sang and
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
reviewing and determining the compensation and benefits of the Directors
and senior management of the Company. Its terms of reference are
accessible on the Company’s website, http://www.chevalier.com.

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting during the year ended 31st
March 2008 to review the remuneration packages paid to Directors and
Senior Management for the year ended 31st March 2008.
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing
its business strategies and managing the daily operations of the Group’s
business to an Executive Committee which was established in 1991.
Members of the Executive Committee comprise 6 Executive Directors,
namely Dr Chow Yei Ching, Messrs Kuok Hoi Sang, Tam Kwok Wing,
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Ho Chung Leung and Ho Sai Hou.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls in the Group. During the year, the Board has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control,
covering financial, operational, compliance control and risk management
functions. The Group's system of internal control includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority, and is designed to help
the Group achieve its business objectives, safeguard its assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant laws
and regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to manage
rather than eliminate all risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems
and in the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring the internal
controls of the Group and reports directly to the Chairman. It has
unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group’s activities and
internal controls. It also conducts special audits of areas of concern
identified by Management or the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit
Department adopts a risk-based audit approach. All audited reports are
circulated to the Audit Committee and key management. The Internal
Audit Department is also responsible for following up the implementation
of recommendations and corrective actions. The Audit Committee has
free and direct access to the Head of Internal Audit Department without
reference to the Chairman or Management.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2008 on a going
concern basis.

The Auditor of the Company acknowledge their reporting responsibilities
in the Auditor’s Report on the financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2008 as set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on page
49 to 50.
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AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

During the financial year ended 31st March 2008, the fees paid/payable
to the auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the
auditors to the Group were as follows:

Nature of services

BB 2 B &
BE-TTN\F=A=+—-ALYMBELR HA
EEEHAIEH 2 BRI ERBE RN
PN BB S T -

Amount (HK$'000)

REME SEBE TR
Audit services — PricewaterhouseCoopers % R 75 —EERKEEERIEBAT 6,190
— other auditors —Efb & 5HaD 4,046
Non-audit services — PricewaterhouseCoopers EZHRY - BERKEBESITRMEEA 865
— other auditors —EMg5tED 2,139

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, each of the Directors
confirmed that he has complied with the Model Code throughout the
year.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

To enhance the community relations, the Group has participated different
charitable and voluntary organisations in various community activities.
During the year, the Harmony Garden, managed by our subsidiary was
awarded “The Progressive Award (Residential Building)” in the Caring
Environment Recognition Scheme 2007 for raising the awareness of a
barrier-free environment. In addition, the Group has been supporting a
variety of charitable activities of the community such as “The Community
Chest Corporate Challenge” organised by the Community Chest of Hong
Kong, “The Community Chest Sports Corporate Challenge” to raise funds
for 23 social welfare organisations for children and youth services and
Chevalier Blood Donation Day, the blood donation program organised by
the Hong Kong Red Cross.

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Group’s senior management maintains close communications with
investors, analysts, fund managers and the media by various channels
including individual interviews and meetings. The Group also responds
promptly to request for information and queries from the investors.

The Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting
the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’ meetings to
communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or
Management directly.

The Company provides extensive information of the Group timely to the
shareholders and the public through the publication of interim and annual
reports, circulars, notices and announcements. The financial and other
information relating to the Group is disclosed on the Company’s website,
http://www.chevalier.com.
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The Directors present to shareholders their annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for
the year ended 31st March 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities are shown on pages 144 to 156.

The Group's revenue and results for the year ended 31st March 2008
analysed by business and geographical segments are set out in note 40
to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2008 are set out
in the consolidated income statement. An interim dividend of HK$0.16
per share was paid on Wednesday, 9th January 2008. The Directors now
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.29 per share.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of qualifying for the proposed final dividend and
determining the identity of the shareholders entitled to attend and vote
at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday,
26th September 2008, the Register of Members of the Company will be
closed from Tuesday, 23rd September 2008 to Friday, 26th September
2008, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected. To qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Branch Share Registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard
Limited of 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on Monday, 22nd September
2008.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set out in
note 35 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the share option scheme to subscribe for shares in the
Company during the year are set out in note 46 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

As at 31st March 2008, the Company'’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders amounted to HK$771,745,000 (2007: HK$933,828,000)
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in investment properties of the Group during the year are set
out in note 14 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings and other loans of the Group as at 31st
March 2008 are set out in notes 33 and 34 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group is shown on pages 2 to 3.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's revenue and purchases of the year attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers respectively were less than 30%.
None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (whom to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or five
largest customers.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties of the Group as at 31st March 2008
are set out on pages 29 to 33.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31st March 2008, the Group employed approximately 4,900 full
time staff globally. Total staff costs amounted to approximately HK$965
million for the year ended 31st March 2008. The remuneration policies
are reviewed periodically on the basis of the nature of job, market trend,
company performance and individual performance. Other staff benefits
include bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis, medical schemes,
retirement schemes and employees’ share option scheme.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made donations of HK$1,290,000 to charitable
bodies.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws although there are no restriction against such rights under the laws
in Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of the
Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Yei Ching

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang

Mr TAM Kwok Wing

Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar
Mr HO Chung Leung

Mr HO Sai Hou

Mr FUNG Pak Kwan

Mr KAN Ka Hon

(Chairman and Managing Director)
(Vice Chairman and Managing Director)
(Deputy Managing Director)

(appointed on 1st April 2008)
(resigned on 1st October 2007)
(resigned on 31st March 2008)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph
Mr SUN Kai Dah, George

Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles
Mr LI Kwok Heem, John

(appointed on 1st April 2008)
(resigned on 31st March 2008)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Messrs HO Sai Hou, YANG
Chuen Liang, Charles and SUN Kai Dah, George shall retire from office at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and they, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election. The Independent Non-Executive Directors
are subject to the same retirement requirements as the Executive Directors.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Dr CHOW Yei Ching, Messrs KUOK Hoi Sang, TAM Kwok Wing, CHOW
Vee Tsung, Oscar, FUNG Pak Kwan and KAN Ka Hon are interested in
certain contracts in that they are the Directors and/or have beneficial
interests in CPHL.

Save as aforementioned, no other contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
had a material interest subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors have an interest in any business
constituting a competing business to the Group.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES
As at 31st March 2008, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporation, within
the meaning of Part XV of Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"),
which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be recorded
in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to S352 of the SFO
or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

(a)

Interests in the Company - Shares

EERFETHRAEZRSES

R-ZENF=ZR=+—HB ARAEEREELT
BABRARAREBBH AR (EERESFRNE
0 (TEFREEGRDI]) BXVER) Z ki 8RR
D REFTAEECREREFREKRIIEXVEEE
IRFSHHMEARFARBI Mz ERZRER (B
BARAFEFRE Ll &5 MG RINIE I A
FRIEEB 2 RRARER)  RMALERHERIRE
EHERPEGIEINGREATHFEZERLMA
ZHEBRRER IREBERETIAMNG KNAF R
Tz ERRERNT:

() X7 #Es - RO

Number of ordinary shares

ZERROEE

Approximate

Personal Family percentage

Name of Directors Capacity interests interests Total of interest

EEEH

EEEB & 5 PN Rk R B Bot

(%)

CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 154,682,359* - 154,682,359 55.52
& 71 9 BERBEB A

KUOK Hoi Sang Beneficial owner 98,216 - 98,216 0.04
8 E BEREAA

TAM Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 169,015 32,473 201,488 0.07
=S BERBEB A

HO Chung Leung Beneficial owner 40,000 - 40,000 0.01
] R R BEREAA

KAN Ka Hon Beneficial owner 29,040 - 29,040 0.01
5 52 &9 BERBEB A

* Dr CHOW Yei Ching beneficially owned 154,682,359 shares of the
Company, representing approximately 55.52% of the issued share
capital of the Company. These shares were same as those shares

disclosed in the section
Securities” below.

“Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in

* B E B 25355 154,682,359 & A 7%
19 AR AR PN 4955.52% © :ZERMDETER
[FERFzFHER] Mt 2RO ER -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES (continued)

(b) Interests in Associated Corporation — Shares

BEENFTETHRAEZESES 5)
(Z) HBATRES - BB

Number of ordinary shares

EERROHE
Approximate
Associated Personal Corporate Family percentage
Name of Directors corporation Capacity interests interests interests Total of interest
BEER
EZER HEAR 5% fBARR AR EH FhER By Ak
(%)
CHOW Yei Ching CPHL Interest of controlled - 118,846,933* - 118,846,933 55.14
corporation
EpL ELizd RAHARz RH
KUOK Hoi Sang CPHL Beneficial owner 2,400,000 - - 2,400,000 1.1
REE ELZd BEREBA
TAM Kwok Wing CPHL Beneficial owner 400,000 - 10,400 410,400 0.19
BE K ELizd EREEA
KAN Ka Hon CPHL Beneficial owner 451,200 - - 451,200 0.21
e ELZd BEREBA

* Dr CHOW Yei Ching had notified CPHL that under the SFO, he was
deemed to be interested in 118,846,933 shares in CPHL which were
all held by the Company as Dr Chow beneficially owned 154,682,359
shares, representing approximately 55.52% of the issued share capital
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above and in “Share Option Schemes” below, as at
31st March 2008, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company, no other person has interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which he is taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO); or are required, pursuant to S352 of the
SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or are required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

A share option scheme of the Company (the “CIHL Scheme") was approved
by the shareholders of the Company on 20th September 2002. Another
share option scheme of CPHL, the subsidiary of the Company (the “CPHL
Scheme”) was also approved by the shareholders of CPHL and the
shareholders of the Company on 20th September 2002. The CIHL Scheme
and the CPHL Scheme fully comply with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
During the year, no share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the CIHL Scheme and the CPHL Scheme. There was no
outstanding option under the CIHL Scheme and the CPHL Scheme at the
beginning and at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was entered into or subsisted during the year.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Company and its Hong Kong subsidiaries were participating companies
in the Chevalier Group Staff Provident Fund Scheme (the “Scheme”) as
defined in the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance which is a
defined contribution retirement scheme. The Scheme was granted
exemption from Mandatory Provident Fund regulations by the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Authority and shall not open to new members
starting from 1st December 2000. Certain of the Company’s overseas
subsidiaries contribute to their local government’s central pension plans
for their employees. Contributions to the Scheme are made by both the
employers and the employees at the rate of 3.5% to 16% on the
employees’ salaries.

Pursuant to Government legislation, Bank Consortium Trust Company
Limited was selected by the Group as an alternative Mandatory Provident
Fund (the “MPF") service provider for employees of the Group who join
the Group from 1st December 2000. The MPF is available to the employees
aged 18 to 65 and with at least 60 days of service under the employment
of the Group in Hong Kong. Contributions are made by the Group at 5%
based on the staff's relevant income at a maximum of HK$20,000 per
month. The benefits are required by law to be preserved until the
retirement age of 65.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to the
consolidated income statement during the year amounted to
HK$39.0 million against which the forfeited contributions amounting to
HK$0.4 million have been deducted. There were forfeited contributions
amounting to HK$44,000 available at the year end date for the reduction
of future employer’s contributions.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES

FTERRZEFER

As at 31st March 2008, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief R-ZZEZENFZA=Z+—"H BEARREEREE

executives of the Company, the interests and short positions of the persons
or corporations in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
have been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under S336 of the SFO were as follows:

Substantial Shareholders

FERR

Capacity

=87

Number of
Shares held

FREE

Number of
underlying
shares held
(under equity
derivatives of
the Company)
SHEER S
YE(XKATH
THERB)

TERAEMA TFIA 50K B AR D R AR5 k48
BT REEAREES RN EGHIEXVIE2
3N BMBEXAARRRRE RALERARAR
BEFMBERIIFEI6HEFT ZREMAZEE
RERmT:

Approximate
percentage
of interest

BEBN
Bak
(%)

CHOW Yei Ching
JE 7T 48D

MIYAKAWA Michiko
BIXEF

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Goldman Sachs (UK) L.L.C.

Goldman Sachs Group Holdings

(U.K.)

Goldman Sachs Holdings (U.K.)

Goldman Sachs International

The Goldman, Sachs & Co. L.L.C.

Goldman Sachs & Co

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008

Beneficial owner

E&EBEEA

Beneficial owner

EmBEAA

Interest of controlled
corporation
SR | NI 3

Interest of controlled
corporation

gk N

Interest of controlled
corporation
RESDE S

Interest of controlled
corporation
RES AT 2R

Beneficial owner

EmlEA A

Interest of controlled
corporation
RES A E S

Beneficial owner

EmEEA

154,682,359(L)

154,682,359(L)
(Note 1) (Bf&£1)

3,001,888(L)
(Note 4) (Ff it 4)

3,001,888(L)
(Note 4) (Kt i£4)

26,993,989(L)
2,306,933(S)
(Note 2) (fit7F2)

23,992,101(L)
2,306,933(S)
(Note 3) (Kf5£3)

23,992,101(L)
2,306,933(S)
(Note 3) (Bf#£3)

23,992,101(L)
2,306,933(S)
(Note 3) (fit7#3)

23,992,101(L)
2,306,933(S)
(Note 3) (Kf5£3)

55.52(L)

55.52(L)

9.69(L)
0.83(S)

8.61(L)
0.83(S)

8.61(L)
0.83(S)

8.61(L)
0.83(S)

8.61(L)
0.83(S)

1.08(L)

1.08(L)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Notes:

(1)

(2)

Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of Dr Chow, is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of 154,682,359 shares held by
Dr Chow.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is taken to have an interest in the 3,001,888
shares held by Goldman Sachs & Co and the 21,685,168 shares that would
be held by Goldman Sachs International upon full conversion of the
Convertible Bonds (as defined below) held by Goldman Sachs International.
The Convertible Bonds are issued by the Company to Goldman Sachs
International on 26th July 2006. Goldman Sachs & Co and Goldman Sachs
International are both wholly-owned subsidiaries of The Goldman Sachs
Group, Inc.

Goldman Sachs (UK) L.L.C., Goldman Sachs Group Holdings (U.K.) and
Goldman Sachs Holdings (U.K.) are taken to be interested in the 21,685,168
shares that would be held by Goldman Sachs International upon full
conversion of the Convertible Bonds. Goldman Sachs International is 99%
owned by Goldman Sachs Holdings (U.K.) and 100% held by Goldman Sachs
Group Holdings (U.K.) and Goldman Sachs (UK) L.L.C.

The Goldman, Sachs & Co. L.L.C. is taken to be interested in the 3,001,888
shares held by Goldman Sachs & Co. Goldman Sachs & Co is owned as to
99.8% by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and the remaining 0.2% by The
Goldman, Sachs & Co. L.L.C. (which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.).

The letter “L” denotes a long position and the letter “S” denotes a short position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2008, so far as is known to the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company, no other person has
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations which were required

to be

disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3

of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under $336 of the SFO, or, were directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
the Company.

FTERF2EFELHFER 8
Wt -

(1) WREEFHRBEEMEXVE ABEL2BEEBE)IE
BTLAtHEAEEZSEHAB I HEAZ
154,682,3598% B {7 °

(2) Goldman Sachs & Co# %A 3,001,888 ik 7 &
Goldman Sachs International#% & 21,685, 168% A] i1
BREHF (R T - ARARZZERFLAZ
TARNAETZABRRKES T Goldman Sachs
International ° The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.#% %
BEEZERHM 2 Goldman Sachs & Cok
Goldman Sachs International?j & The Goldman
Sachs Group, Inc.#) 2 & i & A & -

(3) Goldman Sachs Internationali% 521,685,168 7] #
fi% f& % > Goldman Sachs (UK) L.L.C. * Goldman Sachs
Group Holdings (U.K.) % Goldman Sachs Holdings
(U.K)ER BT A Z SR 2 # 2% ° Goldman Sachs
Holdings (U.K.)#f & Goldman Sachs International
99% % # : i1 Goldman Sachs Group Holdings (U.K.)
K Goldman Sachs (UK) L.L.C.# & Goldman Sachs
International 100% % #

(4) Goldman Sachs & Co¥ 4 3,001,888/% % 17 ; i The
Goldman, Sachs & Co. LLC.HER ABFEZEKMD -
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. % The Goldman,
Sachs & Co. L.L.C.% BI#§ % Goldman Sachs & Co
99.8% % 0.2% ° The Goldman, Sachs & Co. L.L.C.A
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.89 & &K B 2 7
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ARRANGEMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Except for the share option schemes adopted by the Company and CPHL,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of the Company are committed to maintain high standards of
corporate governance. The Company has complied throughout the year
ended 31st March 2008 with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, with exception of deviation.
Detailed information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is
set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained on pages 34 to 39
of the Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Board, the percentage of the Company’s
share which are in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued shares as at 16th July 2008, the latest practicable
date to ascertain such information prior to the issue of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 16th July 2008

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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Independent Auditor’s Report

8 M % BE R

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chevalier
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 156, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31st March 2008, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Company Act 1981 of
Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
March 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 16 July 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

mEWlEE

For the year ended 31st March 2008 & ZE —_EZE NF=A=+—HILFE

2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
B 5 BT BT

Revenue & 5 5,568,678 4,665,237
Cost of sales & AR (4,885,395) (3,911,145)
Gross profit £ 683,283 754,092
Other (expense)/income, net Hiph () A FE 6 (101,450) 120,465
Other gains, net Efb iz FHE 7 422,382 100,307
Selling and distribution costs B8 RAS IR AR (386,864) (342,131)
Administrative expenses TR H (125,925) (118,694)
Operating profit 5 5 A 491,426 514,039
Share of results of associates FriG Bt e AR A 27,258 5,263
Share of results of jointly BT A& £ 8] 42 1)

controlled entities EEE 2,909 (3,159)

521,593 516,143
Finance income B IS A 8 16,420 14,263
Finance costs M%ER 8 (126,043) (122,356)
Finance costs, net BB ER FE 8 (109,623) (108,093)
Profit before taxation B B A& A 9 411,970 408,050
Income tax expenses Bz 10 (112,811) (66,853)
Profit for the year AN i 299,159 341,197
Attributable to: e :
Equity holders of the Company RARIRERE A 230,747 317,869
Minority interests DY R S 68,412 23,328
299,159 341,197

Dividends % & 11 125,362 139,291
Earnings per share BREF

— Basic (HK$ per share) —ER(BRAEE) 12 0.83 1.14

— Diluted (HK$ per share) — 5 (BRAK) 12 0.77 1.04
The notes on pages 58 to 156 are integral parts of these consolidated Fo8BEEI1S6B NI EGEAMBREZEK
financial statements. il




Consolidated Balance Sheet
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2008 2007
—BENFE —ETLF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5% BET T BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE

Investment properties "EME 14 1,117,445 523,644
Property, plant and equipment M- HWEREZE 15 769,438 729,167
Prepaid lease payments e E R E 17 446,018 455,239
Goodwill S 18 210,330 210,330
Other intangible assets HmEREE 19 161,044 158,864
Interests in associates Frih B & AR 2 s 21 172,818 137,084
Interests in jointly controlled entities FrictRAEHCE 2R 22 264,745 239,511
Available-for-sale investments AHEMNERE 23 293,224 182,298

Investments at fair value through REERIREARE

profit or loss BRENEE 28 134,005 303,195
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 38 25,438 8,744
Other non-current assets HiIERBEE 16 403,187 24,448

3,997,692 2,972,524
Current assets RENEE
Inventories "E 24 338,717 304,385
Properties for sale HEmME 25 258,945 461,159
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWIR K- 7 H iR & RIER RIE 26 1,450,026 1,165,974
Amounts due from associates JE s B 2 R R IR 3K 21 19,273 17,175
Amounts due from jointly JE Ui 2k (R 4% o) £ 2

controlled entities R 3K 22 240,820 259,559
Amounts due from customers REHNTIRRERER

for contract work W ER 2 k38 27 312,422 343,849
Investments at fair value through REERIREARE

profit or loss BRENEE 28 760,218 1,000,758
Derivative financial instruments THEMBIA 29 9,460 42,831
Bank balances and cash RITHEGFTREAS 30 1,191,145 722,998

4,581,026 4,318,688
Current liabilities RENB &
Creditors, bills payable, FERER ERNEE-

deposits and accruals GAESRTBIRER 31 1,321,692 1,178,146
Unearned insurance premiums RKmEA R &

— due within one year ——F R H 26,503 32,174
Outstanding insurance claims RRRBRE 32 215,572 255,337
Amounts due to associates FE ST BSE &8 R BIIR K 21 5,926 3,429
Amounts due to customers REHNTIRRERER

for contract work Y2 A 27 260,681 208,113
Deferred income B WA 24,484 21,372
Provision for taxation R EE 71,465 86,009
Derivative financial instruments THEMBIAE 29 38,930 2,628
Bank borrowings SRITER 33 723,584 815,066
Other loans H & 3 34 315 256
Other payable H A BT 37 7,760 -

2,696,912 2,602,530
Net current assets RBEEFE 1,884,114 1,716,158
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAE 5,881,806 4,688,682

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008




Consolidated Balance Sheet
REEEERBR

As at 31st March 2008 WM -_ZZNE=HA=+—H

2008 2007
—EENF —ZETLEF
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
B 5 BT BETIT
Capital and reserves B K
Share capital & A 35 348,228 348,228
Reserves ®®E 36 2,973,919 2,645,093
Equity attributable to equity RAGREREE A
holders of the Company JEAE 3,322,147 2,993,321
Minority interests DHRRER 445,036 322,196
Total equity R 3,767,183 3,315,517
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Other payable H M FE 3R 37 - 7,079
Unearned insurance premiums KmHRE &

— due over one year —ilBE—F 11,357 13,789
Deferred tax liabilities BEBIEEE 38 206,231 113,487
Bank borrowings RITIE R 33 1,511,621 856,275
Other loans H At & 5% 34 1,384 1,445
Convertible bonds - liability component mRES -8 &S 39 381,275 354,423
Convertible bonds — derivative component ARBRES - TETEDBS 39 2,755 26,667

2,114,623 1,373,165
Total equity and non-current liabilities BRERRIRBES 5,881,806 4,688,682

Approved by the Board of Directors on 16th July 2008 and signed on its

behalf by :

KUOK Hoi Sang
}EE
Director

EF

The notes on pages 58 to 156 are integral parts of these consolidated

financial statements.

REZEN_TTZN\FLA+ AL XH T

EERREE:

CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar

BA#IE
Director

EF

FE8EE156 B ZME M FERA P B MK 2 AKX

BARAA
NEF R




Balance Sheet
EEAER

As at 31st March 2008 R —_ZEZEZNE=A=+—H
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2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries Fria Ml B ARz s 20 1,485,525 1,821,820
Available-for-sale investments AHENIKRE 23 199,784 105,219
Investments at fair value through profit or loss RIBHIRIE A ABEREMNIRE 28 - 30,045
Other intangible assets H@\EEE 599 599
1,685,908 1,957,683
Current assets REBEE
Debtors, deposits and EUIES  FHiEe R
prepayments SEENE e 26 18,811 6,683
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE B B A RIIR K 20 2,223,157 1,407,098
Amounts due from associates JE L B 2 A &) R 3K 13 72
Investments at fair value through profit or loss RIBRHIRIE AL BREMHRE 28 503,721 543,444
Derivative financial instruments THEMBIE 29 8,381 40,780
Prepaid tax SEENEITE N 1,108 -
Bank balances and cash BITBHETFRRAE 30 120,541 121,298
2,875,732 2,119,375
Current liabilities nEBAE
Creditors, deposits and ERIESR FAKRS R
accruals TEIRER 31 7,322 9,019
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAST BT B A RIIR K 20 1,095,855 886,370
Derivative financial instruments PTHEMBLIA 29 38,914 2,567
Other payable H i FE TR 37 7,760 -
Bank borrowings RITIERK 33 158,270 475,000
1,308,121 1,372,956
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,567,611 746,419
Total assets less current liabilities BREERRBDAE 3,253,519 2,704,102
Capital and reserves BEXRFEE
Share capital & A 35 348,228 348,228
Reserves # 36 1,220,258 1,363,069
Equity attributable to equity holders of RARRERFEA
the Company FEIEER 1,568,486 1,711,297
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Other payable H A FE 3R 37 - 7,079
Bank borrowings RITE N 33 1,253,000 557,000
Convertible bonds - liability component ARRES-BEXS 39 428,933 398,726
Convertible bonds — derivative component AmKRES - ITETARS 39 3,100 30,000
1,685,033 992,805
Total equity and non-current liabilities BEZRERBEE 3,253,519 2,704,102

Approved by the Board of Directors on 16th July 2008 and signed on its

behalf by :

KUOK Hoi Sang
BEE
Director

BF

The notes on pages 58 to 156 are integral parts of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREEE

For the year ended 31st March 2008 B Z —_ZZNF=ZA=+—HILFE

Equity
attributable
to equity
holders of Minority
the Company interests Total equity
AATRE LERR
BEAEGER R BmEER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BETIT
At 1st April 2006 RZZEZRNFMNA—H 2,720,794 266,897 2,987,691
Exchange difference on translation of ~ B E/EGINHE QA
operations of overseas subsidiaries, /NS DN e
associates and jointly controlled ENEBMELEZ
entities ME X 7 R 68,633 7,117 75,750
Change in fair value of AEENREZ
available-for-sale investments AREZE 4,768 - 4,768
Share of property revaluation of pal (i RN
an associate SR 15,821 - 15,821
Total income recognised directly in equity BEERERER 2 WA L5 89,222 7,117 96,339
Profit for the year F =R 317,869 23,328 341,197
Total recognised income for the year FEDHERBARE 407,091 30,445 437,536
Dividends paid AR E (139,291) - (139,291)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders B 1 F 2 8% R A% 5 - (5,989) (5,989)
Acquisition of additional interests WEMBARZ
in subsidiaries EEHME - (9,076) (9,076)
Contribution by minority MiE AR D HRR
shareholders of a subsidiary Z & - 44,646 44,646
Dilution of interest in a subsidiary NP INCIE: o - 1 4,727 (4,727) -
At 31st March 2007 RZZET+HF=A=+—H 2,993,321 322,196 3,315,517
Exchange difference on translation of B E/EGINHE QA
operations of overseas subsidiaries, /NS DS R o R o
associates and jointly controlled MEBMEEZ
entities & H ZRE 180,824 4,803 185,627
Change in fair value of AHENKREZ
available-for-sale investments AR 36,344 - 36,344
Total income recognised directly in equity E# R #Em R 2 WA B8 217,168 4,803 221,971
Profit for the year F 2 5 A 230,747 68,412 299,159
Total recognised income for the year FREOERMALE 447,915 73,215 521,130
Dividends paid ERKRE (128,148) - (128,148)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders B 1FF 4 8% R % 8 - (7,886) (7,886)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wb —FE BB A A - 7,428 7,428
Placement of shares of a subsidiary & —FME Qa2 R7
(note 36(b)) (B 7% 36(b)) - 92,046 92,046
Dilution of interest in a subsidiary NSRS INCIE: o - 1
(note 36(b)) (P 5 36(b)) 13,566 (13,566) -
Acquisition of additional interests WK B AR 2 EiMER
in subsidiaries (note 36(c)) (P 5E36(c)) (2,330) (30,574) (32,904)
Premium on acquisition of U B Bt B X R) BB A
further interest of B2 mE
subsidiaries (note 36(d)) (P 5 36(d)) (2,177) 2,177 -
At 31st March 2008 RZZEZTNF=ZA=+—H 3,322,147 445,036 3,767,183

The notes on pages 58 to 156 are integral parts of these consolidated
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financial statements. bt
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GeReRBx

For the year ended 31st March 2008 # &

—2ENFZA=T-ALFE

56

2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T BT

Cash generated from operations REEEZES 50 595,457 550,125
Interest paid EATFLE (99,191) (103,005)
Profits tax and Mainland China income tax paid E%ZH ﬂ S8R B R FT 1S5 (66,286) (56,709)
Profits tax refund FERIER 7,507 10,848
Net cash inflow from operating REREEK RS

activities BRA 437,487 401,259
Investing activities REXK
Interest received 2 g 16,420 14,263
Dividends received from associates EH&ZE@?% NAIZKE 4,750 2,500
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME BEREE (112,231) (157,102)
Purchase of investment property BEREME (7,799) -
Purchase of prepaid lease payments BEEMNBEERE - (699)
Deposits paid for property development XA A E Wi‘ﬂﬁﬂ%

projects in Mainland China BRIER & (372,534) -
Expenditure on other intangible assets SNEMEREE (3,780) (11,606)
Dividends received from listed investments EWiEHz R EWA 11,079 9,260
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE. J'r‘?ﬁ%& =P

plant and equipment, and prepaid T HEER

lease payments F 1§ %8 32,110 37,575
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties H & & & ¥ ¥ F718 308 3,807 -
Proceeds on disposal of other intangible assets & /\1“@,39}/%?@%%& KB 929 2,812
Proceeds from disposal of jointly controlled & KA %‘Jm%

entities BIESE ! - 45,706
Payments to acquire additional WRE T 8 A RN E =

interests in subsidiaries Z (32,904) (10,248)
Investments in associates 1% & B X A (9.621) (80,599)
Net cash inflow from acquisition of U B8 — R B B 2 B B 3] 2k

a subsidiary ZBHEBFRA 8,587 -
Net (advances to)/receipts from mEEE N (FTEZ2 ER)

associates H&HXZ)% WA (1,933) 24,032
Net receipts from/(advances to) to jointly HE b W 2 F R

controlled entities (Fﬁf’EZ%m) 44,992 (98,141)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments BATLENKRE (74,736) (62,881)
Net cash outflow from REREXEKZ

investing activities BeF Rt (492,864) (285,128)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow before MEXEKAZESF

financing activities (Rd) T (55,377) 116,131
Financing activities mEER
Dividends paid BERRE (128,148) (139,291)
Dividends paid to minority =EN] f‘ﬁ% DERR

shareholders of subsidiaries 2 (7.886) (5,989)
Drawdown of bank and other loans }EHX%E(T & 3R E {8 3K 3,206,039 1,337,177
Repayment of bank and other loans BERRITERREMER (2,683,686) (1,672,336)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits WA (Em ERRFEAKES 17,228 (9,549)
Issuance of convertible bonds BITABRRES - 384,085
Proceeds from placement of & — B AR ZR’RG

shares of a subsidiary FT 18 3018 92,046 44,646
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from REBMEXKZ2REF

financing activities RA GRE) 495,593 (61,257)

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GEBRETREE

For the year ended 31st March 2008 B Z —_ZZNF=ZA=+—HILFE

2008 2007
ZEEBNF —ZETLEF
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
B 5 BT BETIT
Increase in cash and cash ReREFRSEM
equivalents 440,216 54,874
Cash and cash equivalents REDZEER
at beginning of the year SREE 697,081 620,294
Effect of changes in foreign ExggooE
exchange rates 44,900 21,913
Cash and cash equivalents RE#KZEER
at end of the year ZREE 1,182,197 697,081
Analysis of balances of cash and REREFAREDN
cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash ROEFRES 30 1,191,145 722,998
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 33 (2,671) (2,412)
Pledged deposits BHEBFER (6,277) (23,505)
1,182,197 697,081

The notes on pages 58 to 156 are integral parts of these consolidated FES8EZEIS6E CWE I EREMBHRE AKX
financial statements. B 5o




Notes to the Financial Statements
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Chevalier International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public
listed company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are Canon'’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12,
Bermuda and 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang
Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong respectively. The Company has
its shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while
the activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 51 to
the financial statements.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which
is the same as the functional currency of the Company. These
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 16th July 2008.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"). The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment properties, available-for-sale investments,
financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements,
are disclosed in note 4.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER R M AT

(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

In current year, the Group has applied the following new standard,
amendment and interpretations (“new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), which
are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning 1st April 2007

(a)

ERSHTHEME @

mEER (8)

RAFE AEBERBATLETIGHR
oz T EAREE 2 EREBR 2L &
AhEB(IMEEMBRSER]) TR
TELFNA - ARG ZAEERREEE

and relevant to the Group’s operations.

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
BAGIEAFE 1R (BET)
HKFRS 7
BAVBREENETR
HK(IFRIC) — Int 8

X (BRMBERREZES
HK(IFRIC) — Int 9

B (ERMKERREZE
HK(IFRIC) — Int 10

B (BRMBERREZS
HK(IFRIC) — Int 11

BEX (BRWHESRREZES) —2BF115%

S

) —ZBESHR

%

) —REEIR

8

) —EZBEI109

Ao

Capital Disclosures

B

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

eRMIAE:-#E

Scope of HKFRS 2

EEMBRELENE2HF &

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
ETET R 2 EHNMA

Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

W BB S R RORE

HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions

BEEMBREENERE - SEEREFRHRXS

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how
the results and financial position for the current or prior accounting
periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior
period adjustment has been required.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards have been published and are mandatory and relevant for
the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1st April
2008 or later periods, but the Group has not early adopted them.

- HKAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of Financial Statements”
(effective from 1st January 2009). HKAS 1 (Revised) requires
all owner changes in equity to be presented in a statement
of changes in equity. All comprehensive income is presented
in one statement of comprehensive income or in two
statements (a separate income statement and a statement of
comprehensive income). It requires presenting a statement of
financial position as at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period in a complete set of financial statements
when there are retrospective adjustments or reclassification
adjustments. However, it does not change the recognition,
measurement or disclosure of specific transactions and other
events required by other HKFRSs. The Group will apply HKAS
1 (Revised) from 1st April 2009.
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AEERAE S BRI EZERY BN F
HREHRTAALEBEREAZE Bt HA
FAUAFE BRI VR L A o

AEENBEE_TTNENA - ARAKH
et HEIBRRARRATINE M2
EAHWRTEAZ BT RRE EAEET
ER PR

—  BEEFEEIR (BEF) - [#B
Hrz2WAAN] (BE=FThE—A
—BEAR) -FEGHEMNF IR (K
Bzl BRE2HEEEZHEREZIHMN
RAZHRATUER-FAEEERA
AE—DEARARIMNODBEA (—
NEBRERE —MDEASKRAR) TR
EH-MRETRECLETENRAER
ENOBAER AE-OHRKRFZL
BRI G 2 TR BIREAN2BY B
AR = IR0 L TRAE AT I & B 4R
Ht BB BRSLRMRELHER
SFREMBB 2R FAEHWE-KNE
Ee —ZTNFOA-BRBRAE
BEFHERIE R (BERT) -

EtEGEEERAT |
TT N




Notes to the Financial Statements

B IR R M =

60

(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

HKAS 23 (Revised), “Borrowing Costs” (effective from 1st
January 2009). The amendment requires an entity to capitalise
borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset (one that
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for use or
sale) as part of the cost of that asset. The option of
immediately expensing those borrowing costs will be removed.
The Group will apply HKAS 23 (Revised) from 1st April 2009.
The amendment has no material impact on the Group's
accounting policies as the Group's existing accounting policy
on borrowing costs complies with the amended requirements.

HKAS 27 (Revised), “Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements” (effective from 1st July 2009). The amendment
requires non-controlling interests (i.e. minority interests) to
be presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from the equity of the
owners of the parent. Total comprehensive income must be
attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Changes in a parent’s
ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in the
loss of control are accounted for within equity. When control
of a subsidiary is lost, the assets and liabilities and related
equity components of the former subsidiary are derecognised.
Any gain or loss is recognised in the income statement. Any
investment retained in the former subsidiary is measured at
its fair value at the date when control is lost. The Group will
apply HKAS 27 (Revised) from 1st April 2010.

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments, “Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation” (effective
from 1st January 2009). The amendment requires some
puttable financial instruments and some financial instruments
that impose on the entity an obligation to deliver to another
party a pro rata share of the net assets of the entity only on
liguidation to be classified as equity. The Group will apply
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments from 1st April 2009, but
it is not expected to have any impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

HKFRS 2 Amendment, “Share-based Payment Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations” (effective from 1st January
2009). The amendment clarifies the definition of “vesting
conditions” and specifies the accounting treatment of
“cancellations” by the counterparty to a share-based payment
arrangement. Vesting conditions are service conditions (which
require a counterparty to complete a specified period of
service) and performance conditions (which require a specified
period of service and specified performance targets to be
met) only. All “non-vesting conditions” and vesting conditions
that are market conditions shall be taken into account when
estimating the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
All cancellations are accounted for as an acceleration of
vesting and the amount that would otherwise have been
recognised over the remainder of the vesting period is
recognised immediately. The Group will apply HKFRS 2
Amendment from 1st April 2009, but it is not expected to
have any impact on the Group’s accounts.

HKFRS 3 (Revised), “Business Combination”, (effective from
1st July 2009). The amendment may bring more transactions
into acquisition accounting as combinations by contract alone
and combinations of mutual entities are brought into the
scope of the standard and the definition of a business has
been amended slightly. It now states that the elements are
“capable of being conducted” rather than “are conducted
and managed”. It requires considerations (including contingent
consideration), each identifiable asset and liability to be
measured at its acquisition-date fair value, except leases and
insurance contracts, reacquired right, indemnification assets
as well as some assets and liabilities required to be measured
in accordance with other HKFRSs. They are income tax
expenses, employee benefits, share-based payment and non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued operations. Any
non-controlling interest in an acquiree is measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets. The Group will
apply HKFRS 3 (Revised) from 1st April 2010.
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(a)

(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

- HKFRS 8, “Operating Segments” (effective from 1st January
2009). HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS 14. The new standard requires
a ‘'management approach’, under which segment information
is presented on the same basis as that used for internal
reporting purposes. The Group will apply HKFRS 8 from 1st
April 2009. The expected impact is still being assessed in
detail by management, but it appears that the manner in
which the segments are reported will not change significantly.

- HK(IFRIC) — Int 13, “Customer Loyalty Programmes” (effective
from 1st July 2008). HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 clarifies that where
goods or services are sold together with a customer loyalty
incentive (for example, loyalty points or free products), the
arrangement is a multiple-element arrangement and the
consideration receivable from the customer is allocated
between the components of the arrangement using fair values.
The Group will apply HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 from 1st April 2009.
The interpretation has no material impact on the Group’s
accounting policies as the Group'’s existing accounting policy
complies with the amended requirements.

The following interpretations to existing standards have been
published and are mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1st April 2008 or later periods but are not
relevant for the Group’s operations.

- HK(IFRIC) — Int 12, “Service Concession Arrangements”
(effective from 1st July 2008).

- HK(IFRIC) — Int 14, “HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit
Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction”
(effective from 1 January 2008).

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31st
March.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another
entity.
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(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets are presented separately from
the Group’s equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist
of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity since
the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in
excess of the minority's interest in the subsidiary’s equity are
allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent
that the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with minority as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from
minority interests, the difference between any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets
of the subsidiary is deducted from equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to minority interests are also recorded in equity.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the interests in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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(c)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill/discount on acquisitions

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, an associate or a
jointly controlled entity, representing the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant
subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity at the date of
acquisition, is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is
presented separately in the balance sheet. Capitalised goodwill
arising on an acquisition of an associate or a jointly controlled
entity is included in the cost of the investment of the relevant
associate or jointly controlled entity.

Separately recognised goodwill is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently if there is indication that goodwill might be
impaired. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included in
investments in respective associates and jointly controlled entity
and is tested for impairment as part of the overall balance. For the
purposes of impairment testing, separately recognised goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units (“CGUs"”), or groups of CGUs, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of
the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the
other assets of the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in the income statement. An impairment loss
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled
entity, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary,
an associate or a jointly controlled entity represents the excess of
the net fair value of an acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of the business combination and
is recognised immediately in the income statement.
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(c)

(d)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill/discount on acquisitions (continued)

Contingent liabilities of an acquiree are recognised at the date of
the acquisition if the fair value of the contingent liabilities can be
measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are initially measured at
fair value at the date of acquisition. At subsequent balance sheet
date, such contingent liabilities are measured at the higher of the
amount that would be recognised in accordance with Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets” and the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation, if appropriate

Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, interests in associates are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the profit or loss and of changes in
equity of the associate, less any identified impairment loss. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part
of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Where a Group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the relevant associate, except to the extent that
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case, the full amount of losses is recognised.
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(e)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures

Jointly controlled assets

When a Group entity undertakes its activities under joint venture
arrangements directly, constituted as jointly controlled assets, the
Group’s share of the jointly controlled assets and share of any
liabilities incurred jointly with other venturers are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements and classified according to their
natures. Liabilities and expenses incurred directly in respect of
interests in jointly controlled assets are accounted for on an accrual
basis.

Income from the sale or use of the Group's share of the output of
the jointly controlled assets, together with its share of any expenses
incurred, are recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to/from the Group.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled
entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, interests
in jointly controlled entities are carried in the consolidated balance
sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the jointly
controlled entities, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group's share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds
its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share of losses
is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the jointly controlled entities recognised at the date of
acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within
the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in the income statement.
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(e)

(f)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures (continued)

Jointly controlled entities (continued)

When a Group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of
the Group, unrealised profits or losses are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the relevant jointly controlled entity, except
to the extent that unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case, the full amount
of losses is recognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the balance
sheet when a Group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
the income statement.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in the
income statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is recognised
in income statement.
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(f)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into either financial
assets at fair value through profit and loss, loans and
receivables or available-for-sale investments. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace. The accounting
policies adopted in respect of each category of financial assets
are set out below:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories, including financial assets held for trading and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in the income statement in the period in
which they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including debtors,
amounts due from associates and jointly controlled entities
and bank balances) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses. An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.
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(f)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as any of the other
categories set out above. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognised in equity, until the financial asset is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed from
equity and recognised in the income statement. Any
impairment losses on available-for-sale investments are
recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses on
available-for-sale equity investments will not be reversed
through the income statement in subsequent periods. For
available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment losses.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
qguoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition. An impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of
the asset and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment losses will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.
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(f)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a Group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
other financial liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
financial liabilities held for trading on initial recognition. At
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in the income statement in the period in which they
arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank and other borrowings,
creditors and bills payable, amounts due to associates
amounts due to subsidiaries and other payable are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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(f)

(9)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(iii) Derivatives
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage
its exposure against currency risk and interest rate risk. Such
derivatives are measured at fair value. Changes in fair values
of such derivatives are recognised directly in the income
statement.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
separated from the relevant host contracts and deemed as
held-for-trading when the economic characteristics and risks
of the embedded derivatives are not closely related to those
of the host contracts, and the combined contracts are not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. In all other
circumstances, derivatives embedded are not separated and
are accounted for together with the host contracts in
accordance with appropriate standards. Where the Group
needs to separate an embedded derivative but is unable to
measure the embedded derivative, the entire combined
contracts are treated as held-for-trading.

(iv) Convertible bonds

The Group’'s convertible bonds issued with embedded
derivative features are split into liability and derivative
components. The initial carrying amount of the liability
component is the residual amount after separating the
embedded derivative. The liability component is subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The derivative component is remeasured at each
balance sheet date and any gains or losses arising from change
in the fair value are recognised in the income statement.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases
and buildings held under finance leases. Land held under operating
leases are classified and accounted for as investment property when
the rest of the definition of investment property is met. The
operating lease is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.
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(h)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment property is
carried at fair value. Fair value is determined by professional
valuation conducted as at the balance sheet date. Changes in fair
value are recognised in the income statement.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the carrying amount of the
asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of
the asset can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement as
part of the other gain net.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If an item
of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, any difference resulting between the
carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of
transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property, plant
and equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses
a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the income
statement.

Property, plant and equipment

(i)  Properties
Hotel properties, cold storage warehouses and other properties
held for own use are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided on the cost of the buildings on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 20 to
50 years or the remaining terms of the respective leases,
whichever is the shorter after considering the residual value.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEREHAHEBE@®
POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued) (h)y ME-BMERRZE (H)
(ii)  Plant and equipment (i) BERZE
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated WE REE R NERERFITER
depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation is provided 2HREBEIIR-MERREITE
to write off the cost of the plant and equipment over their DR ABEREZERBEMGETHOFIGRE
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis after taking B REGHERAFHRTILENE
into account their estimated residual value at the following BETFFR:
rates per annum:
Annual charge
BEFE
Pipe rehabilitation equipment BEBBARE 16.67%
Others E A 10% - 20%
Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their RREARERECEENIRESIRF
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. M RTE EEERgEEEMER-
The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an & SR v B E WG S EE T R EK
asset is determined as the difference between the sale HEREEMSRE EZEETE UE
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is W s 2k AR
recognised in the income statement.
Prepaid lease payments () EANHEERE
Prepaid lease payments represent upfront premium paid for land FENAERBR T T HMBN 2 HE-BNEE
cost. Prepaid lease payments are charged to income statement over HIBREE T EEF AU ERERN WS R
the term of relevant land leases on a straight-line basis. A 0Bk ©
Other intangible assets () HEREEE

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately and
from business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair value
respectively. After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Amortisation of intangible assets are charged
to income statement within administrative expenses. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
income statement when the asset is derecognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other intangible assets (continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated that the
development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project will be
recovered through future commercial activity. The resultant asset is
amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life, and carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to the income statement in
the period in which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds in
the ordinary course of business less applicable selling expenses.

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date, as
measured by the proportion that the value of work carried out
during the year.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs
are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
When it is probable that contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognised as expense immediately.

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as
an amount due from customers for contract work. For contracts
where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as
an amount due to customers for contract work. Amounts received
before the related work is performed are included in the balance
sheet, as a liability, as creditors. Amounts billed for work performed
but not yet paid by the customer are included in the balance sheet
under debtors.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts are shown as a separate current liability in the
balance sheet.

Pledged bank deposits are not included in cash and cash equivalents.

Unearned insurance premiums

Unearned insurance premiums represent the estimated portion of
the premiums written which relate to periods of insurance
subsequent to the balance sheet date and are deferred to
subsequent accounting periods. Unearned premiums are computed
on the basis of net premiums written for all classes of insurance.
Net premium written represents gross premiums received or
receivable after deducting reinsurance premiums.

Insurance claim

Claims paid and outstanding comprise claims paid, claims reported
but not yet paid as at the balance sheet date and an estimate of
claims incurred but not reported which is calculated with reference
to foreseeable events, past experiences and trends.

Revenue recognition

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue is recognised using the percentage of completion
method, measured by reference to the value of work carried out
during the period. When the outcome of a contract cannot be
estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

Income from sale of properties is recognised on the execution of a
binding sales agreement or the completion of properties, whichever
is later.

Income from sale of goods is recognised when goods are delivered
and title to the goods has passed to the customers. Revenue is
arrived at after deduction of any sales returns and discount.

Income from rendering of services is recognised at the time when
services are rendered. Receipts in advance of provision of services
are accounted for as deferred income.

Premiums for direct insurance business and reinsurance are
recognised as income over the terms of insurance policy period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset’s
net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's
rights to receive payment have been established.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the terms of the respective leases.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as
receivables at the amount of the Group's net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair values at the inception of the lease or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet
as an obligation under finance lease. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged
directly to the income statement, unless they are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
general policy on borrowing costs as stated in the policy below.

Rentals payables under operating leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Benefits received and receivables as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008

2

(p)

(a)

ERSHTHEME @

U i 2 R (8)

KB B E E 2 M B A TR I A L AR
TREASZEHRREHEZERMN L
HERNEANMBEERDFECEFF
IREFFAME RRASRA Z LK

A BTSRRI T 0 AR B2 B W ER R OR 2 #E

o B ST B T ER 0

rEHEZHSWANREGHEEEBEEME
EFH AR

HE

EHEGREE LBBEERAEL Z KED
R EERERAAEA ZEaORR AR
AHE-MAEHMBEERRRAKERE-

rEFBHBEA

BMEHE TRUURE A Z FIBTI AR ERE
WHIE RER/REEEAREEZ FRE-BE
MEWATI DEES S HE URBRAEE
WNEERRWEFRE 2B EE R R

KEHEEAZHSRAREBEE ZHES
NEER WA R AR - B L L e ER
EMELAZERBEERAFHAZBRERE
ZIEREEAR IREHNAERERRRX
Ho

FEBEBEAHAA

MEHETHEZEENHELERBRAA
B IREESZHE(UREKESE) BERR
AEBzEE-HHBAZHEERABEEER
BEERRIAREHYRE-HEFRENEE
FREBDREEAREZ WA B A RAERER
BEEzZMNE -BEEBMERTARARA
BRIFERERRANE HEZHEENARTE
MBEERGIIN EUER T BIREANEEZ
ERRAR —RERBEREAR (R TIBE) -

reHEzRERNEERNEBREEFHNKRE
BOENAWERA - AR EHED W E
W BEER RERERERANERSE
B RZ R



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER R M AT

(s)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying asset, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement
in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual Group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of
that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the
income statement in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of
the Group's net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in equity in the
consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in the income statement for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity,
in which cases, the exchange components of that gain or loss are
also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’'s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised as a separate component of equity, the exchange
fluctuation reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised in
the income statement in the period in which the foreign operation
is disposed of.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1st
April 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
the exchange fluctuation reserve.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense as
they fall due.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes income statement
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit,
and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, and interests in
associates and jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with
in equity.

Impairment

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet been
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss, debtors,
creditors, amount due from/to related companies, bills payable,
bank balances, borrowings, convertible bonds and financial
derivatives. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 3 BEREREEEEZEREE @
AND POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors 31 MBEAKMERE
(a) Market risk (a) WHERE
(i) Interest rate risk (i) Fl&E =Bz

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank deposits,
investments in debt securities, bank borrowings, bills
payable and convertible bonds. Majority of the Group's
bank borrowings carry interest at flowing rate and exposes
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group's
bank deposits, investments in debt securities and
convertible bonds carried interest at fixed rate and expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The management
monitors interest rate exposure and manages significant
interest rate exposure by using financial instruments such
as interest rate swap. However, these instruments are not
qualified for hedge accounting.

At the balance sheet dates, if interest rates had been
increased/decreased by every percentage point and all other
variables were held constant, the post-tax profit of the
Group for the year ended 31st March 2008 would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$12,510,000 (2007:
HK$11,552,000). This is mainly attribute to the Group's
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate bank balances
and bank borrowings.

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures. Foreign exchange risk arises when the Group
entity’s recognised assets and liabilities are denominated
in a currency that is not the Group entity’s functional
currency.

The Group’s financial assets that are exposed to foreign
exchange risk mainly comprise of instruments in debts
and equity securities and trade debtors arising from sales
made to overseas customers. The Group’s financial liabilities
that are exposed to foreign exchange risk mainly arise
from Euro denominated borrowings and accounts payable
balances arising from overseas purchases. It is the Group's
policies to ensure that the net exposure is kept to an
acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at
spot rates where necessary to address short-term
imbalances. The management will continue to monitor
foreign exchange exposure and will consider managing
significant foreign currency exposure by using financial
instruments such as foreign currency forward contracts
should the needs arise.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 3 BHBEREEEEZERBEE @)
AND POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HEEREZE (£)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) WHERE (&)
(i) Foreign currency risk (continued) (i) 51 B (4B
Major financial instruments under foreign currencies (other AL EEINERR 2 /INEF T
than the functional currencies of the Group entities) that BE(TEREFEEERBZIIEEE)
are exposed to foreign exchange risk are mainly FEUARBRET(IE7T])
denominated in Renminbi and United States dollar (“US B-AREBRARGUINESEZ S
dollar”). The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the MEERCRBEREER ZIRE
Company’s foreign currency denominated financial assets BamT:
and financial liabilities at the balance sheet dates are as
follows:
Assets Liabilities
EE 81
2008 2007 2008 2007
The Group rER —EENE —EELF —EENE —EEAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BET R BT T
US dollar E 1,334,244 1,270,253 (9,445) -
Renminbi AR 120,110 103,870 - -
Euro B 28 99,120 64,795 (153,430) (91,109)
Singapore dollar g oo 27,138 7,529 = -
Japanese yen Ht 17,672 174,578 - -
GBP HgE 16,632 2,220 - -
Canadian dollar mEXRT 12,225 13,498 - -
Australian dollar i 1,571 8,912 - -
Others Hib 22,796 14,163 - -
Assets Liabilities
EE 8 1&
2008 2007 2008 2007
The Company KAT —EENE —EELF —EENE —EEAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BET T BT T
us dollar ETT 554,247 547,577 - -
Euro B 28 394,046 44,681 (99,370) (30,247)
Singapore dollar g ot 22,344 2,239 - -
Japanese yen Ht 12,673 11,352 - -
Canadian dollar mexx 223,090 196,314 = -

Other Hi 23,825 14,042 = -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 3 BREREEEEZERBE @
AND POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HEEREZE (£)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) mWHERE ()
(i) Foreign currency risk (continued) (i) 51 B (4B
The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s TERFANAEBMEAQR Z BB
sensitivity to every percentage point increase and decrease e B E LA LN 2 & 3 hn SR
in the functional currency of corresponding Group entities —EAEHERE - FEEDTR
against the above foreign currency. The sensitivity analysis BENETIE EBIER WERF
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated KiEEEGEN-—EEIH2HRE
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year FLATEE  IEBURLTE LA EAMNE Kk
end for every percentage point increase in foreign currency AEEHEBERZIEEEGIER
rates. A positive number below indicates an increase in —EAESZ BRI EER LA
profit/investment revaluation reserve where the above ShFEBEEMMEM-

foreign currency strengthens every percentage point against
the functional currency of corresponding Group entities.

2008 2007

The Group rEH —EENF —ZETLEF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Increase in profit a5 138 o0 12,088 14,041
Increase in investment revaluation A E LN

reserve 2,750 1,624

2008 2007

The Company KA T —EENE —EELF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Increase in profit il B Pl 9,486 6,991
Increase in investment revaluation TEEG AL M

reserve 1,822 868
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 3 BREREEEEZERBE @

AND POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HEEREZE (£)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) WHEE(E)
(iii)Price risk (i) 1B 15 /2 Bz

The Group and the Company are exposed to equity
securities price risk because investments held by the Group
and the Company are classified on the consolidated
balance sheet and the balance sheet either as available-
for-sale or at fair value through profit or loss.

If the prices of the respective quoted equity instruments
of the Group had been increased/decreased by every
percentage point and all other variables were held
constant:

— the post-tax profit for the year ended 31st March 2008
would increase/decrease by HK$2,301,000 (2007:
HK$1,181,000) as a result of the changes in fair value
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;

— investment revaluation reserve would increase/decrease
by HK$2,926,000 (2007: HK$1,808,000) for the Group
as a result of the changes in fair value of available-for-
sale investments.

If the prices of the respective quoted equity instruments
of the Company had been increased/decreased by every
percentage point and all other variables were held
constant:

— the post-tax profit for the year ended 31st March 2008
would increase/decrease by HK$1,181,000 (2007:
HK$1,646,000) as a result of the changes in fair value
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;

— investment revaluation reserve would increase/decrease
by HK$1,998,000 (2007: HK$1,052,000) for the
Company as a result of the changes in fair value of
available-for-sale investments.
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3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Principal financial assets consist of debtors, other receivables,
deposits, amounts due from associates and jointly controlled
entities, amounts due from subsidiaries, available-for-sale
investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss,
derivative financial instruments and bank balances and cash.
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at
the balance sheet dates in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the balance sheet.

The Group has established different credit policies for
customers in each of its core businesses. The average credit
period granted to trade debtors was 60 days. The Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at
each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

Amounts due from related companies, including group
companies, are continuously monitored by assessing the credit
quality of the counterparty, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors. Where necessary,
impairment loss is made for estimated irrecoverable amounts.
As at 31st March 2008, the amounts due from related
companies are fully performing.

Investments, derivative financial instruments, interests
receivable and cash transactions are limited to financial
institutions or investment counterparties with high credit
quality. The Group controls its credit risk to non-performance
by its counterparties through monitoring their credit rating
and setting approved counterparty credit limits that are
regularly reviewed, the Group does not expect any significant
counterparty risk. Moreover, credit limits are set for individual
counterparties and periodic reviews are conducted to ensure
that the limits are strictly followed.

The Group does not have a significant exposure to any
individual debtors or counterparties.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 3 MBEREEEERBEX @
AND POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HEEREZE (£)
(c) Liquidity risk (c) EB2mBmEkE
The Group aims to maintain prudent liquidity risk management REEBBO#FEEZEASRBRARE
and flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient cash BREBREEHEERS —Hfféﬁi”
equivalents, readily realisable marketable securities and to B2 tHBA5REAERSHNPHEE
have committed short-term and medium-term credit lines HEURBFESE G-
available.
The Directors of the Company believe that the Group has RRREFHEE AREERITHEZ
obtained sufficient committed and uncommitted general credit EAEGERARAR—REERE BIAE
facilities from banks for working capital purposes. NEEES 2T
The Group’s liquidity position is monitored closely by the RARBEREEYERAKREZRBE
management of the Company. The following table details MR- TEFHINAKBEHABZE
the Group's contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. DB BRER - REDIRBAEEAIHE
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted KEMNzHEFAHNESRMEBEZRITE
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date RenEEYE - RECBEMNERETS
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes ZHREME
both interest and principal cash flows.
Total
undiscounted
Less than 1-2 2-5 More than cash
1 year years years 5 years flows
FARES
The Group b8 | SR-F -EWE - %i%:3 BBLF RES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETL BT BETL BT
2008 —EEN\f
Bank borrowings RITET 761,553 429,832 1,063,740 120,631 2,375,756
Convertible bonds TRRES - 452,400 - - 452,400
Amounts due to associates JEfTE 2 A RIRK 5,926 - - - 5,926
Creditors, bills payable ENER BREER
and deposit FARS 1,321,692 - - - 1,321,692
Derivative financial instruments ~ fT4A BB TA
(net settled) ($#%) 3,590 (6,802) (16,808) (21,100) (41,120)
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T£8 KT A
(settled gross) (BELEE)
- outflow it 262,374 - - - 262,374
- inflow —RA (190,865) - - (1,769) (192,634)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 3 HEREKBEEBEEZEREEK @
AND POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HEEREZE (£)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) E2mBmEE (%)
Total
undiscounted
Less than 1-2 2-5 More than cash
1 year years years 5 years flows
ANBERE
The Group T£E PR—F —EWEF —ERf BBRE mEA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
2007 - 3
Bank borrowings ROER 854,655 184,382 648,372 151,876 1,839,285
Convertible bonds AHEES - - 452,400 - 452,400
Amounts due to associates ERBEDAIRT 3,429 - - - 3,429
Creditors, bills payable ENER ENEER
and deposit YN & 1,178,146 - - - 1,178,146
Derivative financial instruments #7148 HIA
(net settled) (FLE) 10,949 6,112 9,525 2,565 29,151
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4£8 KT A
(settled gross) (BEHE)
- outflow — i 316,137 - - - 316,137
- inflow -MA (350,034) - - (1,621) (351,655)
Total
Less than 1-2 2-5 More than  undiscounted
1 year Years years 5 years cash flows
AFBERE
The Company | PR-F -EWE ZERE BBAE REAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BETR BETT
2008 “EENE
Bank borrowings RITER 161,752 331,101 1,135,503 16,364 1,644,720
Convertible bonds TaRES - 500,850 - - 500,850
Creditors, bills payable ENEFENEER
and deposits YN 7,322 - - - 7,322
Derivative financial instruments  $T4£BETA
(net settled) (F48) 3,590 (6,802) (16,808) (21,100) (41,120)
Derivative financial instruments #7458 KT A
(settled gross) (BELE)
- outflow —in 94,282 - - - 94,282
- inflow -mA (20,836) - - (1,769) (22,605)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 3 HEREKBEEBEEZEREEK @
AND POLICIES (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HEEREZE (£)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) EBE2nBmEE (&)
Total
Less than 1-2 2-5 More than undiscounted
1 year Years years 5 years cash flows
ANRRE
The Company NG SR—% —EME ZERf BAREF REAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETTL BETT BETTL BETT BETTL
2007 e 3
Bank borrowings RITER 497,325 22,216 553,206 60,000 1,132,747
Convertible bonds TaRES - 500,850 - 500,850
Creditors, bills payable ENER BEREER
and deposits YN & 9,019 - - - 9,019
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4£BETA
(net settled) (%4%) 10,949 6,112 9,525 2,565 29,151
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4£8 KT A
(settled gross) (BELE)
- outflow - 74,038 - - - 74,038
- inflow -mA (107,496) - - (1,621) (109,117)
Capital risk management 3.2 EXEBER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern while maximising
the returns for shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance.

The Group regularly and closely reviews and manages its capital
structure to provide cost efficient funding to the Group and its
companies and make adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes of economic conditions or corporate needs.

The capital structure of the Group consists of total equity.

The Group’s net debt to equity ratio is expressed as a percentage
of net debt (comprise total debt less bank balances and cash and
structured deposits) over total equity. Total debt comprises bank
borrowings, other loans and liability component of convertible
bonds.
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3.2

()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital risk management (continued)

The net debt to equity ratio at 31st March 2008 and 2007 was as
follows:

3.2

HEEREEREREE @

EXEBER ()
—EENFR-BRLF=A=F+—AZF
BB RMT:

2008 2007

—EENE —TTLF

HK$000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Total debt BE 2,618,179 2,027,465
Bank balances and cash and BITEFRAESREBETR

structured deposits (1,318,496) (1,110,645)

Net debt FE 1,299,683 916,820

Total equity AR 3,767,183 3,315,517

Net debt to equity ratio FEG R R 34.5% 27.7%

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and intangible assets
have suffered any impairment in accordance with accounting policies
stated in note 2 to the financial statements. The recoverable
amounts of CGUs have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations or its fair value less cost to sell, whichever is appropriate.
The value-in-use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008

(i)

B9 52 2 5l 5T K& H

B RHERBEBERBIEMAR Bh e
ERBEHEBATHEREGEMBRREGD
TER ISR

REBR/ARKIEL AT RBR -G ZGE
AREBRRIERANERERER -AFE
REBIGEEERBEZIREER T — @
WEFEANBIEERBE 2 (A5 REBRHTIW
T

EEEERELEERNE

RIBEM B MKMW T2t 2 ST E AEE
BFEYBEREERAUCAEFRZBVEE
EEHREMREETAR - REELELZ
Al E e RE AT EESEEREMR
HERAZARE (ABEAERE) EE-K
REAPGFEER AEEAGHAZRSEE
Bz ARKRERE WAHEMBEAER
BE-EEBRARRBEERBINEGR BEEL
RNERERRE-



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER R M AT

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimated useful life of intangible assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful life and
consequently related amortisation rate (if any) for its intangible
assets (other than goodwill). These estimates are based on the
historical experience of the actual useful life of intangible assets of
similar nature and functions. Actual economic life may vary from
estimated useful life. Periodic review could result in a change in
amortisable life and consequently increase or decrease in
amortisation expenses in future periods.

Income taxes

At 31st March 2008, a deferred tax asset of HK$43,419,000 in
relation to unused tax losses has been recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future profits generated are more or less than expected, additional
deferred tax assets or material reversal of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in the income statement for the
period in which such an addition or a reversal takes place.

Also, the Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Construction contract revenue recognition

According to the accounting policies of construction contracts as
stated in note 2(l), the Group uses the percentage of completion
method to determine the appropriate revenues to be recognised in
a given period. The stage of completion is measured by on total
amount of work done certified by customers over total estimated
contract sum.

Upon applying the percentage of completion method, the Group
needs to estimate the gross profit margin of each construction
contract, which was determined based on the estimated total
construction contract costs and total construction contract sum,
including variation orders and claims. If the actual gross profit margin
of construction contract differs from the management’s estimates,
the construction contract revenue to be recognised within the next
year will need to be adjusted accordingly.

4
(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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(v)

(vi)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 BERSETEFTRAG @
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
Determination of insurance liabilities (v) BEERBEE
The Group’s insurance liabilities mainly comprise provision for REBZRBREE TERERARAIMNRRZ
outstanding claims. The Group determines these estimates on the BE-AEEZATER BES T PHHEERX
basis of historical information, actuarial analyses, financing modeling REM DM ETE Rt ZEERRBER
and other analytical techniques. The estimated insurance liabilities REBREE 2 AEESTE - — T \FR
is affected by assessed net loss ratio. Assessed net loss ratio for R FFEREERI103% K114% © B
2008 and 2007 were 103% and 114% respectively. Differences MEEZREBENEE W ERKRER-
resulting from reassessment of insurance liabilities are recognised EETHEBEZAS ULEETERELFE.
in subsequent financial statements. The directors continually review BEERGERIEEELGTRAEEEFHR
the estimates and make adjustments as necessary, but actual results DRl
could differ significantly from what is envisioned when these
estimates are made.
Estimate of fair value of investment properties (vi) REFREVMEZARE
The valuation of investment properties held directly by the Group is REFEEERBZREMEZHEDRES
made on the basis of the “Market Value” adopted by the Hong BRI SR A& PR [ThE | E2E RREBA
Kong Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS"). It is performed in accordance EMASRMEBRAEMASMEMLELE
with the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties published by HKIS. AT - A ERGEEMSFENGEE - HED
The valuation is reviewed annually by qualified valuers by considering K2EZBERR2ER 1 ()VTRMEZ K
the information from a variety of sources including (i) current prices ISk BE 2 R ER ™IS 2 BRITEME W E
in an active market for properties of different nature, condition or HRBEARMBEZ R R>NEUDERERDT
location, adjusted to reflect those differences; (ii) recent prices of SERTIS ZMHER WEHARNURMEZ
similar properties in less active market, with adjustments to reflect EEERAZBBEUARZEERRES
any changes in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those parties; and (iii) rental income
derived from existing tenancies with due provision for reversionary
income potential based on market conditions existing at the balance
sheet date.
REVENUE 5 W
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Revenue represents amount received RKEULTERRERZ s :
and receivable from:
Construction and installation contracts BERTETIR 3,170,812 2,369,135
Sale of computer, business machines B mAMBERAMNEE
and others 1,043,613 1,069,632
Provision of maintenance and RERBERYMEEERD
property management 624,952 576,733
Food and beverages B 299,034 250,076
Warehouse operations BEEEE 117,257 100,070
Sale of properties M HE 85,082 60,080
Hotel operations G & B 66,005 59,730
Interest income from investments KEREZMEHA 53,894 72,614
Leasing of properties MERE 52,904 45,450
Insurance premium R B 40,129 47,509
Dividend income from listed securities EFAES 2 BRERA 11,079 9,260
Leasing of equipment REHE 3,917 4,948
5,568,678 4,665,237

An analysis of the Group’s revenue by business and geographical
segment is set out in note 40.
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OTHER (EXPENSE)/INCOME, NET 6 Hfh(ZH) WA FE
2008 2007
—EBENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(Loss)/gain on investments at fair value REZRZARBEEENKREZ
through profit or loss (note) (B518) /s (&) (87,723) 90,179
(Loss)/gain on derivative financial MEVBIAZ (B8)
instruments s (24,332) 22,222
Interest from amounts due from JE U B & R RIIRE 2
associates B WA 165 735
Interest from amounts due from HEEH b EERIRZ
jointly controlled entities AMEMA 1,257 2,900
Commission income (3 ON 9,183 4,429
(101,450) 120,465
Note: B

The net unrealised and realised loss on investments at fair value through
profit or loss for the year ended 31st March 2008 are HK$71,830,000 (2007:
net gain of HK$56,665,000) and HK$15,893,000 (2007: net gain of
HK$33,514,000) respectively, which include net unrealised gain of
HK$7,533,000 (2007: loss of HK$19,694,000) and realised loss of
HK$2,398,000 (2007: gain of HK$485,000) on debt securities and structured
deposits designated as financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
upon initiation recognition.

HEZZZ)\F=-A=-+—BLEFE REFKRZA
hEREZREZAZHARBEREEFES A
EH 71,830,000 (ZEELF  RFFEABY
56,665,000 ) & 7% # 15,893,000 (Z T T L4
Uy 25 % 58 A8 % 33,514,0007T) c E R BE T A (&
FREBUEGTR) BEREBRRRAAERE Y
BEEZ RSB IRRBRT,533,000( 2T LF
188 % 19,694,000) & B # 3 E 18 7% % 2,389,000
ZETLF iz B 485,000) ©

HEIBEREEAERAA
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7 OTHER GAINS, NET 7 HtWamE FHE
2008 2007
—EENF —TELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Increase in fair value of KEWMEZARE
investment properties (note) 2 (M) 387,263 53,362
Fair value gain on derivative component AR ESFITETELH 2
of convertible bonds APRRIER DIl 23,912 26,489
Net loss on disposal of LEREWE
investment property BT (653) -
Gain on disposal of jointly HEHXRZEGCEZ
controlled entities & - 19,714
Exchange gain, net PE N a5 E 9,373 9,712
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEMNKREZ
investments WEEE (835) (1,473)
Impairment loss on goodwill EMEZREERE - (5,000)
Impairment loss on property, WME- -WEKZRH#HZ
plant and equipment REEE (7,415) (13,754)
Write back of/(provision for) impairment 7814 & 38 2 B E G 18 & =
loss on prepaid lease payments CREEE) 2,637 (1,628)
Impairment loss on intangible asset EBREEZREEE = (2,157)
Tax incentive HEaks 1,768 -
Bad debt recovered B U B 5 R 7,770 7,636
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEBNHEERE WX
plant and equipment and WE Rz (EE)
prepaid lease payments /W as R (1,438) 7,406
422,382 100,307

Note:

During the year, the Group has transferred Chevalier Place of Shanghai
Chonmain Real Estate Development Co Ltd. with carrying value of
HK$167,769,000 from properties for sale to investment properties. Valuation
gain arising from year end revaluation in relation to the properties transferred

o i

has led to an increase in fair value of HK$275,901,000.

8 FINANCE COSTS, NET

FRAEEE BIRE(ERE%167,769,0007CH £
BRAZEHERRERATDAKEZ LENEAFE
MEBBREREME - BREBRINEFRZGERE
EZ A EREE

DA EE B 275,901,0007T

8 MMBER FH

2008 2007
—EENF ZTTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable EEMBR AT RN ZRITHEK
within five years and overdrafts REZ 2T & 90,511 96,391
Interest on convertible bonds wholly EERRAFAZAIRRKRES ZF B
repayable within five years 35,532 25,965
126,043 122,356
Less: Interest from bank deposits B ERITIE SR A B A (16,420) (14,263)
109,623 108,093

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9 KRBANEF
2008 2007
—EENE —ZTELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ok e
Profit before taxation has been arrived BRELAT & A E MR TFIEE -
at after charging the following:
Depreciation on property, WME- -WER&E
plant and equipment YT E 89,333 86,576
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work & : B {E & #) T2 Ak X (177) (147)
89,156 86,429
Auditors’ remuneration % 20D B 2 10,236 8,674
Staff costs (note a) BTHXZ (KizEa) 964,739 827,420
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work & : B {E & #) T2 Ak X (93,337) (58,032)
871,402 769,388
Operating lease payments in respect of B} %ﬂ L/(TIE B
leasing of HER
- Premises* 4,§§ﬂ:# 107,852 85,743
- Equipment — R 22,690 14,027
130,542 99,770
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments &1 fl & 7 I8 # 84 11,783 11,743
Amortisation of intangible assets HtEREESH 3,986 3,603
Write down of properties for sale to net &% 2 EE A
realisable value IR FE - 10,058
Write down of inventories to net BWEFEZ]ER
realisable value FE 1,315 3,674
and crediting the following: WEt ATFIEE :
Gross rental income of HK$52,904,000 %@%%%ﬁéﬂ&z)\%ﬁ%sz 904,0007T
(2007: HK$45,450,000) from properties —EE A F: ¥ 45,450,0007T)
less direct operating expenses (note b) BE LS (Mib) 37,775 28,626
Income from leasing of equipment BREHERA 3,917 4,948
Write back of properties for sale to net  ERGFEWERESR
realisable value iR FE 11,831 -
# Included in operating lease payments in respect of leasing of premises # REEEFMAAEREUEHEERA 2 XAM

are contingent rental of HK$8,623,000 (2007: HK$7,476,000).

© A B8 623,000 (ZTETLF 8

#7,476,0007T) °

EtEGEEERAT |
—TTN5EH
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B 7% 3R 3% Bt &
9  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 9 BRBAGEF (m)
Notes: B & -
(a) Details of directors’ emoluments included in staff costs are disclosed (a) SENMECREEE IR EERENFE
in note 42. A2FR TR o
Included in staff costs are an amount of HK$3,613,000 (2007: ETHIBEREAREINRAEBE
HK$1,198,000) in respect of redundancy payments made to staff and 3,613,000 (ZZEZ 4 :/5%1,198,000
an amount of HK$39,003,000 (2007: HK$37,303,000) in respect of 70) K B Bk R UL EB 1) B9 3R IR R & 5t B 5K
contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes, net A H£#%39,003,000 L (ZEELF B
of forfeited contributions. 37,303,0007C) °
(b) Included in rental income is an amount of HK$1,960,000 (2007: (b) EEERARZHEEKR A S
HK$1,294,000) less outgoings of HK$1,126,000 (2007: HK$1,186,000) #1,960,0007T (ZZZ 4 : ¥ 1,294,000
from jointly controlled assets. TC) R H 1,126,000 (Z B+ F 8
#1,186,0007T) °
Included in gross rental income is an amount of HK$21,410,000 (2007: BEHSWABEREREME 2 RBEEYK
HK$19,995,000) derived from investment properties. 21,410,0007T (ZZZ+ 4 : 419,995,000
K
10 INCOME TAX EXPENSES 10 FAIfEM <
2008 2007
—E2ENE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Current tax NEERIE
Hong Kong B 32,686 35,096
Overseas EZIN 20,479 18,947
Over-provision in prior years BT FEBEEE (13,036)
40,129 54,043
Deferred tax IR E B I8 72,682 12,810
112,811 66,853
Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 17.5% (2007: BAENGHIIBRBEAREESF AR 2 ER
17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits after offsetting losses Flm A ER BB RERE175% (=ZF
brought forward of each individual company. Taxation on overseas THF:17.5%) 5HH GINL KT IRF REHH
profit has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for HEHERBE AR AN E AL XK 2R
the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in IBEREE-
which the business operates.
Details of deferred taxation are disclosed in note 38. BEERIB 2 FIBE R E38KE-

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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10

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

10 FI8RZE

AEERBEXHARBEEERERAN IR

taxation per consolidated income statement as follows: Al A ¥R T
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Profit before taxation W 54 Bl A 411,970 408,050
Adjust for: R
Share of results of associates DR E DR 2 EA (27.258) (5,263)
Share of results of jointly controlled DL HREH R
entities ES (2,909) 3,159
381,803 405,946
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of BRARMANE BN E17.5%
17.5% (2007: 17.5%) ZETLEF17.5%) TEMRE 66,816 71,041
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries 7 £ & &% & & 2 B9 B A &)
operating in other jurisdictions EFERATRMENZE 25,273 169
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR EME H BB E 50,908 34,579
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARRKANHRELE (42,457) (46,298)
Tax effect of current year’s tax losses RTBERHKREEZRB
not recognised E5 18 60,755 33,144
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses and FRAUAIAR FHRRBHEBEE R
other deductible temporary difference HEMAHREREZEN
not previously recognised MEZE (35,448) (26,099)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEHBERG (13,036) -
Others HA - 317
Tax charge for the year REERIE 112,811 66,853

EtEGEEERAT |
TT N
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B 7% 3R 3% Bt &
11 DIVIDENDS 11 KR
2008 2007
—EZTN\F —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Interim dividend of HK$0.16 BIRFAERE SRER0.167T
(2007: HK$0.20) per share, paid —ETEF:gRAE%K0.200T) 44,573 55,716
Final dividend of HK$0.29 R REARR B S ARE#0.297T
(2007: HK$0.30) per share, proposed (ZZEZT+F:8RE®0.307T) 80,789 83,575
125,362 139,291

12
(a)

A final dividend of HK$0.29 per share, totalling HK$80,789,000,
has been proposed by the Directors of the Company and is subject
to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general
meeting. This proposed dividend has not been dealt with as dividend
payable as at 31st March 2008.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

ARG EECEZRERBERETREE
0.297C " & ®#E#80,789,0007T * 1 BN #% 7 B3
ZIRRBERE FER R X BR AR B R
TEENE=A=1+—-RAVEREAEMNKE

BRIE -

12 ERER
(a) EX

BREARBNIDRIBARRBRER G AENA
wmABR ARNEEEBRITE BB INEFIHH

A e
==
B o

2008 2007
—EENF e
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T

Profit attributable to equity holders of RARIRERE AEG
the Company i A 230,747 317,869
Number of Number of
shares shares
R EA W& g B
‘000 ‘000
Fr F &

Weighted average number of BEBITE@AR NE

ordinary shares in issue T8 278,582 278,582
Basic earnings per share (HK$) BREXERN (BE) 0.83 1.14

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b)

13

Diluted

12
(b)

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company’s dilutive
potential ordinary shares are derived from the convertible bonds.
The convertible bonds are assumed to have been converted into
ordinary shares, and the net profit is adjusted to eliminate the
interest expense less the tax effect. The number of shares calculated
as below is compared with the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the convertible bonds.

BRERN @

%
SREERNDEBEE SRR EREY
LA DB TR R Y E T BT R
HHE e AR T 2 B AR T HT A [ AT
B 15 5 o ] HA0 IR 1 35 T {82 5 45 99 4 A RSB
MRS T LUEHF BB TRFIEY
YERTRAE Y BOBE RBETRE
EHEMATEE Y DRTRABAEE-

2008 2007
—EENF ZTTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T ok
Profit attributable to equity holders of RARIRERB AEG
the Company i A 230,747 317,869
Interest on convertible bonds AR ES 2 & 35,532 25,965
Fair value gain on derivative component AR EHFITE T EILH 2
of convertible bonds N B (23,912) (26,489)
Profit used to determine diluted earnings F{Est E SR EERF 2
per share Y ) 242,367 317,345
Number of Number of
shares shares
R EE B& 15 1 B
‘000 ‘000
Fr F &
Weighted average number of EETERR 2 MNE
ordinary shares in issue F 198 278,582 278,582
Adjustments for convertible bonds KA MR ES AR 37,873 26,656
Weighted average number of ordinary BEHEBREBERRNZ
shares for diluted earnings per share I 3B AR hN #E TS # 316,455 305,238
Diluted earnings per share (HK$) FREERT (EE) 0.77 1.04

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF

THE COMPANY

13

Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company is HK$33,935,000 (2007:

profit HK$60,947,000).

RARREFEARGEER

KRR BRBEFEBEBABEGEBEBEBRES
33,935,000 (Z T+ F 5 f B K
60,947,00070) TR AR AR SRR FRIE-
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14

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14 REYE
The Group &
Total
B
HK$'000
BT
At 1st April 2006 RZZEERFMNA—H 469,693
Exchange realignment ME 5 38 & 9,034
Transfer to property, plant and equipment E® EWZE - H 5 k& #H (8,445)
Increase in fair value NREREM 53,362
At 31st March 2007 RZEELF=A=+—8H 523,644
Exchange realignment ME 5,38 B 35,430
Addition NE 7,799
Disposal & (4,460)
Transfer from properties for sale EREFEME 167,769
Increase in fair value NREREM 387,263
At 31st March 2008 RZZEZENF=A=+—H

The Group's interests in investment properties at their carrying values

1,117,445

WIRMEER B AEB 2R EYEER DT

are analysed as follows: e
2008 2007
—BENF ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
In Hong Kong B
Leases between 10 to 50 years FH+ER+FEZHAD 438,688 333,779
Outside Hong Kong BBEZEI
Leases between 10 to 50 years FH+ERATF2HELY 528,637 60,328
Freehold KA R 150,120 129,537
1,117,445 523,644
Notes: Bt 3T -

(a) The fair values of the Group’s investment properties in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and overseas as at 31st March 2008 have been arrived
at on the basis of valuation carried out on that date by Knight Frank
Petty Limited or DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, who are
independent qualified professional valuers and have appropriate
qualifications and experience in the valuation of properties in the
relevant locations. The valuation, which conforms to the Valuation
Standards on Properties of the HKIS, was arrived at by reference to
market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties or
calculated on the net income allowing for reversionary potential.

(b) Investment properties in Hong Kong with a carrying value of
HK$21,000,000 (2007: HK$18,667,000) represent the Group’s share
of interest in jointly controlled assets.

() Charges were created on the investment properties with a total
carrying value of HK$420,458,000 (2007: HK$278,824,000) for the
purpose of securing banking facilities granted to the Group.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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AEBURERE PEAMRENZKEY
ERZZETN\F=ZRA=+—BZ2RED
RBmBYABEREETEMATBAETA
BABRHBERITARABDNE AET M
BERAEE ZEEXFHMEAGEER X
BERERMBRETYEBENER &
BVETEEREMEGARMNMER[E
ZRWCDLBHS EHOMENRSE X
HERBE 2 W FRELTE-

NRBEBZREMEDEANEBELLRE
Bl & E 2w HIREE A% 21,000,0007T
ZEE L F:H%18,667,0007T) ©

I T 42 {8 & 78 ¥ 420,458,000t (Z T T+
5 15278,824,0000T) 2 I EMEE ER
B EERTFALERITEEZER:
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15 W% -BERRKE

The Group &
Furniture,
fixtures,
Plant, other
Cold Other machinery  equipment
storage Hotel properties and and motor
warehouse properties for own use  equipment vehicles Total
BR-£E-
Hity BE- HitRfE
REER BIEYE BRAYE BERRE kRE M
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BT BETT AT
Cost A
At 1st April 2006 RZZEER
MA—H 61,000 141,073 381,014 201,080 259,585 1,043,752
Exchange realignment fE 5 B - (276) 5,766 14,432 12,134 32,056
Additions NE - - 2,066 93,986 61,050 157,102
Disposals & - (896) - (23,203) (21,023) (45,122)
Reclassification/transfers  B#H N8/ #H% - - 3,958 ) 2 3,958
At 31st March 2007 R_TZLF
—A=+—H 61,000 139,901 392,804 286,293 311,748 1,191,746
Exchange realignment [ERTETES - 15,139 24,809 32,292 16,258 88,498
Acquisition of subsidiaries W EE KT B A 7) - - - 45 658 703
Additions NE - 634 331 63,019 48,247 112,231
Disposals & - - (630) (35,596) (10,464) (46,690)
Reclassification/transfers  E¥ D18/ E% - - - (424) 424 -
At 31st March 2008 RZZTENF
=R=+—H 61,000 155,674 417,314 345,629 366,871 1,346,488
Accumulated deprecation 2B E R E
and impairment
At 1st April 2006 RZTTRF
mMA—H 9,187 26,227 74,280 81,889 174,792 366,375
Exchange realignment TR - 1,435 620 6,178 3,265 11,498
Charge for the year rEEWE 2,205 2,910 8,692 36,761 36,008 86,576
Impairment loss REEE - 6,972 - 6,782 - 13,754
Disposals & - - - (561) (14,392) (14,953)
Reclassification/transfers ~ E¥ D18/ E% - - (671) ) 2 (671)
At 31st March 2007 RZTELHF
=R=+—H 11,392 37,544 82,921 131,047 199,675 462,579
Exchange realignment N R/ - 4,339 5,996 12,144 10,516 32,995
Charge for the year AEEWE 2,205 2,801 9,391 38,766 36,170 89,333
Impairment loss REEE - 2,915 - - 4,500 7,415
Disposals & - - (185) (10,286) (4,801) (15,272)
Reclassification/transfers ~ EH » 1,/ E#% - - - (297) 297 -
At 31st March 2008 RZZEENF
ZA=+—H 13,597 47,599 98,123 171,374 246,357 577,050
Carrying value iR H &
At 31st March 2008 RZZEENF
ZA=+—H 47,403 108,075 319,191 174,255 120,514 769,438
At 31st March 2007 RZTLT+LF
—A=+—H 49,608 102,357 309,883 155,246 112,073 729,167
HIERREERAA |

NEEH
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15 ME-BERRE @
Notes: B
(@)  The carrying value of properties comprises: (a) WMEZREE®E:
2008 2007
—EENEF —ETLHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BYETR BT T
Freehold land and buildings thereon KAEKERERE E2EF 156,788 142,811
Buildings on leasehold land et trEF 317,881 319,037
474,669 461,848
(b)  Charges were created on the property, plant and equipment with a (b) REABMEABEE193,692,000t (ZTT L
total carrying value of HK$193,692,000 (2007: HK$252,385,000) for 1 1252,385,0007T) 2 W RE R E
the purpose of securing banking facilities granted to the Group. EEER - EATEBRITEEZER
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 16. HERBEE
The Group rEE
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Deposits and development cost MEBHRAEZFLHRS
for a property development project R B 8 B AR
(note a) (Pfif5Ea) 252,198 -
Deposits for a joint venture property BECEMETER 2 FLHZRS
development project (note b) (Mf7ED) 125,286 4,950
Others Hi 25,703 19,498
403,187 24,448
Notes: B 7 -

(a)

A non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group is engaged in a
residential redevelopment project for redeveloping certain shanty areas
at Fan Jia Dian, Lu Yuan District of Changchun City, Jilin Province,
Mainland China. The subsidiary is the approved developer for the
development project. As at 31st March 2008, deposits paid and costs
incurred for the relocation of existing residence amounted to
HK$182,306,000 and HK$69,892,000 respectively.

Pursuant to a development agreement dated 27th June 2006, the
Group provided an advance of RMB112,870,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$125,286,000) to an independent third party (the
“JV Partner”) for the development of a property development project
in Hefei, Anhui Province, Mainland China (the “Joint Development
Project”). It is intended that the Joint Development Project will be
undertaken by a joint venture company (the “Joint Venture Company”)
to be established in the Mainland China between the Group and the
JV Partner, and the Group's initial injection of capital will be satisfied
by the conversion of the existing advance. The formation of the Joint
Venture Company is subject to the approval of relevant authorities in
the Mainland China.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008

AEB-—HIE2ENBRARIZEEZTER
WENREREMEEREREETHMERZ
FEEREE -ZMBARAEREBEE Z#t
HEBRREF-R_TEN\F=A=+—H H=E
BRAFEZEMNFLHESRAELZRIE
S B #E B % 182,306,000t K B
69,892,0007T °

BEAPA-—ZEERFRA-TELAZEERE
W ARERNTPELBEART 2ME
FREABZER ([BABRER]) M-8
YE=ZF([BEKFERE-ZARY
112,870,0007T (85 M 498 % 125,286,000
) ZBF-BMEERABREHAAET RS
BUNHEBRTEAKIZAELE ([RE
BRDET TAEEZ NS TEHEL R
BRZ BRI - FHMD B A g ALt E
B ABERETERIL
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17 PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17 ENAHEERE
The Group KE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
The prepaid lease BRAAERERE:
payments comprise:
Leasehold land in Hong Kong: REBZHE i :
Leases of over 50 years FHEBEBATF2HELY 97,967 99,966
Leases of between 20 to 50 years FH-_t+EZ2AT+F28EH 317,464 326,881
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: REBNINE T 2 FHE i
Leases of over 50 years FHBARL+FE2HED 18,113 16,671
Leases of between 20 to 50 years FH-_+Z2RATF2HEY 12,428 11,667
Leases of less than 20 years FHIRZTFZ2ELD 46 54
446,018 455,239

The movements in the prepaid lease payments during the year are

analysed as follows:

FRENEERBEEH 2 TN T

2008 2007

—EENF —EELF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

At 1st April REA—AH 455,239 461,708

Exchange realignment ME N 5 & 2,055 2,387

Additions NE - 699

Disposal & (2,130) -

Amortisation i (11,783) (11,743)
Written back of/(provision for) REEERD

impairment loss /O (B4E) 2,637 (1,628)

Transfers from investment properties wWRaREmE - 3,816

At 31st March R=ZB=+—8H 446,018 455,239

IR T 4218 575 85 148,778,0007T (— T T+ 4
& #311,456,0007T) 2 A A ERIBE (B
B UAEAR TAEERITEECER

Charges were created on the prepaid lease payments with a total
carrying value of HK$148,778,000 (2007: HK$311,456,000) for the
purpose of securing banking facilities granted to the Group.

18 GOODWILL 18 B2
The Group rE
2008 2007
—EENF ZTTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
At 1st April RMA—H 210,330 212,540
Price adjustment for subsidiary acquired EFWREBHE QR Z
in prior year BE A - 1,618
Acquisition of additional interest W B BT /BB A BB OME 2=
in subsidiaries - 1,172
Impairment loss (note) BEEE () - (5,000)
At 31st March R=A=+—H 210,330 210,330
Note: B 5 -

Details of impairment assessment of goodwill are disclosed in note 41.

R ZREFEAAT M E4I -
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19 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 HEFEEE
The Group &
Cold
Roads and storage and
drainage Other public
and patents and  Trademark bonded
Development waterworks license  of branded  warehouse
expenditure license rights coffee shops licenses Other Total
B RERE
FERKE HUENE REUGE RAR
HRER IBKR KRR ZEE RERRR it B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  B%TR  BETT  BMTr  BE¥TRn BBt B%Tx
Cost KA
At 1st April 2006 RZZE ENA-A 8,010 26,534 10,480 108,000 3,000 1,900 157,924
Exchange realignment EHRE 1,907 - 792 - - - 2,699
Additions NE 97 - 11,509 - - - 11,606
Disposal HE - - (2,812) - - - (2,812)
Transfer 8% - - - - - 2,169 2,169
At 31st March 2007 i 3
=A=+-H 10,014 26,534 19,969 108,000 3,000 4,069 171,586
Exchange realignment EHRE 1,695 - 4,024 - - - 5,719
Additions NE - - 3,780 - - - 3,780
Disposal HE - - (3,257) - - - (3,257)
Reclassification EFipay 1,016 - (1,016) - - - -
At 31st March 2008 RZZENEF
“A=+—-H 12,725 26,534 23,500 108,000 3,000 4,069 177,828
Accumulated amortisation R B#K
and impairment HE
At 1st April 2006 RZZZRENA—A 2,527 - 635 - 1,237 1,567 5,966
Exchange realignment ELRE 725 - 271 - - - 996
Charge for the year RAEEXH 1,047 - 1,923 - 300 333 3,603
Impairment loss HEES - 2,157 - - - - 2,157
At 31st March 2007 R-ZTLE
“A=+—-H 4,299 2,157 2,829 - 1,537 1,900 12,722
Exchange realignment BEHRE 1,560 - 844 - - 2,404
Charge for the year RAEEXH 1,262 - 2,424 - 300 - 3,986
Disposal e - - (2,328) - - - (2,328)
Reclassification ENNE 169 - (169) - - - -
At 31st March 2008 RZBENF
=A=+-H 7,290 2,157 3,600 - 1,837 1,900 16,784
Carrying value REE
As at 31st March 2008 RZZENF
=A=1-H 5,435 24,377 19,900 108,000 1,163 2,169 161,044
As at 31st March 2007 R-ZTLE
ZR=1+-H 5715 24,377 17,140 108,000 1,463 2,169 158,864
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OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The above intangible assets (other than roads and drainage and
waterworks license (“License”) and trademark of branded coffee
shops (“Trademark”) are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
following estimated useful lives:

Development expenditure

FEEMA

Other patents and licenses rights

H At B R N g AR

Cold storage and public bonded warehouse licenses
REBEERAZRBEBR

Others

Hits

The License and Trademark were purchased as part of business
combinations in prior years. The directors of the Company are of
the opinion that the upkeep of the License and Trademark is at
minimal cost and the Group would renew the License and Trademark
continuously. Various studies have been performed by management
of the Group, which support that there is no foreseeable limit to
the period over which the License and Trademark are expected to
generate net cash inflows for the Group.

The License and Trademark are considered by the management of
the Group as having an indefinite useful life and will not be
amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite upon
reassessment of its useful life annually by the management. Instead
they will be tested for impairment annually and whenever there is
an indication that it may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment
testing are disclosed in note 41.

Charges were created on the other intangible assets with a total
carrying value of HK$11,315,000 (2007: HK$8,323,000) for the
purpose of securing the banking facilities granted to the Group.

HMWEBELEEE ®)

FREREE (REEBR EKRKKEIR
R (MR RSIEMYEE Y B ([
1)) T AE SRR THIEE AT s
T

10 years
T

16 years
TREF

10 years
T

5 years

HF

BREEEIFINUNEFEBA BEBA O
2R -ARARNEERR EEZEMRRE
BEIEMEEL MAKE NS KRR EEES
MEE-AEBEEEECETZEMRT 2T
MAXFEREATEASEAYEELF
RERMZEGH WEAAIIEMA 2R

FEBEEERREREBTRABERAE
REH Mt T gRMEs EECEETE2EMA
AERFERRE RN R WEATERSF
HAERBLE-REKRTF RE LR AERME
BN SR B HE T TR (DR S < VBRI B 2 REIB A MY R
AR

R 42 {E AE 11,315,000 (ZEE+F:
75 #58,323,0000T) 2 Ef B B EC (ERIF
EABRTASEERTEEZER.

EtEGEEERAT |
TT N
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20 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

20 FREMEB LR 2R

The Company b N
2008 2007
—BENFE —ETLF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Cost less impairment AR BRI (A
Share listed in Hong Kong Bz EmkH 309,536 213,266
Unlisted shares JE MG, 944,405 1,264,725
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE WP /B8 A B IR X 231,584 242,577
Loan to a subsidiary ERT—HEHEAQA - 101,252
1,485,525 1,821,820
Market value of shares listed BEEZETRHZTE
in Hong Kong 237,694 325,513
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W B /B8 1 B IR X 2,223,157 1,407,098
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE B B A RIIR 3K 1,095,855 886,370

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries as at 31st March

2008 are set out in note 51.

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries under current assets and
liabilities are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand;
except for a sum of amount due from subsidiaries totaling
HK$344,598,000 (2007: 163,878,000) which are interest bearing
at prime rate of The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited. The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollar except for amount due from
subsidiaries of HK$213,359,000 (2007: HK$189,247,000)
denominated in Canadian dollar, HK$322,935,000 (2007: Nil)
denominated in Euro and due to subsidiary of HK$99,370,000 (2007:

HK$30,247,000) denominated in Euro.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008

RIZENEFE=ZA=ZF+—HZEITEMNBLA
2 BE BEHRKIFEST -

MiB AR AR R R B RIEE
KEE-HEKNBARERSG EXBE
344,598,000t (Z E T + F : B &
163,878,00070) BEEE L BELRITER
NAREBEMNRZFABER-MB ARG ER,
Wi 75 LA 5 B (& - M B UK B BB 2 R IR BB S
213,359,000t (= B & + £ : B K&
189,247,000t ) AN KT B &K
322,935,0007C (ZEZTHF &) LUEIE
LA R JE A< Y BB & B iR 308 6 99,370,0007T (=
BT A4 ##30,247,0007T) BIABL R FIME
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

The Group rEE
2008 2007
—EBENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Share of net assets Frih B EFE 118,388 88,894
Goodwill RS 54,430 48,190
172,818 137,084
Amounts due from associates (note b) JE Wi B & R RIBR 3R (B9 #ED) 19,273 17,175
Amounts due to associates (note b) JE A B & A RIR 3R (B9 #ED) 5,926 3,429
The summarised financial information of the Group’s associates is REBBRERNDZHMBERBESHNT
set out below:
2008 2007
—BENFE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Total assets BEE 486,410 377,205
Total liabilities wEE (205,665) (162,594)
Minority interests LHRERER (8,334) (4,296)
272,411 210,315
Revenue Wz 540,738 350,527
Profit for the year REFE M 62,477 17,734
Notes: B 7 -

(a) Particulars regarding the principal associates at 31st March 2008 are

set out in note 52.

(b) Amounts due from/to associates are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand, except for the following balances:

(i) Amount due from an associate of HK$7,566,000 (2007: Nil)
bears interest at a rate of 6.2% per annum.

(i) Amount due from an associate of HK$4,100,000 (2007: Nil) in
2008 which bears interest at prime rate of Hong Kong and
Shanghai Bank Corporation Limited plus 100 basis point per

annum.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from/to associates approximate
their respective fair values. Amounts due from/to associates are
denominated in Renminbi except for amounts due from an associate
of HK$8,379,000 (2007: HK$67,000) and due to an associate of
HK$2,623,000 (2007: Nil) are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
Amounts due from associates are neither past due nor impaired.

RZEENF=ZA=+-RETEBRERT
ZEFR DERHIEES2

Bt N B E AT IR T SRR R R B R IR

)

(i)

B 1HE

THELAT B R E RS :

—fE A QRN T N\FRIIRS
#7,566,0007T (Z T4 4) Jhit

mERE6.2E

—HEBERRARN %

=

2\ 4 JE WOIR B

#4,100,0007C (=TT L5 ) IR
BRELAEYRTARAAZHESR
F = HN100MEE BT B -

g N R MR NIR 2 R EE R A S 5 A8

AN

Gl
(—=
i Bt &

F

’Aﬂfﬁﬁ

[EREEok
=R i RN
gtﬁ M 67,0007T) FEME

A FEK S IRTIAAR
A2 % %8,379,0007C

T8 —

NEl 22,623, 00071(722{
) 2 BN IR Th LA T OB - e M

TR A 18 ) SR A

AR /Dﬂi
NEF R
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22 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

22 PHiEHEIZEBIEE zER

The Group &
2008 2007
—EBENE —ETLHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Share of net assets Frih B EFE 264,532 239,298
Goodwill S 213 213
264,745 239,511

Amounts due from jointly controlled JRE Ui 2k [B] 450 1 1D FE R 3K
entities (note b) (P 3ED) 240,820 259,559

The summarised financial information of the jointly controlled
entities related to the Group's interest is set out below:

EAEEEREMc HAZEH X ZHBEE
MEL 27 &HmT:

2008 2007

—Z2ENE —ETLF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T T I

Current assets MBEE 602,144 378,719

Non-current assets ERBEE 134,703 115,870

Current liabilities Do N=RE (321,895) (172,521)

Non-current liabilities FRBEE (150,420) (82,770)

264,532 239,298

Revenue g 25 183,541 57,387

Expenses, including taxation S (BEHIE) (180,632) (60,546)
Notes: B 7

(a)  Particulars regarding the principal jointly controlled entities at 31st (@) WRZZEENF=ZA=+—B&TZHRZEH

March 2008 are set out in note 53. BEZER BERAMESS -
(b)  Amounts due from jointly controlled entities are unsecured, interest (b) HRIE il 1 % B OOk Ty IR IR S R B R IR

free and repayable on demand, except for amounts due from jointly
controlled entities of HK$15,545,000 (2007: HK$110,555,000) bears
interest at rates ranging from 110% to 115% of prevailing market
rates quoted by The People’s Bank of China and the average effective
interest rate of the balances as at 31st March 2008 was 6.57% per
annum. The carrying amounts of amounts due from jointly controlled
entities approximate their respective fair values and are denominated
in Renminbi.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008

EREE EEREH S ERERIKRSE
15,545,0007C (=TT 4 :110,555,000) B
SN ZEREWEIZPBEARBITAHRRT
MIBAEI110%E15%TEZFE R _F
ENFE=ZA=+-HZEGFRTFHEEFTF
R B6.57% o HLEIEH B EEBIRR 2 REE
BERBEAREHEE LAAREIE
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23 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments as at 31st March 2008 comprise:

23 THENWRKRE

REZBENF=ZA=+—RZAHENKE
B

The Group The Company
AEE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\E —ETLF —EEN\E —ETLHF
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BET T ok e
Unlisted investments, FEMRE HARE:
at fair value:
- equity securities —RAFESH 17,601 18,428 17,565 18,394
_ private funds (note) ~FAES (HE) 274,961 162,373 182,219 86,825
292,562 180,801 199,784 105,219
Unlisted equity securities, EETRAZES
at cost less impairment WA A HBR R (E 662 1,497 = -
293,224 182,298 199,784 105,219

Available-for-sale investments are denominated in the followings
currencies:

AHERNRERATEEIIE:

The Group The Company
AEE PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EBENE —ETLF —EBENE e
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BB T BETT BB T
UsS dollar e 230,882 141,300 143,639 65,753
Euro BX7# 44,079 21,072 38,580 21,072
Hong Kong dollar ki 18,227 19,892 17,565 18,394
Others HAh 36 34 - -
293,224 182,298 199,784 105,219
Note: B

The fair value of the private funds is determined based on the quoted
market prices of the underlying listed investments and fair value of the
unlisted investments, determined based on the financial models (such as
discounted cash flow model), held by the funds.

IANESZRARBENZ2ERESHFTAEZ LTREZ
TERERELFLTRENRFBRAMBERE
MRBAMEOH DA ERMEE-
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24 INVENTORIES 24 78
The Group rEE
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T ok
Raw materials R 85,693 69,414
Finished goods B dh 204,236 210,023
Consumable stores ERmE 48,788 24,948
338,717 304,385
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in MRAEBAVINABERAZ FERA BB
cost of sales amounted to HK$1,028,090,000 (2007: #1,028,090,000c (T T L F: 5
HK$1,186,449,000). 1,186,449,0007T) °
Charges were created on the inventories with a total carrying value I TE] 488 A& )5 % 106,782,0007T (Z BT+ 4
of HK$106,782,000 (2007: HK$94,596,000) for the purpose of 7 #94,596,00070) 2 FEEERKF 1EAK
securing banking facilities granted to the Group. FTAREBERITEEZER.
25 PROPERTIES FOR SALE 25 FEYHE
The Group KEE
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Unamortised prepaid lease payments SREE G TE T & OE
- in Hong Kong —REHE 34,609 34,849
- outside Hong Kong — BB LASNE T 13,540 63,681
Development costs g N 210,796 362,629
258,945 461,159

Properties for sale include the Group's share of interest in jointly
controlled assets with an aggregate book value of HK$18,870,000
(2007: HK$19,936,000).

The cost of properties sold and included in cost of sales amounted
to HK$64,634,000 (2007: HK$43,002,000).

Charges were created on the properties for sale with a total carrying
value of HK$92,075,000 (2007: HK$109,105,000) for the purpose
of securing banking facilities granted to the Group.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008

FEVMEREASEBGEARZNEE HIE
& E AE18,870,000T (Z T F 8
#19,936,0007T) °

BHETIHIABHERANTEMERNAES
® 64,634,000t (Z 2T £ F : B #&
43,002,0007T) °

IR E 4218 A&7 892,075,000 (T L4
#5%109,105,0007T) 2 fFFEWEE EHEF - AU
BERTFTAEBMZBITEEZER.
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26 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 26 ERER FHEZERBNNRE
The Group The Company
rEH VNN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENEF —EELF —EENEF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BET T BT T
Trade debtors Z 5 E IR R 701,562 633,973 = -
Less: Provision for impairment & : & (B # & (26,897) (27,704) = -
674,665 606,269 = -
Other debtors, deposits and ~ HE M KR 7 HIZS
prepayments (note) R T8 A FRIE (BT aE) 584,286 426,629 18,811 6,683
Retention receivables JiE Uy 1R B IR X 191,075 133,076 = -
1,450,026 1,165,974 18,811 6,683
Note: M5

Other debtors, deposits and prepayments include a loan made to
an independent third party of HK$7,780,000 (2007: HK$7,800,000),
which is unsecured, interest bearing at the U.S. Prime Rate and
repayable by four installments of which the final installment is
repayable on 30th April 2009.

Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments are the Group'’s share
of receivable of HK$332,000 (2007: HK$136,000) in relation to
jointly controlled assets.

Charges were created on the debtors, deposits and prepayments
with a total carrying value of HK$53,150,000 (2007:
HK$36,932,000) for the purpose of securing banking facilities
granted to the Group.

The Group has established different credit policies for customers in
each of its core businesses. The average credit period granted to

trade debtors was 60 days.

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade debtors is as follows:

HiEURIER FHiZe REMNKERERE
SNE=ZAEL ZHEKT,780,000t 2 B (=
TT A4 587,800,0007T)  ZERBEAE
B REEEANEFERDMNEER &
BEHEFRER_TTENFHNA=+HEE-

R FHRS RENRBREANEER
fly FEEHE B & B N 2 FE YR 0% #5332,0000T
(ZZZ 4 78¥136,0007T) °

I TE] 48 {8 7 #553,150,0007C (— 22+ F: 38
#36,932,0007T) 2 EMIR R - F RS KB
NREEERE FARTFTAEERITERY
ER-

AEBHEBERLEBREFERIEEREE
BR-ETESEPFHEEMRGOR

AEEE S EYIRRZIREDTIT

2008 2007

—BENF ZTEtF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

0 - 60 days 0— 60X 520,322 515,630
61 - 90 days 61—90X 52,799 18,763
Over 90 days BIOK 101,544 71,876

674,665 606,269
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26 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(continued)

At 31st March 2008, gross trade debtors balances totalling
HK$28,904,000 (2007: HK$30,375,000) were individually
determined to be impaired, which related to customers that were
in financial difficulties. The management assessed that only a portion
of the trade debtors balances is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, impairment loss of HK$26,897,000 (2007:
HK$27,704,000) was recognised as at 31st March 2008. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances. The movement in
the provision for impairment loss during the year is as follows:

26

RWRFZ FHRERERBNARIR

(&)

R-ZETZNEZA=+—"HB REFHRER
FzRIWIRBESE £ AB128,904,000
T (ZZZT+4F:78%30,375,00050) ' B @5
WEEABTRE-REERRE ZFMH FEEE
REREE D E SERERE R -BALL R =T
TENFZAZ+—"HHRBRERRES
26,897,0007C (Z T+ F : E# 27,704,000
TL) o AREEVEREZ S ERITETMEER
FRNORERGzESH M T

2008 2007
—BENF ZETLF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT
At 1st April REA—AH 27,704 48,014
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 2,065 6,461
Impairment loss written back B R EEE (1,805) (16,735)
Uncollectable amounts written off WA E 2 £ 58 (1,777) (11,133)
Exchange realignment ME N 5 & 710 1,097
At 31st March R=A=+—8H 26,897 27,704

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are not considered to be
impaired are as follows:

SEIRTESS T RME 2 B 5 MU IR 5 2 R 8 AT
M

2008 2007

—eBNFE  -TTtf

HK$’'000 HK$'000

BT BETIT

Neither past due nor impaired I 4% 480 BA sl (B 337,064 312,049
Less than 60 days past due B H DR 60K 210,682 211,148
61 — 90 days past due BMHE61— 90K 41,999 14,039
Over 90 days past due # Hi 890K 82,913 66,362
Amount past due but not impaired B HE RFE 335,594 291,549
672,658 603,598

Debtors balances that are neither past due nor impaired mainly
relate to individuals or companies with no history of default in the
past.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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26 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 26 EWIRA - FHIZERTBENKE

27

(continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade debtors are denominated

(&)

AEBEE S RKIRKZREETIAT I &R

in the following currencies: HIME :

2008 2007
—eBNFE  -TTrf
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥ET T BT
Hong Kong dollar & 322,031 303,854
Macau pataca SR P 84,117 60,382
Euro X7 83,037 90,494
Australian dollar R IT 51,184 51,888
US dollar ETT 20,924 20,138
Renminbi AR 10,060 10,804
Other currencies Hih ' 103,312 68,709
674,665 606,269
The carrying amounts of the Group’s debtors and deposits at 31st RZFZNF=ZA=+—0 AEEZERIK

March 2008 approximate their fair values. FERFHEeZEMEEE AR EMEE-

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) CUSTOMERS FOR

27

BRENTREEDEF W (X

CONTRACT WORK

1) 2 58

The Group £ E
2008 2007
—EENF  —TTLH
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Contracts in progress at the REERAZEIPERN
balance sheet date:
Contract costs incurred EELEZAHRE 3,509,791 3,836,857
Recognised net (losses)/profits BHRF (EE) FH (44,633) 40,753
3,465,158 3,877,610
Less: Progress billings B E R IE (3,413,417) (3,741,874)
51,741 135,736
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HERAEITR:
Amounts due from customers included EBRERRBEEANZ
in current assets FEmE P E 2 RIE 312,422 343,849
Amounts due to customers included ERERRBAEERNZ
in current liabilities EREFXfZHRE (260,681) (208,113)
51,741 135,736

Advances received from customers for contract work amounted to
HK$7,488,000 (2007: HK$87,071,000) and were included in

creditors.

REHNTIRWEEPEMNHAAEMT,488,000
T (ZEZ+4F:#187,071,0007T) I BIER

JE A R R A
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28 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 28 RERREARBEEENRE
PROFIT OR LOSS
Investments at fair value through profit or loss as at 31st March REA=+T—HB RERKREAALEEENE
comprise: EBiE:
The Group The Company
rEH b NS
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE e —EENE —ZETLEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET R BET T BET T BB T
Listed investments: EmERA:
Held for trading HIEBEBE %
- debt securities —BEBES 57,483 67,817 - 7,067
— equity securities listed —&B&BzLE™
in Hong Kong PR AR B % 121,895 122,017 84,688 85,816
— equity securities listed —Hfhh 5z £
overseas N 70,417 276,334 52,996 71,699
— exchange-traded funds —-RGMBEBEES 8,704 - 8,704 -
258,499 466,168 146,388 164,582
Unlisted investments: FEEMRE:
Held for trading FIEEEA®E
- equity linked notes —RINBEER 49,278 164,058 13,104 145,048
— mutual funds —BEEES 165,520 94,392 116,484 82,357
- money market funds —BEmI5EES 167,712 14,729 167,712 14,729
Designated upon initial BB R TR % %M
recognition
— debt securities —BEBESH 125,863 176,959 60,033 52,276
— structured deposits —#HEXTFR 127,351 387,647 = 114,497
635,724 837,785 357,333 408,907
894,223 1,303,953 503,721 573,489
Analysed for reporting ERHABZ D
purposes as:
Non-current assets EMENE E 134,005 303,195 = 30,045
Current assets RBEE 760,218 1,000,758 503,721 543,444
894,223 1,303,953 503,721 573,489

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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B R &R MY et
28 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 28 RERREARBEEENRE
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) (&)
The fair values of the listed investments are determined based on ITTREZAARBENIREREEER G2
the quoted market bid prices available on the relevant exchanges MHEEAREMET MIFLTREZARE
and the fair values of the unlisted investments are determined based DEVBEAEE WE2EREEES R
on financial models or by reference to quoted prices from relevant BZWmE-
financial institutions.
Unlisted investments include structured deposits of HK$127.4 million EFMREBREB127,400,000T (ZFF
(2007: HK$387.6 million), whose fair values are affected by the + & #1387,600,00070) 2 & BEXFR E
changes in market price of specific equity securities or market ATFEZBFERABS 2TIHERLTSF
interest rate. EEETE-
The carrying amounts of investments at fair value through profit or RERERAAERENRE 2IREE TN
loss are denominated in the following currencies: THEBIE:
The Group The Company
rEEH AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEBNF e —EEBNF —ZETLEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ok b BYETT ok
UsS dollar =i 557,065 937,522 348,866 421,170
Hong Kong dollar ki 121,895 130,222 84,687 95,421
Euro BX7& 37,351 40,800 29,302 23,512
Other currencies Hi &% 177,912 195,409 40,866 33,386
894,223 1,303,953 503,721 573,489
Charges were created on the investments at fair value through IR 48 B 5 15 1,688,000 T FI MBS IR IR A A
profit or loss with a total carrying value of HK$1,688,000 for the BEREENKRECEER ER-STLFET

purpose of securing banking facilities granted to the Group in 2007. REBEBFITEEZER
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29 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29 {TEMKBIA
The Group The Company
KEE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —ETLE —EENE —ZEELF
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BET R BT T
Financial assets/(liabilities) ERATEMBITAZ
in respect of derivative MHEE/ (BE)
financial instruments
— Interest rate swaps (note a) — F %= 8] (Ffi FEa) 175 3,000 175 3,000
— Foreign currency forward —RHINES L
contracts (note b) (KMf7ED) (3,089) 2,356 (4,152) 366
— Derivative notes (note c) - PTETAEERE
(B 3EC) 1,758 34,847 1,758 34,847
— Accumulators (note d) — R REHE
i) (28,314) - (28,314) -
(29,470) 40,203 (30,533) 38,213
Analysed for reporting ERHA®Z
purposes as: DT
Current assets mENEE 9,460 42,831 8,381 40,780
Current liabilities mENBE (38,930) (2,628) (38,914) (2,567)
(29,470) 40,203 (30,533) 38,213
Notes: B 2% -

(a) Interest rate swap contracts with a total notional amount of
HK$1,026,760,000 (2007: HK$610,025,000) were entered to
swap floating interest rate to fixed interest rate or to swap
between different floating rates. These contracts will mature
within the period from 27th August 2009 to 7th September

2018.

(b)  Foreign currency forward contracts with a total notional
amount up to HK$195,420,000 (2007: HK$222,746,000) were
entered to swap various foreign currencies to other cross
currencies. These contracts will mature within the period from

3rd April 2008 to 22nd July 2009.

(c)  The Group entered into various option contracts in relation
to underlying stock index and listed securities. These contracts
will mature within the period from 11th April 2008 to 1st

June 2016.

(d)  Accumulators are knock-out options (which are exercised
automatically and periodically), under which the Group will
be entitled to receive the underlying shares or assets at an
agreed strike price. These contacts will mature within the
period from 9th April 2008 to 12th March 2009. As at 31
March 2008, the Group is committed to purchase equity
securities as the agreed strike price totalling HK$72,855,000

(2007: Nil).

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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30

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29 PTHEBKI A @)
(continued)
The derivatives are measured at fair value at each balance sheet L TTAETAERSFBEBZANBENE RS
date. Their fair values are determined with reference to fair value ZAREBENREBERBAIAEZ TSR ERE
of comparable instruments in the market or quoted prices from FREmME - TETEZIREETIIAFIE
counterparties. The carrying amounts of derivatives are denominated EHIE
in the following currencies:
The Group The Company
rEME AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\E —ETLF —EEN\E —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ok e BT T BT T
Hong Kong dollar ki (16,152) 958 (16,152) 958
US dollar eV (9,445) 39,245 (10,508) 37,255
Other currencies HibEH (3,873) - (3,873) -
(29,470) 40,203 (30,533) 38,213
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 30 ROTEEFEREAESE
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held, short-term bank RITHBRERASBERAEEMBRES REH
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less and cash HER A=A AN ZEBRARITERRFA
placed with financial institutions. The carrying amounts of these MggEPAOZREe WEEAECIREERA
assets approximate their fair values. DARERE-
The carrying amounts of bank balances and cash equivalents are RITEFRBES ZIREBE AT EEIE:
denominated in the following currencies:
The Group The Company
rEH ¥ NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—BBNE -TTtH —BRAE -TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T ok e
UsS dollar ETT 549,554 145,989 72,388 23,399
Renminbi AR 262,015 147,547 - -
Hong Kong dollar ki 162,206 239,044 13,481 96,487
Singapore dollar N T 81,628 93,373 20,408 -
Other currencies Hih&# 135,742 97,045 14,264 1,412
1,191,145 722,998 120,541 121,298

As at 31st March 2008, bank balances of HK$6,277,000 (2007:
HK$23,505,000) were pledged to a bank for the purpose of securing
bank facilities granted for the Group.

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 1.7%
(2007: 2.8%); these deposits have an average maturity of 14 days
(2007: 26 days).

R-ZZEZNF=ZFA=+—H #%6,277,000
T (ZZEZT 4 #%23,505,0007T) 2 RIT4
GEERE EARTFTAEBBTEEZE
Ro

HMEBBRTTERZEREFNEE1.7%
F:28%) ZEGHRZFHIBEAI4R (=
TEHF26K) -

—EE 4+

— ==
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31 CREDITORS, BILLS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS AND 31 BNRF -BNEE - FARSE
ACCRUALS REREH
The Group The Company
AEH AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EBENE —ETLF —EBENE e
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ok b BYETT ok
Trade creditors and B ZEMNIER R
bills payable R EE 449,571 412,607 - -
Consideration payable o i — P L R4 o 1 3
for the acquisition of ETHERZENKE
certain interest in a jointly
controlled entity 56,597 51,475 - -
Accrued contract costs BHXAZTERER 274,428 136,356 = -
Retention payables FE AR BB IR 5K 128,414 99,305 = -
Other creditors, HMEARR FARS
deposits and accruals LIEREBRA 412,682 478,403 7,322 9,019
1,321,692 1,178,146 7,322 9,019

Included in creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals are the
Group's share of liabilities of HK$95,000 (2007: HK$129,000) in
relation to jointly controlled assets.

EMAIRG ENEER FARGRBREAS
BASEMEEBR LRI EE 2 BB
¥EAB95,000T (Z T F:78%129,000

TT) e
The following is an ageing analysis of trade creditors and bills REER BIHEMRRIRESZEERZIRED
payable at the balance sheet date: Wi
The Group The Company
rEE b NS

2008 2007 2008 2007
—EBENE —TE+F —EENE —ETLEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BT T
0 - 60 days 0— 60X 360,652 373,697 - -
61 - 90 days 61—90K 26,030 6,834 - -
Over 90 days #90K 62,889 32,076 - -
449,571 412,607 - -

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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32

CREDITORS, BILLS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS AND 31 BEURR - BNRB -FAZS
ACCRUALS (continued) RERER @
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade creditors and bills payable REBZHEMNIERRENZREZIREED
are denominated in the following currencies: AT 51 &5 ) 4E
2008 2007
—eBNFE  -TTrf
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Hong Kong dollar & 198,756 208,805
Euro B 28 107,400 80,376
UsS dollar E7T 15,136 49,307
Other currencies HihEH 128,279 74,119
449,571 412,607
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade creditors, bills payable RZZZENF=ZA=+—H x&EBEFE
and other creditors at 31st March 2008 approximate their fair values. R 5K FE AT SR HR T EL th A< R IE 2 MR TEI (B R
HARBEMEE-
OUTSTANDING INSURANCE CLAIMS 32 RRRBERE
The Group AEE
Insurance claims of the following business classes are not usually THEBENZRBRRET—EE—FANHLE
settled within one year: B
Employee compensation EERE
Motor third party liability HEF=EEMT
Public liability NBEME
The claims development, net of reinsurance, of the above business FREBREZHEEER (IRBRR) AT
claims are disclosed as follows: B
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total
Underwriting year IREE ZZ2Z-F ZTT=fF CZZTTWF ZTTRE CZETRFE ZTT+E ZZINF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT BETFT BETFT BETFT BETFT BETT BETT BETRT
Estimate of BEHRBRE
cumulative claims
At end of year FREKRER 111,653 177,753 207,000 154,651 79,790 60,371 88,767
One year later —&i 75,307 87,985 101,084 126,184 80,471 87,731 -
Two years later M F 1R 89,510 134,277 124,843 121,067 70,097 - -
Three years later —Fk 104,263 133,568 116,879 101,303 - - -
Four years later 1k 101,745 136,621 101,705 - - - -
Five years later i 102,894 121,798 - - - - -
Six years later NE% 97,609 - - - - - -
Cumulative claims Z2RRE 97,609 121,798 101,705 101,303 70,097 87,731 88,767 669,010
Cumulative payments ZHEENHE 97,335 121,127 101,571 78,713 35,100 17,342 2,250 453,438
Claims outstanding ARARBRE 274 671 134 22,590 34,997 70,389 86,517 215,572
Ilﬁ’&@ﬂi

NEEH
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33 BANK BORROWINGS

33 RITER

The Group The Company
AEH ¥ NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —EELF —EENE —EEAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BET T BET T BB T
Bank loans SRITER 2,232,534 1,668,929 1,410,000 1,032,000
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 2,671 2,412 1,270 -
2,235,205 1,671,341 1,411,270 1,032,000
The borrowings are repayable &R ZEEHMT:
as follows:
Within one year —FR 723,584 815,066 158,270 475,000
More than 1 year but not —FUEED
exceeding 2 years B im M F 404,557 164,992 317,000 75,000
More than 2 years but not MEA BT
exceeding 5 years HBilAF 996,489 564,895 921,000 482,000
More than 5 years BBAF 110,575 126,388 15,000 -
2,235,205 1,671,341 1,411,270 1,032,000
Less: Amount due within BN —FREH
one year shown under I B HETE R &
current liabilities BERZER (723,584) (815,066) (158,270) (475,000)
1,511,621 856,275 1,253,000 557,000
Secured HER 350,555 372,040 - -
Unsecured E e 1,884,650 1,299,301 1,411,270 1,032,000
2,235,205 1,671,341 1,411,270 1,032,000

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 33 RITEX

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate their
fair values as majority of the Group’s borrowings carried interest at

ﬁEmﬁ?KZfPE@@Eﬁ%?&iZQﬁE*H“
SEARBD ZBERBZAFBNEFHE fEfﬂ

floating rate. The bank borrowings are denominated in the following KT A TS BESME -
currencies:
The Group The Company
AEE KA T
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF —EENE —EELF
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BET R BT T
Hong Kong dollar B 1,646,520 1,412,837 1,411,270 1,032,000
Renminbi AR # 249,750 - - -
Euro B ZE 210,177 137,478 - -
Australian dollar BT 64,532 59,676 = -
Canadian dollar mexx 53,432 52,391 = -
uUs dollar ETT 10,794 8,959 - -
2,235,205 1,671,341 1,411,270 1,032,000
The effective interest rates of the bank borrowings at the balance REERARITERZEBRFERNOT
sheet date were as follows:
The Group The Company
rEHE A F
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE T LF —EENE —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BET R BT T
Hong Kong dollar ki 2.2% 4.7% 2.2% 4.6%
Renminbi AR 7.4% - = -
Euro B 72 5.0% 5.2% - -
Australian dollar BT 9.8% 7.9% - -
Canadian dollar meXxXx 5.0% 5.0% = -
uUs dollar ETT 4.6% 7.6% - -

The exposure of the bank borrowings to interest-rate changes and
the contractual repricing dates are below 6 months.

Bank borrowings of HK$350,555,000 (2007: HK$372,040,000) are
secured by charges on the assets of the Group as disclosed in notes
14, 15, 17, 19, 24, 25, 26, 28 and 30.

RITE R Z M E

AT

$R1T1E B ¥ 350,555,0007T (

%@&T /?Ti{ﬁ H Hﬂﬁj/dl

—ETLEE

#5372,040,0007T) IIAAREEEEAER R
MsE14-1517-19+24+2526 28 % 30 #

F=o
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35

34 OTHER LOANS 34 ﬁﬂ{ﬁn
The Group ZKE
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T ok
The other loans are repayable as follows: Efth &z 2 EE T ¢
Within one year —FR 315 256
More than 1 year but not —FNAEAT
exceeding 2 years B 3B M 326 268
More than 2 years but not ME L BT
exceeding 5 years BiBAF 1,049 865
More than 5 years iR h 9 312
1,699 1,701
Less: Amount due within one year BN —FREBTREERD
shown under current liabilities %1; A2 &R (315) (256)
1,384 1,445
The loans are unsecured, interest free and repayable by 6 annual H (85 A EE R E R §E7’T‘ RANEEF
installments, the last of which falls due in 2013. The carrying EBRE mECEFBR- =F o HA AR
amounts of the other loans approximate their fair values. The loans ZEETE@%{)i%Z’AfME*E o H th {8 SR A i
are denominated in Swedish Kroner. M AR
SHARE CAPITAL 35 BRA
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Authorised: ETE R
540,000,000 ordinary shares of 540,000,0000% & 38 i%
HK$1.25 each EREEBE1.257T 675,000 675,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAMBRA:
278,582,090 ordinary shares of 278,582,0900% & i %
HK$1.25 each BREEBE1.257T 348,228 348,228

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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36 RESERVES 36 f#fE
The Group rE
Capital Property  Investment Exchange
Share Capital redemption revaluation revaluation  fluctuation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ERERE WEER REER HEHE
B2 R E EXGE i i i FHRE REER xS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BETT BETT BB BB BB
(note a)
(HzEa)
At 1Tst April 2006 RZTTRE
mA—H 417,860 327,875 7,526 - 849 37,911 1,580,545 2,372,566
Exchange difference BEGINEEAR
on translation of e NAR
operations of HEEH R E
overseas subsidiaries, $BMEEZ
associates and jointly ERES
controlled entities - - - - - 68,633 - 68,633
Change in fair value of AHENREZ
available-for-sale AnfEE
investments - - - - 4,768 - - 4,768
Share of property MME—FBE
revaluation of an associate A AW EEG - - - 15,821 - - - 15,821
Total income recognised BN #Ex
directly in equity R BN - - - 15,821 4,768 68,633 - 89,222
Profit for the year AFEEZER - - - - - - 317,869 317,869
Total recognised income and RN E# R
expenses for the year WARBRX - - - 15,821 4,768 68,633 317,869 407,091
Dividends paid B E - - - - - - (139,291) (139,291)
Dilution of interest BE-HEMBAA
in a subsidiary i - 4,727 - - - - - 4,727
At 31st March 2007 RZTTLF
—A=t+—H 417,860 332,602 7,526 15,821 5,617 106,544 1,759,123 2,645,093
Exchange difference BEGHNHBLR
on translation of BERNAR
operations of HEREHEERN
overseas subsidiaries, ¥BHAELEL
associates and EXER
jointly controlled entities - - - - - 180,824 - 180,824
Change in fair value of AHENREY
available-for-sale AREED
investments - - - - 36,344 - - 36,344
Total income recognised ~ EERER
directly in equity RZBMA - - - - 36,344 180,824 - 217,168
Profit for the year REEZ &R - - - - - - 230,747 230,747
Total recognised income and & R B # 2
expenses for the year WA RBEX - - - - 36,344 180,824 230,747 447,915
Dividends paid BIRE S - - - - - - (128,148) (128,148)
Dilution of interest BE-HNBEAA
in a subsidiary (note b) ez (M5ED) - 13,566 - - - - - 13,566
Acquisition of additional WK B 2 AEE S
interests in subsidiaries s (Mo
(note ¢) - (2,330 - - - - - (2,330)
Premium on acquisition of W& KT8 A 7
further interest of 2B (fisd)
subsidiaries (note d) - (2,177) - - - - - (2,177)
At 31st March 2008 RZZENE
ZB=1+—8” 417,860 341,661 7,526 15,821 41,961 287,368 1,861,722 2,973,919
ETBRREEBRADA

—EENEFH
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36 RESERVES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The balance arose mainly from various Group reorganisations in the
past comprising redomicile of the Company, spin-offs and privatisation
of Group entities.

Pursuant to a placing agreement dated 3rd May 2007, the Group
placed 25,384,146 shares of Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited (the
“CPHL"), a subsidiary of the Group, to independent third parties for
a gross proceed of HK$93,921,340. Pursuant to another subscription
agreement dated 3rd May 2007, the Group subscribed 25,384,146
newly issued shares of CPHL at a consideration of HK$93,921,340.
As a result of the share placing and subscription agreements, CPHL
effectively issued 25,384,146 additional shares to new shareholders
of CPHL for a net proceed of HK$92,046,000 and the Group’s interest
in CPHL was diluted from 56.70% to 50.02%. The dilution has resulted
in a gain of HK$13,566,000, which was accounted for directly in
equity.

During the year, the Group acquired additional interests of certain
subsidiaries of the Group, at a consideration of HK$32,904,000. The
difference between the consideration and the Group’s additional share
of the identifiable net assets of these subsidiaries at the date of the
acquisition of HK$2,330,000 was accounted for directly in equity.

On 2nd May 2007, the Company purchased certain subsidiaries and
businesses engaging in the computer and information communication
technology industry (“IT business”) from CPHL at an aggregate
consideration of HK$55,572,000. The Group effectively bought out
the remaining interests in the IT business from the minority interests
at a premium of HK$2,177,000, representing the difference between
the portion of cash consideration and share of net asset value of the
remaining interest, which has been accounted for directly in equity.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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36

& 1E )

GBS

(a)

HKHRIBRABEZHEEEEMAFR BE
ARFEM EERAZAHERILEL.

REBHAE-_ZTT+FRA-ZBZ2EEH
RSB B A 093,021,340t ELE E
MBARELZEZERAERAR ([ELZ
g5 ]) 225,384,146l TR E=F 1R
BE-—BEHHRA-ZTLFRA=-HZRE
W AEBMANREBE 93,921,340t R B
25,384, 1468 E )2 TR AT IR (7 - E FEAR (9
EErRREHBRZ HLZTEEBRENT
25,384,146/ R FBINIR D FH T2 AT - FT
SRR AB192,046,0007T A KA EE
RELTZTHHRAEZEZMRS6.70%#EE
50.02% ° It EEE AR B 13,566,000 T Mz
WHEERERSPER.

RERN AEEREAEEETHBARZ
xR REBAB132,904,000T R EEAE
ERZEWB AR YREEFEAEIIND
ZZEEAE2,330,000 @BEEER
s PR

RIZEE+ERA-_H ARARNERES
#55,572,000 L E L ZRIRERETHRES
S R EMBABERTE ([EMBEESL]) 2
MBARREB - AEEEEREUBE
2,177,000 % (B (BIIR &R E o EER T &
mXEEFEMEZEZH) O HREEZ
PREREMBRES 2B TERZ €82
EERERPER
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36 RESERVES (continued) 36 f##E @)
The Company AT
Capital  Investment
Share Contributed redemption revaluation Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve profits Total
A5 B MABH ErERRE REEGHE REER i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AT BETT BT BETT AT
(note)
B &
At 1st April 2006 RZZEZERF
mA—H 417,860 95,413 7,526 71 916,759 1,437,629
Change in fair value of AHENRE
available-for-sale 2ARE
investments 2y - - - 3,784 - 3,784
Total income recognised ~ EENERBERZ
directly in equity FUON - - - 3,784 - 3,784
Profit for the year REE 27 - - - - 60,947 60,947
Total recognised income and & A E # 72
expenses for the year WARRE - - - 3,784 60,947 64,731
Dividends paid BEIREE - - - - (139,291) (139,291)
At 31st March 2007 R_ZZLE
—A=+—H 417,860 95,413 7,526 3,855 838,415 1,363,069
Change in fair value of AHENRE
available-for-sale ZRh1E
investments 2% - - - 19,272 - 19,272
Total income recognised ~ EERNEZRERZ
directly in equity AU - - - 19,272 - 19,272
Loss for the year KEEZEE - - - - (33,935) (33,935)
Total recognised income and R E # R
expenses for the year WARAE - - - 19,272 (33,935) (14,663)
Dividends paid BIREE - - - - (128,148) (128,148)
At 31st March 2008 RZETNF
—A=+—H 417,860 95,413 7,526 23,127 676,332 1,220,258
Note: Bt & -

Contributed surplus represents the difference between the value of net assets
of subsidiaries acquired and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares
issued for their acquisition. Under the Company Act of 1981 of Bermuda,
the contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution to
shareholders.

BABBRDRRAWBENBARZEEFERWE
BAETARBARND ZEEIZR-REBRE—N
N—F 27 (ER]) A A BT A 2R ER
2R

HEIBEREEAERAA
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37 OTHER PAYABLE 37 HAEMAR
The Group rE
Other payable represents subscription payable on an available-for- HMENRDAIHENREZENRESE.
sale investment.
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Subscription payable: EARES: 7,760 7,760
Less: Imputed interest o HEE R B - (681)
Subscription payable at fair value BEARBEIRZENREE 7,760 7,079
Carrying amounts repayable: IREEZEEE:
- Within one year -——FR 7,760 -
— More than 1 year, but not ——FUAEETBBMFE
exceeding 2 years - 7,079
7,760 7,079
The subscription payable is interest-free and repayable in February BRNRBENRERER_ZSZTNFEF_RE
2009. At inception, the fair value of the subscription payable balance BoRBRK BNREBEE AR BEAERTI AR
are determined by adopting a discount rate of 4.7%. As at 31st REAT%HAE - RZZEENF=RA=+—8"
March 2008, the fair value of the subscription payable approximates IEHWE%%Z”AﬁTEEﬁiEWEETE*H o JERTRR
its fair value. The subscription payable is denominated in Hong BEBIAEKAIE
Kong dollar.
38 DEFERRED TAX 38 IEIEBLIE
The Group rE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) TXHFEADNRERFERBELEBRFEER
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior ZEZERRIEEE (BE) REREAFE
reporting years: BRARIFEE 2 #E):
Accelerated  Revaluation Allowance
tax of for doubtful Tax
depreciation  properties  Trademark debts losses Others Total
MEREHE BEfiNE BE  RERER HEEE it aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETrx BEFr A%Tr BT BETx
At 1st April 2006 58,417 50,633 18,900 (4,368) (44,489) 13,263 92,356
Exchange realignment [R.ﬂ” 530 - - (202) (877) 126 (423)
Charge/(credit) to income ERERR &K
statement for the year 3%/ (G A) 7,119 5,222 - 1,307 (174) (664) 12,810
At 31st March 2007 R-_ZT+F=A=1-H 66,066 55,855 18,900 (3,263) (45,540) 12,7125 104,743
Exchange realignment ELBRE 322 4,638 - (232) (609) (751) 3,368
Charge/(credit) to income EREERHE
statement for the year 5%/ (3tA) (1,146) 85,866 - 435 2,730 (15,203) 72,682
At 31st March 2008 R-_ZEN\E=A=1-8 65,242 146,359 18,900 (3,060) (43,419 (3,229 180,793
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38

39

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 38 ELEHRIA (@)
For the purposes of balance sheet presentation, certain deferred RESEEBBRZRINITN  HBHIELEHIE
tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the BEERBBELCHERHE - B BRER E
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes: ERIERE ST -
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIB A & 206,231 113,487
Deferred tax assets RERIEE E (25,438) (8,744)
180,793 104,743
At the balance sheet date, the Group had unused tax losses of REEH AEERHACHBBEERBE
HK$1,563,192,000 (2007: HK$1,485,882,000) available for offset 1,563,192,000t ( Z T T £ F &
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in #1,485,882,0007T) ' A] AA{EE 84 15 2R 2
respect of HK$248,108,000 (2007: HK$260,228,000) of such losses. Fo B rp 8% 248,108,000 (ZEZ L F: /5
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the #260,228,000T) 2 HIBEEDBRABIELE
remaining HK$1,315,084,000 (2007: HK$1,225,654,000) due to T8 T8 & 7 o [ R S i ) £ DA TEORI - B0 AR R
the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in tax losses T2 FIBEEIEE1,315,084,000L (ZEF
are losses of HK$78,050,000 (2007: HK$66,015,000) of subsidiaries +F 75 #1,225,654,0007T) - R AIELEH
in Mainland China that will gradually expire until 2013; tax losses EHEE -BEBEREHENMKE 2 FEA
of HK$22,103,000 (2007: HK$14,354,000) of other overseas HE—T =% B E%78,050,0007T
subsidiaries that will expire from 2008 to 2018. Other tax losses (ZZ2Z+F:/5%66,015,0007T) KEAFHN
may be carried forward indefinitely. MEBARERBB _ZTZNEFE_Z—\F
2 BIE R IBET A1 22,103,000T (ZT T +
4 B %14,354,0007T) o H b B 18 & 1B 4% 7T &
PRER(E A -
At the balance sheet date, the Group had unrecognised deductible REER REB 2 KRR T?Dﬁﬁﬁﬁ;r§ﬁ2%
temporary differences of HK$16,584,000 (2007: HK$21,114,000). & % 16,584,000 (Z T L F B K
A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in relation to such 21,114,0007T) ° $E§Ii§\u+{£*j{1/2ﬁ}%
deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable 7 ERAMTAEAREREA R AT HRE
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary RER QW ARBREELNBRELERES
differences can be utilised. Ee
CONVERTIBLE BONDS 39 ARRES

On 26th July 2006, the Company issued a semi-annual 2.125%
convertible bonds with an aggregate amount of HK$450 million
(the “Convertible Bonds”). Each bondholder has the option to
convert the Convertible Bonds into shares of the Company with a
par value of HK$1.25 each at a conversion price of HK$11.20,
which is adjusted to HK$10.19 and HK$9.98 as a result of the
approval for the payment of the final dividend of an amount of
HK$0.3 per share for the year ended 31st March 2007 and interim
dividend of an amount of HK$0.16 per share for the period ended
30th September 2007 respectively. The adjustment became effective
from 29th August 2007 and 4th January 2008 respectively.
Conversion price will be further adjusted upon approval of dividend
in future.

REZZZXRFLA-+XNA AQREFTAS
42 FE 5 ¥ 450,000,0007C2.125% 7] 32 & 1& 5
([T ES]) SESFEAGEB AR
EFREREE 1N 20t 2 REBEAKRA
ﬂZiH&E@iﬂm 2570 2 B 15 o B AL TR
NEZE T+HFE=ZA=Z+—HLEFEZR
Eﬁ%,%\ﬁxo.a/%x&azﬁf%i%ftihﬂ_
T HIEHBZ R EREFR0.16E T BRRE

ﬁﬁ%%um%%i%;‘%ﬁm0.197*5&5%’%9.98
T EARSIR _EZTLFNA=-T+NA
M -—TTNF— HEEIEAI MR (B HE & K K
% B HE o A o

HE B EMARAT
TTN\EFH
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39

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 39 ARES )
Unless previously converted or purchased or redeemed, each RIFCERIBEXER TARXQRARN-ZE
Convertible Bond shall be redeemed by the Company at 121.30% ——FtAZTNB(TBRRERIEHA) &
of its principal amount together with accrued interest on 28th July REFE2121.30%E R EFTEME R B H 2 F
2011 (the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds). BREL AR ES-
On 28th July 2009 (the “Put Option Date”), the holder of RZZEZNFELAZ+HNAB ([RAER]) -
Convertible Bond will have the right at such holder’s option, to RTW‘HXE%Z%%/\%%V ERERARD
require the Company to redeem all or some of the Convertible AR REERIEARSE 2113, 1%5@7?&“.:*1
Bonds of such holder on the Put Option Date at 113.1% of their Ef’ilil HE(ETEEZA) 2FEERES
principal amount together with accrued interest up to but excluding LW AR ES -
the redemption date.
The proceeds from the issuance of the Convertible Bonds have to BITZ A MR EF G /TAIE?EZ B ER
be split into liability and derivative components. On issuance of the PTET A - TETEBHN QL EHEE
Convertible Bonds, the fair value of the derivative component is EEEHRE BN BARBBEEEHE
determined using an option price model; and this amount is carried RSB - BT R BRRIBRE DA B E
as a liability until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The DWABEFHHEERA B2 REBR Y HE
remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the liability component B PTET AP UBITAZAABENE &
and is carried as a liability on the amortised cost basis until BREEBBRBZAMNTEIAS S 24
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The derivative component AEEEHEKOFEMEBT RS R ER
is measured at fair value on the issuance date and any subsequent
changes in fair value of the derivative component as at the balance
sheet date are recognised in the income statement.
The convertible bonds recognised in the balance sheet as at 31st RIZEZENF=ZA=1T—BHBZEEAELR®E
March 2008 are calculated as follows: RZABMBRESAENAT
The Group The Company
rEE AAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT IT BT T
Liability component =R g R
At 1st April 2007 R-ZZTZEELFWA—H 354,423 398,726
Interest expenses FEZ 26,852 30,207
At 31st March 2008 R-ZEENF=ZA=+—H 381,275 428,933
Derivative component FTETARMG
At 1st April 2007 R-ZZTZEELFWA—H 26,667 30,000
Fair value adjustment AR EHE (23,912) (26,900)
At 31st March 2008 RZBTENF=ZA=+—H 2,755 3,100

The effective interest rate for the liability component of the
convertible bonds is 9.8% per annum. As at 31st March 2008,
convertible bonds with par value of HK$50,000,000 (2007:
HK$50,000,000) are held by a subsidiary of the Group.

The carrying amount of the Group’s convertible bonds-liability
component at 31st March 2008 approximates its fair value.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is organised on a worldwide
basis into five divisions. These divisions are the basis on which the
Group reports its primary segment information. Principal activities
of the segments are as follows:

Construction and engineering: Construction and engineering work
for lifts and escalators, aluminium windows, civil, building
construction, electrical & mechanical, environmental and pipe
rehabilitation contracts.

Insurance and investment: General insurance business except aircraft,
aircraft liabilities and credit insurance, and investment.

Property: Property investment, development and management, cold
storage and hotel operations.

Food and beverages: Food and beverages trading and retailing.

Computer and information communication technology and others:
Sales and servicing of IT equipment and business machines and
retailing and trading and servicing of motor vehicles and food
trading.

Segment assets primarily consist of investment properties, property,
plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments, goodwill, other
intangible assets, available-for-sale investments, other non-current
assets, investments at fair value through profit or loss, inventories,
properties for sale, debtors, deposits and prepayments, amounts
due from associates, amounts due from jointly controlled entities,
amounts due from customers for contract work, derivative financial
instruments, bank balances and cash.

Segment liabilities primarily consist of creditors, bills payable and
deposits, unearned insurance premiums, outstanding insurance
claims, amounts due to associates, amounts due to customers for
contract work, deferred income, derivative financial instruments
and other payable.

40
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40 BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 40 EBREMDE @)
(continued)
Business segments (continued) E¥¥a8E (B
Segment information about these businesses is presented below. EEB 2 EERNAT:
Revenue and results W iR EREE
Year ended 31st March 2008 BE-_ZEENF=A=1+—-BHLEE
Computer and
information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Food and  technology
engineering investment Property beverages and others Consolidated
ERRK
BER BRBER
BBIE KRRERE L/ 28 NERHEAM 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
BETR BETT BETR BETT BETR BETT
REVENUE e &
Total segment revenue DEEE 3,845,780 120,431 419,935 299,034 964,253 5,649,433
Inter-segment revenue R PALL e (384) (15,329) (52,630) - (12,412) (80,755)
External revenue oMk = 3,845,396 105,102 367,305 299,034 951,841 5,568,678
RESULTS ES
Segment results DEZEE 14,652 (71,052) 501,446 7,087 54,859 506,992
Unallocated corporate AAPBZARZH
expenses (15,566)
Share of results of associates Ff{fi & A Rl ¥ & 3,966 - 14,509 9,631 (848) 27,258
Share of results of jointly 715 £ R 5
controlled entities TEEE 1,067 - 1,842 - - 2,909
Finance income BB A 16,420
Finance costs B 75 & A (126,043)
Profit before taxation B B0 Al s A 411,970
Income tax expenses Frsfis i (112,811)
Profit for the year RE % A 299,159

Chevalier International Holdings Limited

Inter-segment revenue is charged at prices determined by
management with reference to market prices.

Annual Report 2008
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40 BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 40 XBREMDE @)
(continued)
Business segments (continued) E¥¥a8E (B
Assets and liabilities EERAEE
As at 31st March 2008 R-ZZENF=ZA=+—-H
Computer and
information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Food and  technology
engineering investment Property beverages and others Consolidated
BERR
BHIR RBRRE /S B8 HNERHEA ma
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  EMTR  BMTR B%TR  EMTR BETx
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 2,214,392 1,766,442 3,291,693 325,609 421,825 8,019,961
Interests in associates BTt E DAl e 9,580 - 47,826 77,963 37,449 172,818
Interests in jointly BT 1t 3£ 1R 2
controlled entities TrEIER 16,155 - 248,590 - - 264,745
Unallocated corporate APERBEE
assets 121,194
Total assets BEE 8,578,718
LIABILITIES B
Segment liabilities SEER 1,247,512 357,957 138,315 58,622 111,612 1,914,018
Unallocated corporate APBRRAEIEE
liabilities 2,897,517
Total liabilities BaR 4,811,535
Other information Hib &R
Year ended 31st March 2008 BE-ZEN\F=ZA=+—-HLEFE
Computer and
information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Food and  technology
engineering investment Property beverages and others Consolidated
Bk
BER ERER
BHIE RBRRE mE 'R MERHAE &e
HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BET T BETT BETT
Capital expenditures BRHAX 74,847 32 11,084 36,402 1,445 123,810
Depreciation and WEREH
amortisation 59,535 74 18,502 21,987 5,004 105,102
Impairment loss on property, Y% &5 k& &2
plant and equipment BEEE - - 4,059 3,356 - 7,415
Write back of impairment #EBREEHEL
loss on prepaid lease REER
payments - - (2,637) - - (2,637)
Impairment loss AHENREZ
on available-for-sale REER

investments - 835 - - - 835
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40 BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
(continued)
Business segments (continued)
Revenue and results
Year ended 31st March 2007

40 ¥ REMEDE @

ES ikl

(%)

WKk EE
BZEZ_ZTZ+tH=A=1+—-BHLEE

Computer and

information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Food and technology
engineering investment Property beverages and others  Consolidated
B R
BER EhEE
BWMIRE RERREE LS B BEREAMm Fa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
REVENUE W &=
Total segment revenue Iy %5 42 B 3,003,573 149,140 352,672 250,076 995,159 4,750,620
Inter-segment revenue Sz M (284) (19,756) (47,531) - (17,812) (85,383)
External revenue MK 3,003,290 129,383 305,141 250,076 977,347 4,665,237
RESULTS ¥iE
Segment results NECEE 186,131 150,238 135,476 14,909 39,417 526,171
Unallocated corporate bl /N
expenses (12,132)
Share of results of FriG Bt & N AR
associates 2,557 - (70) 955 1,821 5,263
Share of results of jointly  FT1f £ & 2 I
controlled entities EEE 2,674 - (5,833) - - (3,159)
Finance income BRI A 14,263
Finance costs %8R (122,356)
Profit before taxation B B4 A1 5 A 408,050
Income tax expenses FriS 2 i (66,853)
Profit for the year AN i F 341,197

Inter-segment revenue is charged at prices determined by
management with reference to market prices.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008

BREBOERNZZERBEREBREDS

EREE-



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER R M AT

40 BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(continued)

Business segments (continued)
Assets and liabilities

As at 31st March 2007

40 ¥ REMEDE @

X¥o®E(E)
EERARE
R-_ZTLF=A=+—~H

Computer and

information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Food and technology
engineering investment Property beverages and others  Consolidated
B R
BER Bi@a
BRI RRRRE S E¥  HEREM 5é
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BB T BETT BETFT BETT
ASSETS &E
Segment assets NEEE 1,970,217 1,788,237 2,357,990 318,557 406,279 6,841,280
Interests in associates iRy AN 3 9,294 - 164 62,092 65,534 137,084
Interests in jointly FiT i 25 R 4
controlled entities rEZER 15,083 - 224,428 - - 239,511
Unallocated corporate APEAAEE
assets 73,337
Total assets BEE 7,291,212
LIABILITIES 8
Segment liabilities ABEEE 1,062,840 345,692 136,784 47,630 137,459 1,730,405
Unallocated corporate AOERAIEE
liabilities 2,245,290
Total liabilities BafE 3,975,695
Other information HiaEp
Year ended 31st March 2007 BE TS+ F=-FB=+—HIL&E
Computer and
information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Food and technology
engineering investment Property beverages and others  Consolidated
BRR
BRER B
BRI RRRRE S E¥  HEREM 5éa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BB T BETT BETFT BETT
Capital expenditures BRHEZ 117,354 373 3,892 45,656 2,132 169,407
Depreciation and TEREE
amortisation 57,931 161 19,614 17,352 6,864 101,922
Impairment loss on property, Y% &5 k& # 2
plant and equipment REEE 6,782 - 6,972 - - 13,754
Impairment loss on prepaid E{fAEZHE
lease payments BEEE - - 1,628 - - 1,628
Impairment loss on EREEREEZ
intangible assets REER
and goodwill 7,157 - - - - 7,157
Impairment loss AHENKREZ
on available-for-sale REER
investments - 1,473 - - - 1,473

HEIBEREEAERAA
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40 BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 40 EBRMWEMEDE 8
(continued)
Geographical segments (based on location of assets) wESE (RBEEMEL)
The Group's operations in construction and engineering are located REBBERKBRIREEEESE R -F
in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China, Singapore, Europe and B A~ B N3~ BOM OB E A o (R B AR B
Australia. Insurance and investment business is conducted in Hong EEBEFE-MEEBETEERE TEAM
Kong. Property operations are mainly carried out in Hong Kong, EMERNER-BREBEIEZEED FINKE
Mainland China and Canada. Food and beverages business is carried EHRBEANEE EREMBANEEREE
out in Hong Kong, Singapore and Mainland China. Computer and ERE - FPEAM R REEE E KD
information communication technology operations are mainly carried EmMERREREE-

out in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Thailand. Other operations
are carried out in Canada and the USA, respectively.

Revenue by geographical market

RihEWHE DS 2 WH
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %
BETR BET T
Hong Kong BE 3,083,921 55 2,717,761 58
Macau BT 834,150 15 424,475 9
Canada IEWN 458,778 8 411,363 9
Europe BOM 403,770 7 465,607 10
Australia SEOM 207,961 4 173,302 4
Singapore g 187,785 3 155,346 3
USA EH 160,632 3 106,872 2
Mainland China AR A 156,515 3 132,801 3
Thailand #=H 48,032 1 72,764 2
Others Hth 27,134 1 4,946 -
5,568,678 100 4,665,237 100
The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of segment NTAEREERBEARIFAMEHES S
assets and capital expenditures analysed by geographical area in COBAEREBEREARI DI
which the assets are located and capital expenditures are incurred:
Carrying amounts of
segment assets Capital expenditures
SEEERETE BEARREX
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENEF —EELHF —EENEF —ZETLEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BB T BET T BB T
Hong Kong BE 4,482,949 3,576,789 51,788 69,778
Macau R P 243,885 131,892 2,928 1,249
Canada mEX 311,062 282,244 1,292 1,136
Europe B 545,376 575,336 29,206 49,923
Australia BN 262,979 288,727 19,974 26,275
Singapore 1N 339,526 306,038 1,424 3,639
USA xH 206,082 209,068 - 37
Mainland China AR A 1,524,094 1,084,441 17,198 17,170
Thailand T 58,636 52,973 - 67
Others Efth 45,372 333,772 — 133
8,019,961 6,841,280 123,810 169,407

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND 41 BERERVAFTHERLEE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE LIVES ZRAE A
As explained in note 40, the Group uses business segments as its B FEA0FT I REBMAE K D FHERZ2RE
primary segment for reporting segment information. For the purpose PEEAMZEFESE - RETRENS B2
of impairment testing, goodwill and other intangible assets are BEERUAFHIEREEDRBERS K
with indefinite useful lives, and are allocated, at acquisition, to the EHEHERZENEERSBECREELS
CGUs that are expected to benefit from such intangible assets. The -HEBEZEZREECDESBENT
respective carrying amounts had been allocated as follows:
Goodwill License Trademark
mE 3 EmE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT BT
Construction and engineering: R TR
— Pipe technologies, roads —BEERM BEHESR
drainage and water works KF T 52 57,323 24,377 -
— Lifts and escalators —AREREBES 3,259 - -
Property: L/ES
~ Logistics and warehousing - YWRRERHE 64,566 - -
Food and beverages BER 85,182 - 108,000
210,330 24,377 108,000
The Group tests goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives AEBBFHSAAEERARRBRARAFH
annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications LEVEERGEMARE MEBREDTR

that they might be impaired.

The recoverable amounts of CGUs in food and beverages operation
and the pipe operation in Europe and Australia are determined
from fair value less cost to sell approach while recoverable amounts
of CGUs for remaining operations are determined from value-in-
use calculations approach. The key assumptions for both approaches
are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to selling prices and direct costs. Management estimates
appropriate discount rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs.
Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices
and expectations of future changes in the market.

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value-in-use or fair value less cost to sell, whichever is
appropriate, of the CGUs to which goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite lives has been allocated. Both approaches require
the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present
value.

e EATETAA

EREBURBMNERBMN 2 EBEB 2R

EEEMHAIRE 2 EIDRA & EREE K
AEEEREE EREMREELBM O
CeBhREAPEENEEEE -ZmEs

Z/XE’JEEE“"ﬁﬁﬁﬁirﬂﬁﬁﬁfﬁiﬁﬁiP

@'Fﬁéﬂiﬁ%iﬁﬁqF?@&Eﬁi?iﬁu%ﬁ
Rl r B RIS AENS BN BAEEE-M
EEREEKAN R BB E T 5B EED
R 8 2R o 8 5 1 FROBI T 5E o

ErTREECRERHAEIERERAR
RAAFHEVEECReELESEL 2FA
PEEIARERBEEXRR (RIFEATME) <&
ERAZMESEES ZEEREAZREE
EBUEAZARRESRE WEE 2R
EHEERE

HE B EMARAT
TTN\EFH
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41 IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND 41 BERERVAFTHERLEE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE LIVES Z AR ()
(continued)
For impairment assessment adopting value-in-use calculations KACAPEBEFEEGRAER A& K
approach, the Group principally prepares cash flow forecasts derived RReRETEA IRV BKERESRIR
from the most recent financial budgets approved by management ENFHB OB BRE REM2%
for the next five years and extrapolates cash flows for the following E10%BEREMBEHZELNRRKRAFZ
five years based on estimated growth rates ranging from 2% to ReRE-ALUMRBRARSRE ZBATHF=
10%. The pre-tax rates used to discount the forecast cash flows DRI%ZE1% T E-BHEREEOETAE
range from 7% to 12%. Goodwill and trademark is allocated to B MY S S s oAl B EEE iR E
the Group’s branded coffee shops segment. The recoverable amount ARABEREERKANEE BB 2AEERE
is determined based on fair value less costs to sell. These calculations BEMZ —FHUWKBEE 2 HRERERE
use post-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets A —FHREZBESREMEREIR/REEN
approved by management covering a one-year period. Cash flows FI0%ZE20% EFRFRUEFRAFEE TR
beyond the one-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate FRENBRE EMETS%REFUHR X
ranging from 10% to 20% per annum up to the fifth year and zero 15%m HE &
growth rate per annum from the sixth year to fifteen year, gross
margin of 75% and a discount rate of 15% per annum.
42 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 42 EERESRTHRAEZHME
MANAGEMENT
Directors’ emoluments ESMe
Emoluments paid and payable to the directors of the Company are XNEENTARAESEZHMEMT:
as follows:
2008
—EEN\F
Retirement
Salaries benefits
Directors’ and other scheme
fee benefits contribution Total
FeR BiRE
EEme H b 18 F AT wnE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET R BET R BET T
Executive Director: HITES:
Chow Yei Ching &) 73 48D - 9,027 - 9,027
Kuok Hoi Sang £ - 4,913 338 5,251
Fung Pak Kwan (note a) Hia (M sta) - 696 45 741
Tam Kwok Wing R - 2,700 158 2,858
Kan Ka Hon (note b) 5w (M aEb) - 2,030 152 2,182
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar J& # IE - 1,500 75 1,575
Ho Chung Leung Al SRR - 1,600 120 1,720
Ho Sai Hou (note ¢) falttt 52 (P 5 c) - - - -
Independent BYUFHITES:
Non-Executive Director:
Yang Chuen Liang (note c) B (o - - - -
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph JE A 400 - - 400
Li Kwok Heem, John (note b) 2B 3t (Ki3Eb) 150 - - 150
Sun Kai Dah, George B E 150 - - 150
700 22,466 888 24,054

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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42 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 42 ESEREHRITHRABZHE @
MANAGEMENT (continued)
Directors’ emoluments (continued) EEME (8
2007
—ZETLF
Retirement
Salaries benefits
Directors’ and other scheme
fee benefits contribution Total
Fek RK&
Yk H 18 F 2K wrE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT  BETT BETFT BETR
Executive Director: HITES:
Chow Yei Ching J& 74D - 8,672 - 8,672
Kuok Hoi Sang g4 - 4,500 338 4,838
Tam Kwok Wing EAETES - 2,100 158 2,258
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar B4 IE - 1,500 75 1,575
Fung Pak Kwan (note a) A (Hsta) - 3,330 227 3,557
Kan Ka Hon (note b) 5= (Fitb) - 2,230 126 2,356
Ho Chung Leung Al SRR - 1,800 99 1,899
Independent BIUFHITES:
Non-Executive Director:
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph JE A #E 400 - - 400
Li Kwok Heem, John (note b) ZEE# (MfzEb) 150 - - 150
Sun Kai Dah, George 7E = 150 - - 150
700 24,132 1,023 25,855

Notes:

(a) Resigned on 1st October 2007.
(b) Resigned on 31st March 2008.
(c) Appointed on 1st April 2008.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals include three (2007: three) directors
and the total emoluments paid to the remaining two highest paid
individuals for both years are as follows:

(@) R-TTLF+A-ABE-
(b)y RZZETZNF=ZA=+—HEE"

© R-BENFNA-AEEME-

&S #HM

ERAAATZHE BRE-REF (ZFF

tF =R - RBEMENTERMERS
e Atz@Me5h:

2008 2007

—EZTN\F —ETLF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & 28t & H A4 42 A 4,252 4,122
Performance-based bonus BRBBER L 1,992 1,592
Contributions to retirement scheme BIRE 2 HR 202 180
6,446 5,894
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42 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 42 EBERERTHRAEZHME )
MANAGEMENT (continued)
Employees’ emoluments (continued) EEFHM (&)
The emoluments of these two highest paid individuals fall within ZMEREaEMEe s ALTAREEE S BT
the following bands. Al
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLEF
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 751 2,500,0017T — # % 3,000,0007C 1 1
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 75 #3,000,001 T — # ¥ 3,500,0007C - 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 75 #3,500,001 T — ¥ 4,000,000 1 -
2 2
The above remuneration paid to Directors also represents only LimEEI N cMe AEEREEZZZ
benefits paid to the Group’s key management during the year ended NEZA=+T-—HLEFERAXAEETEZER
31st March 2008. & Xz 1@ e
43 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 43 HAREE
At 31st March 2008, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect RZZEZENF=ZA=+—B KNEBERFAED
of guarantees issued for utilised borrowings in relation to: ZERZIABGEBRRE:
2008 2007
—EENF —ZTELF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Banking facilities granted to jointly BETHAEHCEZRITEE
controlled entities 321,900 95,950
Banking facilities granted to associates BTHBERARZBTEE 46,650 43,520
368,550 139,470
At 31st March 2008, the Company had contingent liabilities in NR_EENF=ZA=1+—H AR BHEKEH
respect of guarantees issued for utilised borrowings in relation to: EBHRFIER 2 ERZ XA BERRE:
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Banking facilities granted to subsidiaries & THEBARZRITEE 952,283 665,811
Banking facilities granted to jointly BETHRAEHCEZRITEE
controlled entities 321,900 95,950
Banking facilities granted to associates BTBMEAR2RITEE 46,650 43,520
Performance bonds and demand bonds of KiEB R RIRE LA KT
subsidiaries under certain contracts BARBRRERE 194,061 170,492
1,514,894 975,773
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44 CAPITAL COMMITMENT 44 BEREIE
The Group rE
(a) Subsidiaries (a) HIEBRAT
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Capital expenditures contracted MTINIEEEFTERN
for but not provided in the financial BREFBHREA
statements in respect of MR 2 B AN IE
— acquisition of plant and equipment —BAKE R&HE 2,495 5,952
— acquisition of land and building —BALHRYE 41,192 -
— acquisition of remaining interest —-BA-—MHBEIAZ
in an associated company (note) BT R (M) 136,171 138,000
179,858 143,952
Capital expenditures authorised but not MBsmERASHER
contracted in the financial statements REHRKRFRZ
in respect of B AR
— acquisition of plant and equipment —-BABE K& E 16,729 664
— acquisition of land and building —BATHRYE 1,279,025 -
1,475,612 144,616
Note: B 3 -

(b)

At 31st March 2008, the Group has committed to acquire the
remaining 51% of the issued share capital of its associated company,
Sinochina Enterprises Limited (“SEL”) from Sinochina Pacific Limited,
an independent third party. After that acquisition, SEL will become a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. The consideration is based on
the forthcoming financial results of SEL and its subsidiaries and
associates for the year ending 31st December 2008. The total
consideration to acquire the 100% of the issued share capital of SEL
(including HK$64 million paid in respect of the 49% already acquired)
shall not exceed HK$200 million.

Jointly controlled entities
The Group's share of the capital commitment of its jointly
controlled entities is as follows:

(b)

RZEENF=ZA=+—B KEBEHEM
— &L % = J5 Sinochina Pacific Limited4g
88 H B 2 1 FSinochina Enterprises Limited
(TSEL]) 82 F51% 2 B &BITIRA - BT
& SELE RAEEEEMB AR - YERE
TIRESELREM B AR BB E NRBE=-T
TNF+_A=+—ALFEZRAREREX
WRmEE-BESEL 100% 2 B#ITHRAZ A
RE (BETRKESEL49% 2 EEITHRA Y
B B (@188 % 64,000,0007T) 5 T @& #
200,000,0007T °

fEEH Y
7R B R A % 2 A AR
mT

2008 2007
—EZTN\F —TTLF
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Contracted for but not provided BEENBRER 216,724 146,813
Authorised but not contracted for B2 #t /B KR4 306,903 252,004
523,627 398,817
Ilﬁ’&@ﬂi

NEEH
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45 OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

The Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of
premises which fall due as follows:

45 KREHE

AEEESEEA
AEEGETRERETTHE ELHE
MARKRE N 2 RIKEE S B LE RS
m

2008 2007

—BENF —ETLF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Within one year —F A 102,746 79,140
In the second to fifth year inclusive ZERFA 128,150 88,443
Over five years AFUE 7,674 6,941
238,570 174,524

The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic
rentals, and do not include commitments for additional rental
payable (contingent rents), if any, which are to be determined
generally by applying pre-determined percentages to future sales
less the basic rentals of the respective leases, as it is not possible to
determine in advance the amount of such additional rentals.

The Group as lessor

At the balance sheet date, investment properties and completed
properties for sale with a carrying value of approximately HK$925
million (2007: HK$480 million) and HK$77 million (2007: HK$251
million) respectively were rented out under operating leases. All of
the properties were leased out for periods ranging from one year
to five years. The future minimum lease payments receivable by the
Group under non-cancellable operating leases for each of the
following periods is as follows:

MR A RETR M ERIINEEFIR LIRS
AEEREEAEZ TEFEENBEIIES
(HREE) (F) ZEE —RIVARKH
ERRBHEEZEAHERIZBERER
DHEERE -

AEEEAEEA

REZR UKLHERL 2R EMERDEE
REEWEZEEES NN ABE
925,000,000t (Z 2T £ F : B &
480,000,0007T) & #&#¥ 77,000,000 (=2 ZE
+ 4 B #0251,000,0007T) <X EME 2 HE
FHAEZERF - AEBERBRBETARBE &L
MHERNERREROEEAERKSEND
T

2008 2007

—EENF —EELF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Within one year —FR 36,074 34,100
In the second to fifth year inclusive —E2RFNRA 17,038 15,124
53,112 49,224

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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46
(a)

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Share option scheme of the Company

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
by the shareholders pursuant to a resolution passed on 20th
September 2002 for the primary purpose of providing the
participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in
the Company and to encourage participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The Scheme will
expire on 19th September 2012.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme and any other schemes is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date
of shareholders’ approval of the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit") or, if such 10% limit is refreshed, at the date of shareholders’
approval of the renewal of the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum
aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes, must not exceed
30% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue from
time to time. The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company then in issue, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. Each grant of
options to any director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
must be approved by independent Non-executive Directors. Where
any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director or any of their respective associates would
result in the shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options already granted and to be granted in excess of
0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital and with a value in
excess of HK$5,000,000 in the 12-month period up to the date of
grant must be approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days from the date of
grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during the
effective period of the Scheme to be notified by the board of
directors which shall not be later than 10 years from the date of
grant. The exercise price is determined by the Directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the highest of the closing price
of the Company’s share on the date of grant, the average closing
price of the share on the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, and the nominal value.

No options have been granted under the Scheme.

46
(a)

B El
AT ZBRAEE

RARBRERN 2 ERBOEST B ([ARFHE]) DR
B_ZEE_FNA-THBBZRERER
REM TEENRGET2EERSUEER
ARRRIZ S YR EEAZRS AR
AREBRODEBENTMEN TS ARRR
HERRGERE-FFAEEN T ——FNA
THhABE®R-

R8sk b st I Fri% H 2 BB AR A9 %
DHEBTEBUARFBEBTRM AR
ERGTEIBEZ10% ([ 8 ERTE]) =k
RIREMEE B ERTEAPALZI10%
PREELEHNB 2R -AEREAEIKE
R B ENRTEZBREEE2HITE
MBETZHZRMHABE TEBBAEARD RN
BEITZ’RN30% - REAQ AR Z Bt
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46
(b)

47

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share option scheme of Chevalier Pacific Holdings
Limited

The share option scheme of a subsidiary of the Company, CPF
("CPHL Scheme”) was adopted on 20th September 2002 and its
terms are similar to the Company’s Scheme. No options have been
granted under the CPHL Scheme.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for
the benefit of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas. In Hong Kong,
the Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which
is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance
(the "ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the "MPF Scheme"”) established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustees. Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme
prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice
of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme,
whereas all new employees joining the Group on or after 1st
December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5% of the
relevant payroll costs at a maximum of HK$1,000 per month to the
Scheme. The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at rates ranging from 5% to
7.5% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of
service with the Group.

Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. At
31st March 2008, the total amount of forfeited contributions, which
arose upon employees leaving the ORSO Scheme and which are
available to reduce the contributions payable in future years, was
HK$44,000 (2007: HK$87,000). The amount of forfeited
contributions utilised in this manner during the year was
HK$354,000 (2007: HK$634,000). At 31st March 2008,
contributions of HK$2,996,000 (2007: HK$2,015,000) due in respect
of the reporting period were paid over to the ORSO Scheme in
April 2008.

The Group also participates in the employee pension schemes in
countries or locations where the Group operates. The Group is
required to make monthly defined contributions at rates calculated
as a percentage of the monthly payroll.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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BRESTS @
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49

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 48 EREALZRS
Details of the material transactions entered into during the year REAFEREHEEATZEEISFHBEOT:
with related parties are as follows:
2008 2007
—EZTN\F —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T ok e
Interest income from associates KA Hﬁ?% ARZHEWA 165 735
Interest income from jointly REHEZEHEZ
controlled entities %‘J«%\LBU\ 1,257 2,900
Rental income from an associate REBE N T Z2HE KA 342 -
Purchases from an associate BEE N AERE 11,564 -
The remuneration of Directors, which is also considered to be key RFEEEF (BENTHERAEEIEERE
management of the Group, during the year were disclosed in note BREB) 2 F MR M 42 B8R -
42.
EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE 49 HEHESBE

Pursuant to a share purchase agreement dated 16 May 2008 entered
into among the Company, CPT Belgium Holdings SPRL, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, and Sekisui Chemical Co., Ltd.
("Sekisui”), an independent third party, the Group conditionally
agreed to sell whereby Sekisui conditionally agreed to purchase
75% equity interest in CPT Chevalier Pipe Technologies GmbH (the
“CPT") and certain of its subsidiaries (the “CPT Group”) at a
consideration of US$37.5 million (approximately HK$292.5 million).
The completion of the transaction is conditional upon approval of
relevant regulatory bodies in place of operations of the disposed
entities. Also, the agreed consideration of transaction is subject to
the consolidated net asset value of the CPT Group being not less
than US$29.5 million (approximately HK$230.1 million) (the
“Minimum NAV") as at 31 March 2008, any shortfall shall be
compensated by the Group (the “Compensation”).

Based on the Minimum NAV and the consideration of the purchase,
the Group has estimated the gain on disposal to be approximately
US$15.4 million (approximately HK$120.1 million). The actual gain
or loss resulting from the transaction however will be determined
based on the actual consolidated net asset value of the CPT Group
as the date of completion of the transaction with adjustment on
the Compensation, if any.

1B #& 2~ 2 & « CPT Belgium Holdings SPRL (A<
EEZ2EMBAR) REK BT KT
it ([FEK] BABIE=ZH)R_ETN\FH
B+ BIIZzBHEE RS NEEEIEE
RELHEmMEKEEGREEECPT
Chevalier Pipe Technologies GmbH ([ CPT] )
REETHEBAR ([CPTEE]) 75% 2 A
2 R {8 A 37,500,000E T (4K
292,500,0007T) R B EFBEHLEEE
EEMBATENEEEB IR SRR
B CPTEER —_ZTENFZA=+—HB2Z&
SEAEFEATPR29,500,000% 7T (HER
#)7%%230,100,0007T) ([RIEEEFE])
(REBEAFRTME=BEELHE ([WE]))
ZRGZHMEREFBER-

BEKEKEEFARKERE AEEMHEH
EEE 2 WFEHA15,400,000F 7T (K848
120,100,0007T) X S FTEE 2 BB W sk
BIEEEUATECPTEEMNZR 55K AELA
BHE(ME) 2EREGAEEFE

EiI5 ‘*IH:T A A

\ 44 1R
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50 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 50 REELX2RE
2008 2007
—eBNFE  -TTrf
HK$'000 HK$000
BT T BT
Profit before taxation R A5 A1 Vo A 411,970 408,050
Adjustments for: T

Share of results of associates FrAG B & A B E A (27,258) (5,263)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities B s EE SIS EEE (2,909) 3,159
Interest from bank deposits RITERZFERA (16,420) (14,263)
Interest from amounts due from associates JE W B 2 A B IR 32 LB A (165) (735)
Interest from amounts due HEESI B EERZFEWA

from jointly controlled entities (1,257) (2,900)
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts BITERRBEZ 2FE 90,511 96,391
Interest on convertible bonds wholly EEHERAEFAZ

repayable within five years AR ES 2 E 35,532 25,965
Dividend income from listed securities EWEHZBREKRA (11,079) (9,260)
Depreciation e 89,156 86,429
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hit @\ EE#E 3,986 3,603
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME BERZRHR

plant and equipment and ENAEREBEFEE

prepaid lease payment /(M) 1,438 (7,406)
Net loss on disposal of HEREMEZTF

investment properties &1 653 -
Increase in fair value of KREWMEZRARE

investment properties N (387,263) (53,362)
Fair value gain on derivative component of ABRBRESTEIARS 2

convertible bonds N ERE (23,912) (26,489)
Transaction costs related to derivative B MR ESFITETAZMD

component of convertible bonds il e N N - 2,029
Gain on disposal of jointly controlled entities B R E S 2 s = (19,714)
Decrease/(increase) in fair value of MEMBIARAZARE

derivative financial instruments w (i) 24,332 (22,222)
Decrease/(increase) in fair value of REERZAAEEEX

investments at fair value through "EZRARBRY

profit or loss /(38 n) 87,723 (90,179)
Reversal of provision for bad debt B RS (7,770) (7,636)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE A TH & BB 5 11,783 11,743
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments SEMECZENEENKIE

on properties for sale B9 2,613 1,770
(Write back)/write down of properties FEME (BE) RER

for sale to net realisable value AR FE (11,831) 10,058
Write down of inventories to BEFEETEE

net realised value FE 1,315 3,674
(Write back of)/provision for impairment EANEENFREEE

loss on prepaid lease payments (BeE) B & (2,637) 1,628
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEMNRE ZRE

investments BB 835 1,473
Impairment loss on other intangible assets HM\EEE 2 RERBIE = 2,157
Impairment loss on property, WE- -WERZERE

plant and equipment B8 7,415 13,754
Impairment loss on goodwill BMEZREREE - 5,000
Operating cash flows before movements HEEEHA

in working capital KEBHeRE 276,761 417,454

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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50 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 50 REFEEZRE )
(continued)
2008 2007
—EZTN\F —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Changes in working capital HEEE
Increase in inventories F & # N (35,051) (45,975)
Decrease in properties for sale FEMERD 64,634 43,001
Increase in debtors, deposits and ERIES FFHiEe R

prepayments FEAT FRIAIE N (260,955) (86,517)
Decrease in amounts due from customers REANIRERERPKEZ

for contract work RIER L 31,604 22,059
Net decrease in investments at fair value REHERZALEEEN

through profit or loss REF R 367,348 229,596
Increase/(decrease) in creditors, EREZF FARES R

deposits and accruals TERBAE M CRD) 119,505 (72,078)
Decrease in unearned insurance premiums Rom H IR B B R 2 (8,103) (8,435)
Decrease in outstanding insurance claims RIRRBE RER D (39,765) (29,714)
Increase in amounts due to associates JE A5 Bt 8 2 | IR SR8 hn 2,497 1,006
Increase in amounts due to customers REHNIRERTRFXGZ

for contract work SRIALE N 52,568 71,161
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income IEEW AL I, CRi ) 3,112 (1,958)
Exchange difference & 5, 38 % 21,302 10,525

595,457 550,125

EtEGEEERAT |
TT N
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51 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

51 TEHEBRQ T

Place or Issued and Effective percentage of
country of paid up share issued share capital/
incorporation or capital/ registered capital
registration/ Class of registered Number of  held by the Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly Indirectly Principal activities
BRTR FRARABEERORE
B3IV BRRE/ R RS
ARER BHERER R 8 ERUEIEN iy = B# EF: TEEH
% %

Chevalier (Aluminium Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 Supply and
Engineering) Bk 3t BT installation of
Hong Kong Limited aluminium building

A+ (8I8) materials and
EEERAA curtain walls

REREMH
REBERZ
HERTE

Chevalier (Aluminium Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Supply and
Engineering) Limited Bk el AR 1007 installation of

ET(BIR)BRAH Deferred HK$2 2 - 100 aluminium building

R BT materials and

curtain walls

A REMH

REBEELZ

RERZE

Chevalier Automobiles Inc. Canada Common cs$101 200 - 100 Sale and servicing
mex il 1012 AT of automobiles

REHER

BERY

Chevalier (Building Supplies Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Supply and
& Engineering) Limited B & BHE1007T installation of

A+ (BMIR) Deferred HK$2 2 - 100 building materials
BRAA B BT and trading of

forklift trucks
and generators
BEMHEE
REER
meEmEESR
EEHRES

Chevalier (Chengdu) Mainland Not RMB250,000,000 Not - 100 Investment holding
Investment Management China applicable  AR#250,000,0000z  Applicable and providing
Limited (note 1) RE R ~ER NER management service

Er(m#h) REER
BRAR (1)

Chevalier International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2008
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51

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

51 FEMB QR (@)

Place or Issued and Effective percentage of
country of paid up share issued share capital/
incorporation or capital/ registered capital
registration/ Class of registered Number of  held by the Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
BRTR AAARBAERORE
it g% BrRRE/ EEEN $
RAEW B R E R IR 10 & B ZfkE  ROHE B B3 TEER
% %
Chevalier Chrysler Canada Common c$101 200 - 100 Sale and servicing
Inc. mex LB 101X T of automobiles
AEREREERY
Chevalier Civil Engineering Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Civil engineering
(Hong Kong) Limited BE L& EE1007T tAIRE
AT+ ARTE
(BE)ERDA
Chevalier (Civil Engineering) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$49,991,002 49,991,002 - 100 Civil engineering
Limited B L@ %5%49,991,0027 TARIRE
At (xARIR) Deferred HK$24,964,002 24,964,002 - 100
AR B %124,964,0027
Chevalier Cold Storage and Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 75 Operation of
Logistics Limited B gl Bl a cold storage
EtRBMRERAR warehouse and
logistic
BERRRE
&N
Chevalier (Construction) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$60,500,000 60,500,000 - 99.6 Building construction
Company Limited B L@ %%60,500,0007 and maintenance
EL(BE)ARDA BFRERRE
Chevalier Construction Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100 - 100 Building construction
(Hong Kong) Limited Bk il 1,000 BFRE
EIR%Z(FR) Deferred HK$ 10,000 1,000 - 100
BRAT B #7%10,0007T
Chevalier Development (S) Singapore Ordinary $$2,500,000 2,500,000 - 100 Property investment
Pte. Ltd. EIE Ei®  2,500,000% N T NERE
Chevalier Enviro Services, Inc. Philippines Common Pes08,750,000 87,500 - 100 Trade or business of
FEE ¥t 8,750,000 waste disposal
FEENER BeBNBRER

HEIBEREEAERAA

N g
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51 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 51 T2EMB AT )
Place or Issued and Effective percentage of
country of paid up share issued share capital/
incorporation or capital/ registered capital
registration/ Class of registered Number of  held by the Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
BRTR AAARBAERORE
g BERRE/ RN £
ARER ERER R4 & 5 ZMBRE  ROHAE E# & TEEH
% %
Chevalier (E & M Hong Kong Ordinary HK$69,200,000 69,200,000 - 100 Installation of
Contracting) Limited B *FE  %H69,200,0007 electrical and
A+ (BEIR)BRLA mechanical
equipment and
provision of project
management service
ZEBERE
REEHER
ERRH
Chevalier Engineering (S) Singapore Ordinary $$500,000 500,000 - 100 Installation and
Pte. Ltd. FiipE:d L% 500,00087 M T maintenance of lifts
ZERRET G
Chevalier (Envirotech) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$127,600,000 127,600,000 - 100 Environmental
£+ (RERM) BERAH &% &% %1127,600,0007 engineering
RRIR
Chevalier (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$143,085,000 572,340,000 100 - Marketing,
At (BE)ERAA Bk T® 7% 143,085,0007 installation and
maintenance of
lifts, escalators and
air-conditioning
systems, supply and
servicing of power
equipment and
industrial equipment
HE 2K RxE
TR 8EBR
REEGHE
ENRIXF
Chevalier (Insurance Brokers) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 100 - Insurance brokerage
Limited B LB 71,000,000 REREER
At (RBRER)ERDLA
Chevalier Insurance Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200,000,000 200,000,000 100 - Insurance
Company Limited Bk T/ 7%%200,000,0007 underwriting
TREERAF RBEH

146 Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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51

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

51 FEMB QR (@)

Place or Issued and Effective percentage of
country of paid up share issued share capital/
incorporation or capital/ registered capital
registration/ Class of registered Number of  held by the Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
BRTR AAARBAERORE
g BERRE/ RN £
ARER ERER R4 & 5 ZMBRE  ROHAE E# & TEEH
% %
Chevalier International US.A. Common US$4,012,000 4,012,000 - 100 Grocery trading
(USA) Inc. E3] LB 4,012,000 T HEES
Chevalier iTech Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 Trading and
EtRRIBERAR B LB BT servicing of
computer and
business machines
EHRALAS
EOYE 1
Chevalier iTech Thai Limited Thailand Ordinary BAHT18,980,000 189,800 - 100 Trading of
(note 3) ZH g 18,980,000% #k computer and
(Bt &3) Preference BAHT1,020,000 10,200 - 100 business machines
Bsx 1,020,000% & ERREE
K&EEH
Chevalier Lifts Engineering Mainland Not RMB19,000,000 Not - 100 Installation and
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (note 1) China applicable  AE 19,000,000t applicable maintenance of lifts
HTEBIR ORI REI A @A @A THE# s 2%
BRAR (M) REERS
Chevalier (Network Solutions) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 Network systems
Limited B T3 BT and solution
HEt (BBERE)BRLA services
BEZGR
BT
Chevalier Network Solutions Thailand Ordinary BAHT15,000,000 150,000 - 100 Trading of
Thai Limited #E T3 15,000,000% &k telecommunication
equipment
EHESE
Chevalier (OA) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000 100,000 - 100 Trading of
A+ (BEZE5) BRLA B 3t ##100,0007T computer and

office equipment
and provision of
repair and
maintenance service
BRRBAE
RBEHR
REEE

RERS

EtEGEEERAT |
TT N




Notes to the Financial Statements

148

B 75 3R 3R MY AE
51 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 51 T2EMB AT )
Place or Issued and Effective percentage of
country of paid up share issued share capital/
incorporation or capital/ registered capital
registration/ Class of registered Number of  held by the Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
BRTR AAARBAERORE
g BERRE/ RN £
ARER ERER R4 & 5 ZMBRE  ROHAE E# & TEEH
% %

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Bermuda/ Ordinary  HK$107,770,008.50 215,540,017 55.14 - Investment holding
Limited) (listed on Hong Kong el gk REER
The Stock Exchange of agiE/ 107,770,008.507¢
Hong Kong Limited) B

A7 aARERAR
(REBRERSH
BRAFLM)

Chevalier Pacific Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200,000,000 200,000,000 - 55.14 Investment holding

ELZRARAH 'R L@ 5%200,000,0007 REER

Chevalier Pipe Rehabilitation Hong Kong Ordinary HK$43,400,000 43,400,000 - 100 Design and
Hong Kong Limited B EE B H43,400,0007 construction for

HIEEBE flushing water,
EEERAA cooling water,

gas, sewages and
drainage pipelines
Rt REERK
RK-RE
BKRKEER

Chevalier Property Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Property
Management Limited B & BE100T management and

EtERMEEEERDA Deferred HK$1,002 1,002 - 100 security services

B 71,0027 NEEBR

E

Chevalier (Satellink) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$365,002 365,002 - 100 Installation of
A+ (GEBA)BRDA B ¥t 7 1365,0027T satellite antennae
EREEERXR

Chevalier Singapore Holdings Singapore Ordinary $$11,250,000 112,500,000 - 100 Marketing,
Pte. Ltd. A il 11,250,000 installation and

E A Mg ERTLA g maintenance of
BRAT lifts and escalators

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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51

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

51 FEMB QR (@)

Place or Issued and Effective percentage of
country of paid up share issued share capital/
incorporation or capital/ registered capital
registration/ Class of registered Number of  held by the Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
BRTR AAARBAERORE
it g% BrRRE/ EEEN $
RAEW B R E R IR 10 & B ZfkE  ROHE B B3 TEER
% %
Chevalier (Travel Agency) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,500,000 15,000 - 100 Travel agency
Limited BE L®E  #%1,500,000T ERE
EtiEaRAE
Chevalier (Macau) Limited Macau Ordinary Marcau Patacas 100 - 100 Installation and
HE+ CRF) ERAR RF 3 100,000 maintenance of lifts
100,000 9 7T THRERE
RBEERS
CPC Construction Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200 2 - 100 Building
Limited B gl BEE2007T construction and
HIABBEEERLA Deferred HK$25,936,200 259,362 - - civil engineering
EIE 525,936,200 BFRER
TARIR
CPT Asia Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$230,000,000 230,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
AT EBRHEDIMNER B £®  %$%230,000,0007 and trading of
BERAF pipelining materials,
machinery and
equipment
REERRER
EEZME
Elevator Parts Engineering Hong Kong Ordinary HK$400,000 40,000 - 100 Maintenance of lifts
Company Limited Bk L %% 400,000 and escalators
BHRIRFERAF iy VEEL
RERBERE
Forth Bridge Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20 2 - 100 Property investment
Bk i EH207T NERE
Deferred HK$10,000 1,000 - 100
RiE ##10,0007T
Full Ascent Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 75 Property investment
ERERERAF Bk e BT NERE
Futex Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 1,000 - 100 Property investment
EREEERAA B 5B 1,000 and development

NERERBR

HEIBEREEAERAA

N g
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B 75 3R 3R MY AE
51 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 51 TEMBE2F
Place or Issued and Effective percentage of
country of paid up share issued share capital/
incorporation or capital/ registered capital
registration/ Class of registered Number of  held by the Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
BRTR AAARBAERORE
g BERRE/ RN £
RAEW ERER R4 & 5 ZMBRE  ROHAE E# & TEEH
% %
Gold Express Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Property development
Limited BiE 5B AE100T NERR
SHERERAA Deferred HK$2 2 - 100
R BT
Goldyork Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 Property investment
eHRBRERRAA Bk i BT NERE
Goodkent Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Property development
Bk L BE1007T NEER
Deferred HK$2 2 - 100
B B
Good Process Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$149 149 100 - Property development
EEARRA Bk g B 1497 NEER
Deferred HK$51 51 - 100
B BESIT
Jiujiang Chevalier Hotel & Travel Mainland Not RMB25,000,000 Not - 100 Hotel operation
Co., Ltd. (note 1) China applicable  AR®%25,000,000t  applicable BEBEEHK
NIETBEREERAR HREIA @R @R
GERN
KMG Pipe Technologies GmbH Germany Ordinary Euro25,000 2 - 100 Pipe-line engineering
ZE LB 25,0008 & and maintenance,
rehabilitation and
construction of
pipelines, including
sewage, cleaning,
gas and water
pipelines, and
civil and structural
engineering
BiE REREBN
EEIR
(BHEBKER
GEE YN
ZRELA
REBIR)
Lac Kar Investment Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3,600,000 3,600,000 - 100 Property investment
Limited BE EE  7%3,600,000 nERE
HMEEXRRRF
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51

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

51 FEMB QR (@)

Place or Issued and Effective percentage of
country of paid up share issued share capital/
incorporation or capital/ registered capital
registration/ Class of registered Number of  held by the Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
BRTR AAARBAERORE
g BERRE/ RN £
RAEW ERER R4 & 5 ZMBRE  ROHAE E# & TEEH
% %
Lucky Fine Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 Property investment
BEERAF Bk Lk BEIT and share dealing
NERERRERS
Macleh (Chevalier) Limited Canada Common C$101,100 10,100 - 100 Property investment
mex FE 10110002 AT and hotel operation
NERER
BEREEH
Macont Developments Inc. Canada Common €$1,000 1,000 - 100 Property investment
JIEFN EE 1,000012 AT NERE
Matterhorn Properties Limited British Virgin Ordinary Us$1 1 - 100 Property investment
Islands/ 5B 1%7T NERE
Hong Kong
RERX
Be/ER
NordiTube Technologies SE Sweden/ Ordinary SEK49,800,000 99,600,000 - 94.77 Supply PHOENIX
Belgium L® 49,800,000 process for pipe
Wit/ b R R rehabilitation
projects
L FEPHOENIXTE 5
MIRESHES
fEEER
HEZA
Oriental Sharp Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$360,000,000 360,000,000 - 100 Property development
HPERAT BE L@ 5H360,000,0007 NERRE
Deferred HK$51 51 - 100
BT BT
Pacific Coffee Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$77,355 77,355 - 55.14 Trading of coffee
B gl 77,3557 products, operation
of coffee shops
and provision of
maintenance services
MEEREHR
EEmuEE R
RtEBRE
Pacific Coffee Company () Singapore Ordinary $$100,000 100,000 - 55.14 Operation of
Pte Ltd %K EH 100,000% % T coffee shops

FEmYE

E+ BB EEERAT
=2 \FFH
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51 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

51 FEMB QR (@)

Place or Issued and Effective percentage of
country of paid up share issued share capital/
incorporation or capital/ registered capital
registration/ Class of registered Number of  held by the Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
BRTR AAARBAERORE
g BERRE/ RN £
RAEW ERER R4 & 5 ZMBRE  ROHAE E# & TEEH
% %
PCC Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 55.14 Operation of
B & BRI coffee shops
wEmuEE
PCC Investment (II) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 55.14 Operating of
Bk L@ BT coffee shops
BEMYEE
Peak Gain Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20 2 - 100 Property investment
REBERAR FE il BE207T NERE
Proud Rich Limited (note 4) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20 2 - 100 Property investment
BERERARA (M524) Bk i B0 NERE
Deferred HK$20 2 - 100
Rt B0
Rib Loc Group Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary A$14,992,299 28,619,521 - 76.88 Franchising,
BN ¥t 14,992,299 7T manufacturing and
marketing of products
and systems
in the pipe
renovation market,
manufacture and
marketing of
air conditioning
ducts and component
RE BRI TS
FERMRERZ
mskEE
REERTMHZ
HERTSHERE
Shanghai Chevalier Lifts Mainland China Not US$1,065,000 Not - 100 Installation and
Engineering Co., Ltd. (note 1) HERH applicable 1,065,000%7  applicable maintenance of lifts
TBETERIRERDA TiE A TiE TREZZER
GEI BERE
CPT Chevalier Pipe Technologies ~ Germany Ordinary EUR11,500,000 4 - 100 Investment holding
GmbH (3] il 11,500,000&( 7T REZR

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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51 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 51 T2EMB AT )
Place or Issued and Effective percentage of
country of paid up share issued share capital/
incorporation or capital/ registered capital
registration/ Class of registered Number of  held by the Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
BRTR AAARBAERORE
g BERRE/ RN £
RAEW ERER R4 & 5 ZMBRE  ROHAE E# & TEEH
% %

Shanghai Chevalier Property Mainland China Not US$3,650,000 Not - 100 Property
Management Co., Ltd. REIA applicable 3,650,000 applicable management and
(note 1) TEH TEH providing property

FBEIMEERBRAA management
(P31 consultation

NEEBRR
RENEEERN

Shanghai Chevalier Trading Mainland China Not US$1,000,000 Not - 100 Trading of lifts,
Co., Ltd. (note 1) HE R applicable 1,000,000%7C  applicable escalators, electrical

TRETESERAR (1) TiEHA TiEHA and mechanical

equipment
R BBHR
KEERED

Shanghai Chonmain Real Mainland Not US$18,000,000 Not - 80  Property development
Estate Development China applicable 18,000,000%7C  applicable and investment
Co. Ltd. (note 2) B3, @R @A NEZRRRE

FRAZEHERR
BRAF (Hi5r2)

Sup Aswin Limited Thailand Ordinary BAHT15,000,000 150,000 - 100 Property investment

FE L@ 15,000,000% % nERE

Talent Luck Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$270,000,000 270,000,000 - 100 Property development

HEAZERAA Bk T/ 7%%270,000,0007 and investment

Deferred HK$51 51 - 100 MEERRBA
B BESIT

Union Pearl Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 Property investment
Limited B iR BT NERE

BRERABRAA

Winfield Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 Property investment

BAERERRA Bk e BT NERE

Xinyang Chevalier Hotel Mainland Not RMB74,142,781 Not - 70 Hotel operation
Co., Ltd. (note 2) China applicable AR®74,142,7817t  applicable BEBEEHK

EHELREEERAR HE R TER TER
(H&E2)

RRETZERRNBEEERAF Mainland Not RMB40,000,000 Not - 100 Hotel operation
(note 1) China applicable AR #40,000,000C  applicable BEBEEH
GER REIA @R @R

HEIBEREEAERAA
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51 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 51 T2EMB AT )
Place or Issued and Effective percentage of
country of paid up share issued share capital/
incorporation or capital/ registered capital
registration/ Class of registered Number of  held by the Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
BRTR AAARBAERORE
g BERRE/ RN £
ARER ERER R4 & 5 ZMBRE  ROHAE E# & TEEH
% %

ENESR }xﬁ B R B Mainland Not HK$30,000,000 Not - 90.1 Investment and
ERAF (note 2) China applicable  7%%30,000,0007c  applicable providing
(MTEZ) L lETAp: T A T A management service

RER
REERRH

REMETFEDEHERE Mainland China Not  RMB200,000,000 Not - 96  Property development
BEREMAH RE A applicable AR applicable MEER

~ER 200,000,0007T ~ER

757040 Ontario Limited Canada Common C$10 10 - 100 Property investment

mex L@ 10MEAT NERE

Notes: B 5%

(1) Established in the Mainland China as wholly foreign owned enterprises. (1) DNEZEDERP R AR -

(2)  Established in the Mainland China as sino-foreign owned equity joint (2) RN EELERTBI AL -

ventures.
(3) Preference shares are 10% non-cumulative and every four preference (3) BEKRAIFZRA10%  MEARZENKE

shares of this company carry one vote.

(4) All deferred shares are non-voting and practically have no rights to
participate in any distribution upon winding up.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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52 PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

52 FEHBZENT

Place or Effective percentage
country of of issued capital held
incorporation/ Class of by the Company
Name of associate operation shares held indirectly Principal activities
ApEBERES
ERiP EBRITRER
BENRAER b B 2% B X B 10 Bl = i IR A B 28 FTEEK
%
K2 Printing Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 49 Property investments
BEDNBER QA HE ! MERE
Yue Xiu Concrete Company Hong Kong Ordinary 25 Manufacturing and
Limited B/E il provision of concrete
MERRLBERAA FERRHBRL
Sinochina Enterprises Limited British Virgin Ordinary 49 Investment holding
Islands/ EE wEERKR
Hong Kong
REBREX
i
WIS R B E S HER QA Mainland China Not applicable 36 Trading of motor
A A3 3 A vehicles and
provision of
maintenance service
PEESHRREHRERS
KREEREHTEHE Mainland China Not applicable 15.2 Trading of motor

R ERAR B

38 A

All the associates are incorporated and the Group’s entitlement to
share in the profit or loss in these associates is in proportion to its

ownership interest.

vehicles and
provision of
maintenance service

NEEZRRERERS

AEEFEEBERD

AlzBNXEETIEE

R Ztt PItE MAABEME AR ERD

EER PPN

Hilﬁ*“l?lﬁ A A
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53

54

PRINCIPAL JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Place or
country of

53 FEHFEHEE

Effective percentage
of issued share capital/

incorporation Form of registered share capital
Name of jointly or registration/ Class of business held by the Company
controlled entity operation shares held structure indirectly Principal activities
AARBEERS
fl e ERITRAER
HEZH XA b B 2% B X BROER BWEEBERX = IR A R £ FTEEK
%
Lam Woo & Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Incorporated 50 Civil engineering
BaEEERAA BB =R Gl TARIR
Lam Woo Construction Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Incorporated 50 Building maintenance
e ARARADA EE BB i BFRE
FNEL S BERME Mainland China  Not applicable Sino-foreign 46 Property development
FEARAA (note) B A i TER owned equity MEER
(BE&E) joint venture
RONEERE
Ib R BV 5 5 B Mainland China  Not applicable Domestic 44 Property development
REBRAA R A i A enterprise MEER
NERE
KBMETFEHMEER Mainland China  Not applicable  Wholly foreign 49 Property development
BRAA B A TEA owned MEERE
enterprise
SERERE

Note: The Group shares 50% in the profit or loss of the jointly controlled

entity.

Except the above-mentioned, the Group’s entitlement to share in
the profit or loss of the remaining jointly controlled entities is in

proportion to its ownership interest.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

54

Certain of the comparative figures have been reclassified to conform

to the current year presentation.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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